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BBVA Bancomer, S.A.,

Institucién de Banca Mudltiple, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer and Subsidiaries

XSubsidiary of Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V
v. Paseo de la Reforma 510, Col. Juarez, Ciudad de México,

Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31, 2016 and 2015
(In millions of Mexican pesos)

Assets
Funds available

Margin accounts

Investment in securities:
Trading
Available-for-sale
Held to maturity

Receivables from repurchase agreements
Derivatives:
Trading
Hedging
Valuation adjustments arising from hedges of financialtasse

Performing loans:
Commercial loans-
Business or commercial activity
Financial entities
Government entities

Consumer loans

Mortgage loans:
Residential and non-residential
Low income

Total performing loans

Non-performing loans:
Commercial loans-
Business or commercial activity
Financial entities
Government entities

Consumer loans

Mortgage loans:
Residential and non-residential
Low income

Total non-performing loans
Total loans
Allowance for loan losses
Total loans, net
Benefits receivable from securitization transactions
Receivables, sundry debtors and prepayments, net
Foreclosed assets, net
Property, furniture and equipment, net
Equity investments
Deferred taxes, net

Other assets:
Deferred charges, prepaid expenses and intangibles
Other short and long term assets

Total assets

'R/léxico, C.P. 06600

2016 2015
186,749 150,102
8,998 2,774
235,030 249,462
150,664 147,946
15,656 16,877
401,350 414,285
289 11,231
148,957 95,854
18,934 13,279
167,891 109,133
262 2,137
409,974 343,955
19,606 15,869
142,641 137,515
572,221 497,339
245,965 217,982
166,694 150,959
14,821 16,883
181,515 167,842
999,701 883,163
6,000 5,159
322 499

1 1

6,323 5,659
8,755 7,433
6,828 7,208
853 1,105
7.681 8,313
22,759 21,405
1,022,460 904,568
(30,005) (27.386)
992,455 877,182
197 1,136
80,807 61,072
3,866 5,662
42,563 39,641
1,207 1,518
14,998 12,309
6,293 6,941
756 1,010
7,049 7,951
1,908,681 1,696,133

Liabilities
Deposits:
Demand deposits
Time deposits-
From general public
Money market

Bank bonds
Inactive global deposits account

Interbank loans and loans from other entities:
Payable on demand
Short-term
Long-term

Payables from repurchase agreements

Security loans

Collateral sold or delivered in guarantee:
Security loans

Derivatives:
Trading
Hedging

Valuation adjustments arising from hedges of financial liadslit

Other payables:
Income taxes payable
Employee profit sharing (PTU) payable
Payables from transaction settlement
Payables for collateral received in cash
Accrued liabilities and other

Subordinated debt
Deferred credits and advance collections

Total liabilities

6WRFNKROGHUVY HTXLW\

Subscribed capital:
Paid-in capital
Share premium

Earned capital:
Capital reserves
Results from prior years
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities
Result from valuation of cash flow hedges
Result from conversion of foreign subsidiaries
Re-measurementf defined benefits to employees
Net income

ODMRULW\ VWRFNKROGHUVY HTXLW\

Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries

7TRWDO VWRFENKROGHUVY HTXLW\

Total liabilities and stockh@ GHUV Y HTXLW\

2016 2015
754,858 678,708
173,800 150,934

23,806 28,892
197,606 179,826

79,990 91,220

3,170 2,501
1,035,624 952,255
413 1,571
8,619 12,903

10,172 6,364

19,204 20,838
264,485 244,431

1 1

34,416 36,898
148,027 100,229

11,009 7,868
159,036 108,097

5,095 4,536
1,005 1,999
2 3

59,192 39,742

36,271 26,599

34,452 30,092
130,922 98,435

93,185 77,958

7,731 7,507
1,749,699 1,550,956

24,138 24,138

15,726 15,726

39,864 39,864

6,881 6,881
82,742 69,584
(3,967) (692)

141 550
440 340
(467)

33,311 28,613
119,081 105,276
158,945 145,140

37 37
158,982 145,177
1,908,681 1,696,133




Memorandum accounts (See note 3) 2016 2015

Contingent assets and liabilities $ 394 $ 403
Credit commitments 553,195 458,700
Assets in trust or under mandate:
Trusts 438,732 372,612
Mandates 24,206 24225
$ 462,938 $ 396837
Assets in custody or under administration $ 181,474 $ 193,529
Collateral received by the entity 44,789 115,402
Collateral received and sold or pledged as guarantee by the entity 44,752 104,440
Investment banking transactions on behalf of third parties, net 889,097 62,129
Uncollected earned interest derived from non-performing loans 7,762 11,335
Other record accounts 3,188,624 2,682,535
$ 4,356,498 $ 3,169,370
Historical paid-in capital $ 4243 $ 4,243

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG EDODQFH VKHHWYV ZHWHH S U B SD88-04. DIFE @ H GAARD R /HREX S H 39T B AR @ BegudtigsvOdiMmission, in confowittiyArticles 99, 101 and 102

of the Mexican Credit Institutions Law, of general and compulsory easee, consistently applied, reflecting the financial position of the Irietitat of the dates stated above, which were carried out and measured gdoordin
sound banking practices and applicable legalB@ PLQLVWUDWLYH GLVSRVLWLRQV ~

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG EDODQFH VKHHWYV DiGBIH MVKHIBEMMSREDWYERHO% R/D RG WKH.VHFQIRWRULHYV ~

Eduardo Osuna Osuna Luis Ignacio de la Luz Dévalos Natalia Ortega Gémez

José Homero Cal y Mayor Garcia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer General Director, Internal Audit

Director, Corporate Accoumtg

www.bancomer.com/informacioninversionistas

www.chbv.gob.mx

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financialrgsateme



BBVA Bancomer, S.A.,

Institucion de Banca Multiple, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer and

Subsidiaries

(Subsidiary of Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V.)
Av. Paseo de la Reforma 510, Col. Juarez, Ciudad de México, México. C.P. 06600

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(In millions of Mexican pesos)

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Allowance for loan losses
Net interest income after allowance for loan losses
Commission and fee income
Commission and fee expense
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities
Other operating income
Administrative and promotional expenses
Net operating income
Share in net income of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates
Income before income taxes
Current income tax
Deferred income tax
Income before discontinued operations

Discontinued operations

Income before non-controlling interest

2016 2015
137,879 $ 119,831
(34,775) (28,022)
103,104 91,809
(32,383) (28.482)

70,721 63,327
36,238 33,243
(12,038) (11,392)
3,562 3,262
1,551 854
(57.743) (51,959)
42,291 37,335

16 100
42,307 37,435
(10,974) (13,516)
1,106 4,695
32,439 28,614
872
33,311 28,614



2016 2015

Non-controlling interest - (1)

Net income $ 33311 $ 28,613

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWHPHQWYV RI LQER/RI® Z K UHWHUHID DB 6 0D FFPREW
Institutions issued by the Mexican National Banking and Securities Commissmonformity with Articles 99, 101

and 102 of the Mexican Credit Institutions Law, of general and ctsmyuobservance, consistently applied,

reflecting the operations of the Institution for the years stated abtneh were carried out and measured according

WR VRXQG EDQNLQJ SUDFWLFHVY DQG DSSOLFDEOH OHJDO DQG DGPLQLVWI

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWHPHQWY RI LQFRPY X€OH D ®YKHRYHGSR\QW KH
signatories ”

Eduardo Osuna Osuna Luis Ignacio de la Luz Davalos
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Natalia Ortega GOmez José Homero Cal y Mayor Garcia
General Director, Internal Audit Director, Corporate Accounting
www.bancomer.com/informacioninversionistas www.chbv.gob.mx

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financialrgateme



BBVA Bancomer, S.A., _ _ o
Institucion de Banca Multiple, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer and Subsidiaries
Subsidiary of Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V.

v. Paseo de la Reforma 510, Col. Juarez, México, D.F., C.P. 06600

&RQVROLGDWHG 6WDWHPHQWY RI &KDQJHYV LQ 6WRFNKROGHUVY (TXLW\

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(In millions of Mexican pesos)

Subscribed Capital Earned Capital
Unrealized Gains Result from Result from Re-measurement
on Available Valuation of Conversion of of defined Total
Paid-in Share Capital Results from for Sale Cash Flow Foreign benefits to Net Non-controlling 6WRFNKRO
Capital Premium Reserves Prior Years Securities Hedges Subsidiaries employees Income Interest Equity
Balances at December 31, 2014 $ 24,138 % 15,726  $ 6,881 $ 60,639 $ 898 % 707 % 203 % - $ 24,745 % 36 $ 133,973
&KDQJHV GXH WR VWRFNKROGHUVY G
Transfer of net income to results from prior years - - - 24,745 - - - - (24,745) - -
Cash dividends paid - - - (15,800) - - - - - - (15,800)
Total - - - 8,945 - - - - (24,745) - (15,800)
Comprehensive income-
Net income - - - - - - - - 28,613 1 28,614
Result from valuation of securities available-for-sale - - - - (1,590) - - - - - (1,590)
Result from valuation of cash flow hedges - - - - - (157) - - - - (157)
Result from conversions of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - 137 - - - 137
Total - - - - (1,590) (157) 137 - 28,613 1 27,004
Balances at December 31, 2015 24,138 15,726 6,881 69,584 (692) 550 340 - 28,613 37 145,177
&KDQJHVY GXH WR VWRFNKROGHUVY G
Transfer of net income to results from prior years - - - 28,613 - - - - (28,613) - -
Cash dividends paid - - - (15,450) - - - - - - (15,450)
Total - - - 13,163 - - - - (28,613) - (15,450)
Comprehensive income-
Net income - - - - - - - - 33,311 - 33,311
Result from valuation of securities available-for-sale - - - - (3,275) - - - - - (3,275)
Result from valuation of cash flow hedges - - - - - (409) - - - - (409)
Result from conversion of foreign subsidiaries - - - (5) - - - - - - (5)
Accrued conversion effect - - - - - - 100 - - - 100
Re-measurementf defined benefits to employees - - - - - - - (467) - - (467)
Total - - - (5) (3.275) (409) 100 (467) 33,311 - 29,255
Balances at December 31, 2016 $ 24,138 $ 15,726 $ 6,881 $ 82,742 $ (3,967) $ 141 $ 440 $ 467) $ 33311 $ 37 $ 158,982

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWHPHQWYV RI| Rked@e@arting tb Ge AWdRRiNgRi©ri@ bpglicdbléitd Kred InditdtidhédSptheIMaxican National Banking and Securities Commission, ioroity with Articles 99, 101
and 102 of the Mexican Credit Institutions Law, of general ancpatsary obseY DQFH FRQVLVWHQWO\ DSSOLHG UHIOHFWRIQW RHK HQ N VD QVDHW LIR@ V&R evdddiRao-B0HAMY Ifadslidd lceomiggRorddund K
EDQNLQJ SUDFWLFHYVY DQG DSSOLFDEOH OHJDO DQG DGPLQLVWUDWLYH GLVSRVLWLRQV ~

37TKHVH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWHPHQWYV RI FKID® EN WIKMH VAVRPRNK RO GHHFWRIUX LYW ZHU WRHSIHRVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH VLIQDWRULHYV

Eduardo Osuna Osuna Luis Ignacio de la Luz Davalos Natalia Ortega GOmez José Homero Cal y Mayor Garcia
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer General Director, Internal Audit Director, Corporate Accounting
www.bancomer.com/informacioninversionistas www.cnbv.gob.mx

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consoliidatecial statements.
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BBVA Bancomer, S.A.,
Institucién de Banca Multiple, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer and

Subsidiaries . ‘
SB\SubS|d|ary of Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de _C.V.R/I o
v. Paseo de la Reforma 510, Col. Juarez, Ciudad de México, México, C.P. 06600

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(In millions of Mexican pesos)

2016 2015
Net income $ 33311 % 28,613
Adjustments derived from items not involving cash flows:
Profit or loss derived from the valuation of investment and finagnt
activities 100 108
Depreciation of property, furniture and equipment 3,192 2,421
Amortization of intangible assets 1,879 1,453
Provisions 1,008 (2,246)
Current and deferred income taxes 9,868 8,821
Share in net income of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associa (16) (100)
Non-controlling interest - 1
49,342 39,071
Operating activities:
Change in margin accounts (5,925) 1,186
Change in investments in securities 15,860 618
Change in receivables from repurchase agreements 10,942 (11,087)
Change in derivatives (assets) (53,103) (10,784)
Change in loan portfolio (net) (90,099) (78,046)
Change in benefits receivable from securitization transactions 939 29
Change in foreclosed assets (net) 1,796 1,160
Change in other operating assets (net) (18,137) 194
Change in deposits 55,395 138,955
Change in interbank loans and other loans from other entities (1,916) (29,164)
Change in payables from repurchase agreements 20,054 (14,311)
Change in collaterals sold or delivered in guarantee (2,482) (1,297)
Change in derivatives (liabilities) 47,798 6,283
Change in subordinated debt 7 (1,146)
Change in other operating liabilities 28,262 23,715
Change in hedging instruments (of hedged items related to opel
activities) (1,725) (2,681)
Income taxes paid (11,968) (11,518)
Net cash used in operating activities (4,316) 12,106
Investing activities:
Proceeds from disposals of property, furniture and equipment 172 67
Payments for the acquisition of property, furniture and equipmer (6,286) (13,183)
Proceeds from disposals of equity investments 259 -
Payments for the acquisition of equity investments - (121)
Collection of cash dividends 68 110
Proceeds from disposal of long-lived assets available-for-sale - 376
Payments for the acquisition of intangible assets (2,050) (1,300)
Net cash used in investing activities (7,837) (14,051)
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2016 2015

Financing activities:

Cash dividends paid $ (17,411) (15,800)
Net cash used in financing activities (17,411) (15,800)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 19,778 21,326
Cash flow adjustments from exchange rate fluctuations 16,869 4,586
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 150,102 124,190
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 186,749 $ 150,102

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWHPHQWYV RI| BFFRXQRAQ ZEWH VEH U IS DISG ML
Credit Institutions issued by the Mexican National Banking and Securities3sian, in conformity with
Articles 99, 101 and 102 of the Mexican Credit Institutions Law, oéggrand compulsory observance,
consistently applied, reflecting the cash flows of the Institution foy¢laes stated above, which were carried out
DQG PHDVXUHG DFFRUGLQJ WR VRXQG EDQNLQYWUDWWYHAHVLD QR VD I RIC

37KHVH FRQVROLGDWHG VWDWHPHQWYV RI| RFID'VLK HG R R &EpHEIHGIBBSS URYHG E)\
WKH VLIQDWRULHV ~

Eduardo Osuna Osuna Luis Ignacio de la Luz Dévalos
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Natalia Ortega Gémez José Homero Cal y Mayor Garcia
Director General de Auditoria Interna Director, Corporate Accounting
www.bancomer.com/informacioninversionistas www.cnbv.gob.mx

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financialr#gteme
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BBVA Bancomer, S.A., Institucion de Banca Mdltiple,

Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer and Subsidiaries

(Subsidiary of Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V.)

Av. Paseo de la Reforma 510, Col. Juarez, Ciudad de México, México, C.P. 06600

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
(In millions of Mexican pesos)

1.

Incorporation and corporate purpose

BBVA Bancomer, S.A., Institucién de Banca Mdltiple, Grupo Financiero BB\&Addmer and subsidiaries

WKH 3, QVWLWXWLRQ" LV D GLUHFW VXEVLG&BU\GRIlI § W BXSR KHQDIQFLR A B
*URXS" DQG LQGLUHFW VXEVLGLDU\ RI %DQFRWLBEDRDWHGE EW DLJADQ .
others, the Mexican Credit Institutions Law and general purpose regulatsoesiiby Mexican National
%DQNLQJ DQG 6HFXULWLHV &RPPLVVLRQ WKHRR&WRKPLYVAH®W U DIDQW DEY N
OH[LFR" RU 3% DQ[LFR" 7KH ,QVWLWXWLRQYDRI EDQYNY RE VOLFOW DYILW VHHY
out in accordance with such laws, which activities mainly include receiuimds, accepting loans, granting
credits, trading securities and derivatives and executing trust fund agrsem

The Commission, as regulator of financial institutions, is empowerediewréve financial information of
the Institution and can request changes thereto.

The main regulatory provisions require credit institutions to maintain emonm capital ratio in relation to
the credit and market risks of their operations, comply with certain lintissrespect to deposit acceptance,
debentures and other kinds of funding, which may be denominafectign currency, and establish
minimum limits for paid-in capital and capital reserves, which the Institutiopties with satisfactorily.

The Institution has no employees, except for the Chief Executive Officaori®&l is provided by BBVA
Bancomer Operadora, S.A. de C.V. and BBVA Bancomer Servicios Adminiesa8.A. de C.V., (related
parties) which provide management advisory and personnel servicesthendentract signed by the parties.

During 2016, the principal macroeconomic indicators underwent certaigetizamong them, accumulated
inflation in 2016 was 3.38% compared to 2.10% in 2015, and Gross NatiodaicP(GNP), which was
expected to increase by between 2.5% and 1.9%, increased by 0.6%.iARO1§iven the state of
international oil prices, towards the end of 2016, the peso suffered ficsigindlepreciation of 16.35
against the US dollar, going from $17.25 Mexican pesos per US dollar at thef@@4& do $20.62 Mexican
pesos per US dollar as of December 31, 2016.

Significant events 2016+

During a meeting of the Board of Directors on December 14, 2@ftéement was reached to appoint KPMG
Céardenas Dosal, S.C. as the external auditor of the Institution to penf@remdit of the consolidate

financial statements from 2017. This decision was taken in line wifoate governance guidelines
recommending periodic rotation of the external auditor, on the propbthe Audit Committee.

Explanation added for translation into English

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translatedefroriginal statements

prepared in Spanish into English for use outside of Mexico. Theuatiog policies used to prepare the

accompanying financial statements and used by the Institution are id@wcemwith the financial accounting

and reporting requirements prescribed by the Commission but not idance with Mexican Financial

5HSRUWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV 30)56° RU 31,)" DWQ® HDS HGAWINA UUIRP FHKUHV ID1QJ
reporting standards accepted in the country of use.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Monetary unit of the financial statementsFhe consolidated financial statements and notes as of December
31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years then ended include baladcearssactions in pesos of different
purchasing power.

Comprehensive incomeThis is composed of the net result of the year, plus other items reprgsegam

or loss from the same period, which, in accordance with the accgytiatices followed by the Institution,

DUH SUHVHQWHG GLUHFWO\ LQ VWRFNKRO®H R QTRHak&taBRNOSAdE VD V' W K |
the result from the valuation of cash flow hedges, and the result froversion of foreign subsidiaries and

the valuation effect of equity in subsidiaries.

Consolidation of financial statementsFhe accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Institution and those of its subsidiaries over edntrol is exercised, and its
securitized transactions trusts. Equity investments are measured actottimgquity method in conformity
with the accounting criteria prescribed by the Commission. All significaetdompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the consolidatesidiaries of the Institution are as follows:
Company Participation Location Activity

México
(before  Holding company of companies engaged il
United the sale of notes denominated in U.S.
Betese, S.A. de C.V. (before States of  dollars and other foreign currencies, as
BBVA Bancomer USA, Inc.)  99.90% America)  well as banking operations.

Opcibn Volcan, S.A. de C.V. 99.99% México Real estate leasing.

Desitel, Tecnologia y Sistema:
S.A. de C.V. 99.99% México Provider of computer data transfer service

Fideicomiso No. 29764-8,
Socio Liquidador de
Operaciones Financieras Offset and settle futures contracts on beha
Derivadas Integral 100.00% México of third parties and own position.

Develop, administer, market and operate i
shopping club, as well as markets by
Adquira México, S.A. de C.V. 50.00% México electronic means.

Granting of loans in accordance with the
terms of article 87-B of the General Law
Financiera Ayudamos, S.A. de on Credit Organizations and Auxiliary
C.V., SOFOM, ER 99.99% México Activities.

Unidad de Avaltios México,
S.A. de C.V. (Until 31
December 2015, since during
the financial year 2016 it was
sold). 99.99% México Appraisal services.

Fideicomiso Irrevocable para |

emisién de Certificados Issuance of certificates through the Mexic:
Bursétiles Numero 881 100.00% México Stock Market backed by mortgage loans

14



Company Participation Location Activity

Fideicomiso Irrevocable para |

emisién de Certificados Issuance of certificates through the Mexic:
Bursatiles Numero 989 100.00%  México Stock Market backed by mortgage loans
Financing for the acquisition of modular

Fideicomiso Empresarial drilling equipment, to subsequently gran
Irrevocable de it under finance lease with a purchase
Administracién y pago No. option to PEMEX Exploration and
F/1859 100.00%  México Production.

Fideicomiso Empresarial Financing for the acquisition of modular
Irrevocable de drilling equipment to subsequently grant
Administracion y Pago No. under finance lease with a purchase opti
F/1860 100.00%  México to PEMEX Exploration and Production.

Conversion of financial statements of subsidiaries in foreign currencle consolidate the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiary, such financial statemengsrdnated in the recording currency are
adjusted to comply with the accounting criteria prescribed by the Commissie financial statements are
then converted to Mexican pesos, based on the following methodology:

- Foreign operatios whose recording and functional currency are the same convert their flnancia
statements using the following exchange rates:1) the closing rate fasgbts and liabilities and 2) the
KLVWRULFDO UDWH IRU VWRFNKROGHUV D@ TRUWY HDYHI X HW K IF RMD/AWW
H[SHQVHV 7KH HIIHFWV RI FRQYHUVLR® DUH UHFRUGHG LQ VWRFN

The recording and functional currency of the foreign transaction arekttienge rates used in the different
conversion processes are as follows:

Exchange rate to Exchange rate to

convert assets and convert net results
liabilities from from functional and
functional and recording currency to

Recording and recording currency to Mexican pesos
Entity functional currency Mexican pesos
Betese, S.A. (before BBVA Bancomer $17.2487 Mexican $15.8662 Mexican
USA, Inc.) U.S. Dollars pesos pesos

7KH ,QVWLWXWLRQYV IXQFWLRQDO FXUUH@EWXMAMRBVeERENFTDEQ SHVR *
subsidiary abroad whose functional currency is not the Mexican peso, fiioiseekto foreign currency

conversion risk. Furthermore, monetary assets and liabilities have beentednimadifferent currencies,

principally the US dollar and the euro, and there is an exposure to exchtemattributable to commercial

operations and the supply of goods and services over the normal copus@ess.

Principal differences between the consolidated financial statements and the financial statements presented
to BBVA (unaudited) £In conformity with article 182 of the Provisions, the main differenetaéen the
Provisions and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), whickeaxt¢aiprepare the

consolidated financial statements of BBVA (holding company), are as follows:

a) Effects of inflation: Under IFRS, the effects of inflation are recognizechwie economic
environment of a country is considered to be highly inflationary. Giveinflation rates in Mexico
over recent years, the effects derived from the recognition of inflatider the criteria of the
Commission up through 2007 are eliminated under IFRS.

15



b) Loan loss reserves: Under IFRS, the loan portfolio should be analyzed toidettre credit risk to
which the Institution is exposed by estimating the need for reservesdoiogpairments in value.
Therefore, internal corporate criteria must be used to classify risks in theecoiadrportfolio; these
criteria differ from those established by the Commission for the deternmiredtloan loss reserves.

c) Variations in assumptions for labor obligations: Under IFRS, the variatiassimptions due to
increases or reductions in the current value of the obligations or due to wariattbe fair value of
assets, ¥ H DSSOLHG DJDLQVW VWRFNKROGHUVY HTXP®WLVYKRQHDV WK
establishes that such variances should be recognized directly to results.

For further information on the monetary effects of these differepéesse consult
www.bancomer.com/informacioninversionistas.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies of the Institution, which are in conformity Whighaccounting criteria of the General
5HIXODWLRQV $SSOLFDEOH WR &UH G Lsdfibe@ MMhe BoXividsRQ(the WKH 35HJXOL
S$FFRXQWLQJ &ULWHULD” ™ D Q Guipdseiiraniewovkfa findrdi@ irdovmaiiod Heguire) D O

that management makes certain estimates and use certain assumptions to détexalnation of certain

items included in the consolidated financial statements and make the requitesudés to be included

therein. While the estimates and assumptions used may differ from tiairefsults, management believes

they were appropriate under the circumstances.

In conformity with Accounting Criterion A-1, Basic scheme of the collectigecounting criteria applicable to

FUHGLW LQVWLWXWLRQV LVVXHG E\ WKH \EKFDRPQ \EVH. E Qag BN QQW)\W & W X
by the Mexican Financial Reporting Standards Boat&.,1,)" H[FHSW ZKHQ LQ WKH &RPPLVVL
a specific regulation or Accounting Criterion must be applied in order toppptely reflect the specialized

operations carried out by the Company.

The regulations of the Commission referred to in the preceding panesgaforth standards for the
recognition, valuation, presentation and, if applicable, disclosure, relategciicspeadings of the
consolidated financial statements, as well as the standards applicable to their preparation

In this regard, the Commission clarifies that the application of accountiagasror the concept of
supplemental application, will not apply in the case of transactions wWhjaxpress provision of law, are not
permitted or are prohibited or, moreover, are not expressly authorized.

The following is a description of the principal accounting policies followedhéyristitution:

Changes in accounting policiex

&KDQJHV LQ WKH &RPPLVVLRQYV $FFRXQWLQJ &ULWHULD
Amendments to the accounting criteria issued by the Commission

On November 9, 2015, various amendments to the accounting critedeedit institutions were published in
the Federal Official Gazette. The purpose of these amendments is to mageetbsany adjustments to the
accounting criteria for credit institutions for the operations they parfor order to have reliable financial
information. These amendments went into effect on January 1, 2016.

The most significant changes are described below:

a. Accounting Criterion C-5Consolidation of special purpose entitigseliminated.

b. The following standards are incorporated into &&® P P L V \atdeu@tihyg criteria: NIF a8,

Obligations Associated with the Retirement of Property, Plant and EquipamehNIF C-21,Joint
Arrangementsgue to the enactment of such standards by the CINIF.
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For purposes of consolidated financial statements, the consolidation guifi&ieeB38, Combined
or consolidated financial statemerigsnot required to be applied with regard to special purpose
entites 363(° FUHDWHG SULR Wv&V/RhietDoQriXrdl Was exercised.

Overdrafts in customer checking accounts which do not have a lanedf for such purposes, will be
classified as past-due borrowings and an allowance for the total amdbatoserdraft must be
established simultaneously with such classification, at the time the evenplates

The net asset for defined benefits to employees must be presented on tbe &ad@h under the
KHDGLQJ RI 32WKHU DVVHWV’

The applicable Banxico regulation must be applied to classify the purchase of farawgmcies that
DUH QRW FRQVLGHUHG GHULYDWLYHV DV 3)XQGYV DYDLODEOH"

A net credit balance of offsetting foreign currencies to be received and foreigmcies to be
delivered must be pre@WHG XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ RI 32WKHU DFFRXQWYVY SD

If an item of restricted funds available has a negative balance, such itemrempuessdnted under the
KHDGLQJ RI 32WKHU DFFRXQWY SD\DEOH"~ 3UG YKRBWYOD DK I A B Vi
not considered for such presentation.

7KH GHILQLWLRQ RI1 37UDQVDFWLR Q2HriRasimMéhts InFeBFFaRXIQWLQJ &ULW
Accounting Criterion B5, Derivatives and Hedge Transactiqims modified.

7KH GHILQLWLRQV RI 3% RUURZHU ~ 3$SSUDLVDQVBHUFHWWQGH GXD U
3RUWIROLR  3$VVLJQPHQW RI &UHGabV 51 HEWMAR U RIRQWIRGLL\G W LR\
S9HQGRU RI 'LVFRXQWHG 5HFHLYDEOHV  3)LQDWHG 5§ B EWREQ IV~
3/LQH Rl &UHGLW  3*'LVFRXQW 7UDQVDFWLRQ  38SEHFRI@WSHSD\PHC
5HJLPH" DQG 3+RXVLQJ 6XEDFFRXQW’ D UMVHQE RQSFUEIVHG LQWR |

7KH GHILQLWLRQ RI 35HQHZDO’ LV P R6LokniPaGtfdliQtohbw EoXs@IsY LQJ & UL W
it as a transaction in which the loan balance is settled partially or totatlygthan increase in the

total amount of the loan, or using the proceeds derived from ano#imecdntracted with the same

entity, involving either the same debtor, a joint obligor of such detat@mother party who, due to

equity relationships, represents common risks.

S0RUWJIRDBYV ™ DUH GH lta@HrEenDed fav keRadeling or improvement of the home

which are backed by the shvQJV LQ WKH ERUURZHUTV KRXVLQUOWHDH¥®RX QW
granted by a development bank or a public trust established by the FederalrnBaeior economic
development.

Loans for financial factoring, discount and credit right assignmentattéioss are incorporated in the
GHILQLWLRQ RI 3&RPPHUFLDO /RDQV’

A loanis not considered as renewed for any borrowings made during théveffisem of a pre-
established line of credit, provided that the borrower has settled the total amoenpafthents that
are due and payable under the original conditions.

When borrowings made under a line of credit are restructured or renewegemagntly from the line
of credit which supports them, they must be assessed in accordantieevatfaracteristics and
conditions applicable to the restructured or renewed borrowing or bogswi

When as a result of such evaluation it is concluded that one or more b@saramted under a line of
credit should be transferred to non-performing portfolio due to the effédntio restructuring or
renewal and such borrowings, individually or collectively, represent at least #ib# total
outstanding balance of the line of credit at the date of the restructuniegewal, such balance, as
well as subsequent borrowings, must be transferred to non-peréppwitfolio as long as there is no
evidence of sustained payment of the borrowings that originated thestramabn-performing
portfolio, and the total borrowings granted under the line of credit fulfileddue and payable
obligations at the date of transfer to performing portfolio.
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The aforementioned percentage is applicable as of January 1, 2016, and willdesl ted30% for the
year 2017, and 25% for the year 2018 and thereafter.

In the case of loans acquired from INFONAVIT or the FOVISSSTE, where than obligation to
maintain the original terms that the aforementioned agencies contractatenlithrrowers, sustained
payment of the loan is deemed to exist when the borrower has 8atdsd the total due and payable
amount of principal and interest of at least one repayment for loans undedihar®Repayment
Regime (ROA) and three repayments for loans under the Special Rep&cheme (REA).

For restructurings of loans with periodic payments of principal and intenestanrepayments are less
than or equal to 60 days in which the periodicity of payment is moddistiorter periods, the number
of repayments equivalent to three consecutive repayments under thalddgh payment scheme
must be considered.

Assumptions are established to consider that sustained payment existséoloans with a single
payment of principal at maturity, regardless of whether the payment afghieperiodic or at
maturity, as follows:

i The borrower must have paid at least 20% of the original loan amount ahéheftine
restructuring or renewal, or,

ii. The amount of the accrued interest must have been paid in accordance wityntieatp
scheme for the respective restructuring or renewal at a term of 90 days.

With regard to consolidated loans, if two or more loans originated thefeérato non-performing
portfolio of the total balance of the consolidated loan, to determine the repayewgrited to
demonstrate sustained payment, the original loan payment scheme whoseerepaye equal to the
longest repayment period must be considered. Previously the practice wasttiegieatment for the
worst of the loans to the total balance of the restructuring or renewal.

Evidence must be made available to the Commission when demonstrataigesipayment to
substantiate that the borrower has the appropriate payment capacity at the tiestrticturing or
renewal is performed, so as to meet the new loan conditions.

Advance payment of installments on restructured or renewed iifflesent from those with a single

payment of principal at maturity, regardless of whether the interest is paidipally or at maturity,

does not constitute sustained payment. This is the case with repayfrrestsustured or renewed

ORDQV ZKLFK DUH SDLG EHIRUH WKH FDOHQGWW VGHODW FHRIVXH. Y CBGHIQ
greater than 60 calendar days have elapsed.

The extension of the loan term is incorporated as a restructuring event.

The respective standards for the recognition and valuation of finaaciatihg, discounting and credit
right assignment transactions are included.

Commissions and fees different from those collected for granting theviddoe recognized in results
of the year on the date that they are accrued, and if part or all of theeratisiu received for the
collection of the respective commission or fee is received before the acciualre$pective income,
such advance must be recognized as a liability.

The item stating that overdrafts in customer checking accounts shodddsted as non-performing
portfolio is eliminated.
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aa.

bb.

CC.

dd.

ee.

ff.

99.

Repayments which have not been fully settled under the originally aigmeasl and are 90 days or
more in arrears for acquired loans from the INFONAVIT or the FOVISS8Tter the REA or ROA
payment regimes, as well as loans made to individuals for the remodelingrovément of the home

fornon-VSHFXODWLYH SXUSRVHV ZKLFK DUH UFEFRDANHIY K\RWKHOQUDYLQJV

subaccount, will be considered as non-performing portfolio.

The transfer to non-performing portfolio of the loans referred thdarpreceding point will be subject
to the exceptional deadline of 180 or more days in arrears as of ttendaléch:

i The loan resources are used for the purpose for which they wetedjran

ii. The borrower begins a new employment relationship with a new eatplay

iii. The partial repayment was received. The exception under these circumstances will be
applicable provided that it refers to loans under the ROA scheme, and ¢hetpajments
made during such period represents at least 5% of the repayment agreement.

Loans with a single payment of principal at maturity, regardless oheh#te interest is paid
periodically or at maturity, shall be classifiesiren-performing portfolio as long as there is no
evidence of sustained payment.

Loans granted under a new line of credit, revolving or otherwisiehvelne restructured or renewed at
any time, may remain in performing portfolio provided that there arengls to justify the payment
capacity of the debtor. Furthermore, the borrower must have:

i Settled the total amount of due and payable interest;
ii. Settled all of the payments for which he is liable under the terme abtfitract at the date of
the restructuring or renewal.

When borrowings made under a line of credit are restructured or renewperieéntly from the line
of credit that supports them, they must be assessed in accordance whtdr#uteristics and
conditions applicable to the restructured or renewed borrowing or bagswi

When as a result of such assessment it is concluded that one or movergsgranted under a line
of credit should be transferred to non-performing portfolio due to faeteff a restructuring or
renewal, and such borrowings, individually or collectively, represent at le#soPthe total
outstanding balance of the line of credit at the date of the restructuniegeaval, such balance,
together with its subsequent borrowings, must be transferred tpenforming portfolio as long as
there is no evidence of sustained payment on the borrowings wigatated the transfer to non-
performing portfolio, and the total of the borrowérgranted under the line of credit have fulfilled the
due and payable obligations at the date of the transfer to performifgjipor

The requirement that the borrower must have paid the total amount of actrredtiat the date of
renewal or restructuring to consider that a loan remains within perfgnpairtfolio will be considered
as fulfilled when after the interest accrued at the final cutoff date has been p&dntleéapsed
between such date and the restructuring or renewal does not exceed thef lesi$erf the elapsed
payment period or 90 days.

Performing loans with periodic partial payments of principal and interesarhagstructured or
renewed more than once may remain in performing portfolieiktiare elements to justify the
payment capacity of the debtor. It is specified that in the case of commercialdoahnlements must
be duly documented and placed in the loan file.

If different loans granted by the same entity to the same borroereoasolidated in a restructuring or
renewal, each of the consolidated loans must be analyzed as if they weietuesdror renewed
separately and, if as a result of such analysis it is concluded that oweeeoofrsuch loans would have
been transferred to non-performing portfolio due to the effectabf sestructuring or renewal, then the
total balance of the consolidated loan must be transferred to non-perfqronifadio.

With regard to presentation standards in the balance sheet and the staténcemefit is established
that:
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i. Housing loans acquired from INFONAVIT or FOVISSSTE must be segregathih wie
performing portfolio, into ordinary portfolio and extended portfolio.
ii. The amount of loans for financial factoring, discount and credit rightsassig transactions
shall be presented net of the respective appraisal percentage guarantee.
iii. Any commissions received before the accrual of the respective revenue girabdrted under
WKH KHDGLQJ 3'HIHUUHG FUHGLWY DQG DGYDQFH FROOHFWLR(
iv. The financial revenue accrued in financial factoring, discount and credit aiggitnment
transactions shall be considered as interest income.

With regard to disclosure standards, new requirements are incorpaiatbds:

i Breakdown of the restricted performing portfolio and unrestricted angbadorming portfolio
for the residential and non-residential portfolio, low income portfolio, datieg or
improvement secured by the housing subaccount and loans adgumedNFONAVIT or
FOVISSSTE, segregated into ordinary portfolio and extended portfolio.

ii. Total amount and number of loans acquired from INFONAVIT or FOVISSSatsferred to
non-performing portfolio, as well as the total amount of loans that ve¢rteamsferred to non-
performing portfolio, segregated into loans that the entity acquiredIf-ONAVIT or
FOVISSSTE, under the respective REA or ROA payment regimes, and laawsdjto
individuals for remodeling or home improvement for non-speculgtivposes, which are
EDFNHG E\ WKH VDYLQJY RI WKH ERUURZHUYVY KRXVLQJ VXEDF|

iii. Principal characteristics of the loans acquired from INFONAVIT or FOVISSSTE, diegcab
least those related to their classification as extended portfolio, ROA and REAgtogih
those related to the assignment of such loans.

iv. Description of the obligation and rights held by INFONAVIT and FOVISSSTE in relagion
the portfolio acquired by the entity.

V. Identification by type of loan for the residential and non-residential portfoliincome
portfolio, remodeling or improvement guaranteed by the housinacsount, and loans
acquired from INFONAVIT or FOVISSSTE of the balance of tbe-performing portfolio as
of the date on which it was classified as such, in the following terms:Xfrmn180 calendar
days, from 181 to 365 calendar days, from 366 calendar dayse tgears, and more than two
years in non-performing portfolio.

Vi. Total amount of housing loans backed by the housing subacceoakenidown into performing
and non-performing portfolio and specifying the percentage whiepresents of the total
housing loans.

vii.  Total accumulated amount of the restructuring or renewal by type ofdiffementiating
between those originated in the exercise of consolidated loans transferregperfooming
portfolio as the result of a restructuring or renewal, from those reseddtnans to which the
criteria for the transfer to non-performing portfolio were not applied.

Accounting Criterion BZ, Foreclosed Assetsstablishes that in the event that the valuation of assets at
fair valueis made through an appraisal, the latter must comply with the requirements estdhlished
the CNBYV for providers of bank appraisal services.

Accounting Criterion 2, Stock Market Transactionelarifies that in the case of stock market

instruments executed and recognized in the consolidated financial statemetat paiouary 1, 2009, it
will not be necessary to reevaluate the transfer of recognized financial@#sets such date.
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In this regard, the principal effects that this exception might haveanfsiancial statements should

be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as well as the effeadtatbn adjustments on

the profits on the remaind®® | WKH DVVLIJQHH UHFRJQL]JHG LQ UKMBVRDWNKHRU LC
asset or liability recognized for administration of transferred financial assets

kk.  The definitionsR | dntRArrangement 3-RL QW &&icrdvddrmated, and the definitions of
3$VVRFLDWH" 3&RQWURO’™ 3+ROGLQJ &RPSDQ\WEHNVNIQ@QIGFDQW ,QI10
36 X E V L @re hbidified in Accounting Criterion C-Related Parties

Individuals or business entities which, directly or indise¢hrough one or more intermediaries exert
significant influence on, are significantly influenced by, oruarder significant influence of the entity, as
well as joint arrangements in which the entity participatesnaw considered to be related parties.

Il. The disclosure requirements contained in Accounting CriterionReted Partiesare extended to
joint arrangements

mm. As an amendment to Accounting CriterioMnformation by Segmentthe purchase and sale of
foreign currency is incorporated within the Treasury and investnaegwilg operations segment.

nn.  Different modifications are made to the presentation of the balance sheet to incdgoogtening of
the performing and non-performing home loan portfolio in tilevieng segments: residential and
non-residential, low income, loans acquired from INFONAVIT or FOVISSSTE, emddeling and
improvement with collateral granted by the development bank or public trusts.

00. The requirement is establishedto prel QW RQ WKH EDODQFH VKHHW DV D OLDELOL
JOREDO GHSRVLWYV DFFRXQW"~ WKH SULQFLS IROQRWG KDMHHL HFB\DW R
maturity or, when they do, they are renewed automatically, as wél asahsfers of expired or
unclaimed investments referred to in article 61 of the Credit Institutiaws

pp. The KHD G L @nkaséremensf GHILQHG EHQHILWY WR HPSOR\HHV™ LV DGGHG
the balance sheet, as a result of the enactment of NiFEIDWloyee Benefits

qq9. 7KH KHDGLQJ 3&ROODWHUDO JUDQWHG ™ LV LQFRQ PRIPRW B Q EXWP WK
accounts.

. Insurance and bonding, technical assistance expenses, maintenarsesxfees different from those
paid to the IPAB and consumables and fixtures should be included itatbent of income.

ss. 7KH VWDWHPHQW RI FKDQJHV LQ VW Riehskirermeai definédtbanxflisV VKR X O C
to employees as part of changes inherent to the recognition of compreliecme, as a result of the
enactment of NIF D-Z:mployee Benefits.

The adoption of th O IRUHPHQWLRQHG DFFRXQWLQJ FULWHULD GQGBVQRW KDYH
consolidated financial statements.

On July 23, 2015, the Federal Official Gazette published an amendment to thetiagconiteria applicable

to market participants to derivative contracts listed in stock markets. Thiglaraat establishes that the

derivatives markets and traders that participate in the markets for listed derivatitrastsshould maintain

their accounting in accordance with the applicable rules. For such pucf@as&ghouses and settlement
SDUWQHUV ZKLFK SDUWLFLSDWH LQ WKH GHULPFRXOQYWHMN F RQUWWBRWD F
&OHDULQJKRXVHY ~ DQG 3$FFRXQWLQJ &ULWHAKHDY HR D PBHHQ\GAP B!  RHQ IH B
into effect on the day after their publication.
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Changes in MFRS issued by the CINIF applicable to the Institution -

NIF D-3, Employee Benefits
Improvements to NIF 2016

NIF D-3, Employee BenefitsWhen there is a precedent of making payments for terminatioe tdlibr
relationship, such payments must be accounted for as postemployment benefiermore, the prior service
cost, plan amendments, personnel cuts, and the gains and lossad¥esmoed settlements such as severance
payments which qualify as termination benefits, are recognized in resoiediately. In contrast, the
actuarial gains and losses resulting from the re-measurements Bhaeltbgnized in the OCI and recycled
to the (comprehensive) statement of income over the average labor lifeeSuelasurements derive from a
comparison of the defined benefits obligations and the plan assets deteahiime=dlose of the year with the
amounts projected at the beginning of the period for the currentAmather significant change consists of
associating the discount rate of the benefits obligation with a rates based -gualith corporate bonds in a
deep market, or, in their absence, using government bond rates. Thesategmvill be used to calculate the
projection of the plan assets (net rate).

The principal modifications derived from the application of this new NIFDR-Q WKH )LQDQFLDO *URXSY
financial information are as follows:

X Discount rate for liabilities - Defined Benefits Obligation (OBD)

The discount rate to calculate the OBD shall be determined based on the market ratejoélitigh
corporate bonds, provided that there is a deep market for such Bihedswise, the market rate of the
bonds issued by the federal government must be used.

X Recognition of actuarial gains and losses

- The use of the corredor is eliminated for the deferral of actuarial gainessed.
- The accumulated balance of retained earnings and accumulated losses as oeDatestil5
ZLOO EH UHFRJQL]JHG DV SDUW RI VWRFNKROGHUVY HTXLW\ DQ
- Any actuarial gains and losses generated as of January 1, 2016 will be treated as r
measurementsf defined benefits to employees, andw O EH UHFRJQL]J]HG LQ VWRFNKI
and in liabilities.

X Amortization of actuarial gains and losses

- 7KH DFWXDULDO JDLQV DQG ORVVHV UHFRJERQHBGWR) WHWRFONK R
the Remaining Service Life of the Plan.

X Expected return on plan assets

- The expected return on the plan assets will be estimated with the discount ratéadfilities
instead of the expected rate of return for the fund.

Due to the enactment of the NIF D-3, on December 31, 2015, the Cdomissaied various transitory
DUWLFOHV WR WKH 35HVROXWLRQ DPHQGLQJ WKHYHQSXD®L 8 KR ® LLVQ RA
Federal Official Gazette on November 9, 2015.

These transitory articles establish that credit institutions may recognize the entire bals@laceamendments
SDVW VHUYLFH DQG WKH DF F XimrécOybisd#Hy@ing an®|0sgek for BrtitidsKhdt &edD Q TV
the corredor approach gradually at the latest on December 31 of each yea

If the option is taknto gradually apply the aforementioned balances, the recognitsrcbfbalances should

begin in the year 2016, recognizing 20% in that year and another 288¢hirof the subsequent years, until
reaching 100% within a maximum term of five years.
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The Institution did not opt for deferred payment within the period allowatido ommission.

The re-measurements of gains and lossebe defined benefits plan which should be recognized at the end

of each period, together with their respective recycling to results of thespeaitd be calculated on the total

DPRXQW RI WKH SODQTV JDLQV RU ORVVBDVL QLN HRU PR YWKH/ D3 DXNVI WK R V
recognized on the balance sheet.

By the same token, if all or part of the residual effect is recognizeddottfe established deadlines, the
Commission must be informed within the 30 calendar days followiaglate on which the respective
accounting entry is made. Entities may perform such recognitiorvanad, provided that at least 20% or the
total residual amount is recognized in the respective year.

Credit institutions that apply any of the aforementioned options shkiiedtbse the adjustments derived from
applying the option in question in the public financial reporting communicatmrthe years 2016 and up to
that in which the gradual recognition of the aforementioned effectsncluded.

Improvements to NIF 2016:
Improvements generating accounting changes -

NIF B-7, Business AcquisitionaClarifies that the acquisition and/or merger of entities under common
control, and the acquisition of noncontrolling equity or the sale withoimga®ntrol of the subsidiary, are
outside the scope of this NIF, regardless of how the amount of the catisidevas determined.

NIF C-1, Cash and Cash Equivaleraad NIF B2, Statement of cash flowsModified to consider foreign
currency as cash and not as cash equivalents. Clarifies that both thendisalsequent valuation of cash
equivalents must be at fair value.

Bulletin C-2, Financial Instruments and Document of Amendments to BulletintC-2

a) The definition of financial instruments available-for-sale is modiftediarify that they are those in
which investment is made from time to time with the intention oitgathem over the medium-term
prior to maturity, so as to obtain profits based on changes in market aatliept only through their
related returns

b) Criteria for classifying a financial instrument as available-for-sale is clarifipbtabit such
classification when i) the intention is to hold it for an indefinite period, iigtitéy is willing to sell
the financial instrument, iii) it has a sale or redemption option on the insttuamal iv) the issuer of
the instrument has the right to liquidate the financial instrument at an amount siglyificaver than
its amortized cost.

The concept of acquisition costs is eliminated and the definition of transaostsis incorporated.

c) The reversal of impairment losses from financial instruments held toityasuallowed, in the net
income or loss for the period.

NIF C-7, Investments in Associates, Joint Ventures and Other Permanent Investistatslishes that
contributions in kind should be recognized at the fair value that was negdtéteskn owners or
shareholders, unless they are the result of debt capitalization, in whidcheas@ould be recognized for the
capitalized amount.

Bulletin C-10,Financial Derivatives and Hedge Transactions-
a) The method to be used to measure the effectiveness should be defileddshould be evaluated at

the beginning of the hedge, in the following periods and at the date fifitimcial statements.
b) Clarifies how to designate a primary position.
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c) The accounting for the transaction costs of a financial derivative is modifieelrecognized directly
in the net income or loss of the period at acquisition, and not defedeah@nrtized during its
effective term.

d) Clarifications are made on the recognition of embedded derivatives.

The following improvements were issued which do not generate accgahi@nges:

NIF C-19, Financial Instruments Payable (FIP)CGlarifications are made with regard to: i) the definition of
transaction costs, ii) when amortization of the transaction costs shoulcahmiized, iii) the entity should
demonstrate, as support for its accounting policy, that it complies with tid&ioas for designating a
financial liability at fair value through net income or loss, and iv) disclasiagyain or loss when an FIP is
derecognized and the fair values of significant long-term fixed-rate liabilities.efomdine, an appendix is
incorporated as support in the determination of the effective interest rate.

NIF C-20, Financial Instruments ReceivablChanges are incorporated to clarify and explain various
concepts due to the issuance of the new NIF related to financial instrumetite &indl issuance of IFRS 9,
Financial InstrumentsThe most important of these include: transaction costs and related amartizatio
effective interest rate, impairment, foreign-currency instruments, reclassificatiwadn fair value debt
instruments and financial instruments receivable, the time value Vialengy and disclosure of qualitative
and quantitative information.

The adoption of the aforementioned guidance did not haRedaV HULD O HIIHFW digolbldédd ,Q VW LW X
financial statements.

Changes in accounting estimates applicable in 2015
Methodology for the determination of the allowance for loan losses applicabledortbemer loan portfolio

On August 27, 2015, the Commission issued a Resolution which modifiesa¥isions for Credit
Institutions and results in various changes to the methodology forfgilagsionsumer loan portfolio in order
to adopt an expected loss model for such portfolio, as well as for cgueiantees.

For such consumer loans, the Commission believes it advisable to recogmjaartdrgee schemes known as
pari passu, or first losses, for such portfolio classification in oodelirhinate regulatory inconsistencies.

This change in estimate did not have a material efR@ W KH , Q tovnsbldareifinahGdl statements as
of December 31, 2015.

Methodology for the determination of the allowance for loan losses applicable ®doamted under the
Commercial Bankruptcies Law

On August 27, 2015, the Commission issued a Resolution which modifiesavigi®ns for Credit
Institutions, indicating the term during which credit institutions mayiocaa to use the methodology for the
allowance for expected losses due to credit risks related to loans granterbteelos declared commercially
bankrupt with a prior restructuring plan. This Resolution establishesrthatan agreement is adopted
between the borrower and the recognized lenders, or the bankrupheytmfrrower is determined in
accordance with the Commercial Bankruptcies Law, such methodologydanger be applied.

Authorization may be requested from the Commission to continue tiisimgethodology to determine
allowances for expected losses for loans granted to borrowers desdanatercially bankrupt with a prior
restructuring plan for a term not to exceed six months from the adaftibe agreement.

7KLY FKDQJH LQ HVWLPDWH GLG QRW KDYH D PDWG@DQB DD NHW /YWRHP M
of December 31, 2015.
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Special accounting criteria applicable in 2016
Support for loans to Petroleos Mexicanos 3 (0 (;~

Through Document No. P021/2016 of May 2, 2016 and in relatitiretsystemic circumstances that arose as
a result of the budgetary adjustments to which PEMEX has beeststig Commission considers that this
situation is temporary and therefore authorized the application of special acgazritéria to the following
items:

Consumer and housing loans.

Commercial loans granted to individuals and entities with annual sales of le$28tn 2015.
Entities with domiciles in Campeche, Chiapas, Tabasco, Tamaulipas and Veracruz.
Commercial loans with annual sales of less $250in 2015 and with revenues that are primarily
derived from the domestic oil sector.

+H +H H +H

For accounting purposes, all the above cases must be classified as valid whaoetipegod is extended or
granted.

Support for borrowers is comprised of the following:

¥ Establish support programs to defer payments, which must not exeeadginal period by more than
12 monthsPrograms must be applied no later than December 31, 2016.

¥ Under the auspices of this Document, these transactions will not be considered asiiagtruct
processes or renewals.

¥ Loans that are eligible to participate in this program must be classified as vaatéamting
purposes at the date of execution, in conformity with paragtaplh Criterion B-6, 3.0an Portfolio’,
of the Provisions issued by the Commission.

The special accounting criteria applicable to the Institution, by loan type, aflas fo

¥ Loans with a%ingle principal payment at maturity and periodic interest payments, as well &s loan
with a single payment of principal and interest at maturityhich are restructured or renewedl|
not be considered as part of the non-performing portfolio according toraahnd® of Criterion B-6,
3 oan Portfolio”

¥ Loans with periodic principal and interest paymeritthat are restructured or renewed shall be
considered as performing when this act takes piaiteout applying the terms of paragraf@and
84 of Criterion B-6, 3.0an Portfolio”

¥ Loans granted under the auspices of a creditihether revolving or otherwisehich are
restructured or renewgshall not be considered as part of non-performing portfolio in conformiity
paragraph80 and81 of Criterion B-  [2oan Portfolio’

¥ The loans referred to in the preceding items shall not be classified as restractumeling to the
terms of paragraptO of Criterion B-  %oan Portfolio”

Accordingly, at December 31, 2016, the performing portfolio would have destdasthe amount of $982,
because the balances of the loans that received support would haetabsiied in thexonperforming
portfolio had they not been deferred. The effect on results derivedtimareation of allowances for loan
losses would have been approximately $430. The Delinquency Rate2 5 ‘would have generated an
effect of 10 basis points, while the effect on the Capitalization Rétia& $ 3would have been insignificant.

The total balance, by loan typef loans with balances at December 31, 2016, which will be deferredtses of
date on which program application effects arise, is indicated below

Item Number of Accounts Balance
Commercial portfolio 4 $ 32
Mortgage portfolio 1,635 935
Credit card 273 14
Non-revolving consumer 3,828 439
SME 171 148
Total 5911 $ 1,568
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Special accounting criteria applicable in 2015

Special accounting criteria applicable to the loans subject to the support reduttinghe floods caused by
the hurricane33DWULFLD’

Support offered in connection with natural disasters

In Official Notice No. P-071/2015 dated November 9, 2015, the Commiasiborized credit institutions to

apply special accounting criteria in order to support customers who iesidevhose income is sourced in

SODFHVY WKDW KDYH EHHQ OBWH B ODHMX®O WG RYDXWHUFPRHY3DWULFLD ™ DQ
ensure stability. It also indicates that the benefits must be documented \&idhiiayls after the date of the

incident.

The application of the support to the borrowers consists of the part@bbdeferral of payment of principal

and/or interest for up to three months, provided that the borroweesteen classified for accounting

purposes as performing at the date of the incident, as established in PaBagfr&glcounting Criterion B
30an3RUWIROLR™ RI WKH 5HIXODWLRQV LVVXHG E\ WKH &RPPLVVLRQ

The special accounting criteria applicable to the Institution, by type of lcaasdollows:

/IRDQV ZLWK 3D VLQJOH SD\PHQW RI SULGRWYSY ® IDIM) WBIWNVWWDRGGORD
VLQJOH SD\PHQW RI SULQFLSDO DQG LQWHUHYWGD WV LFKDOV@RWWERH ZKLF
considered as non-performing portfolio in accordance with paragfaphGriterionB- 3/RDQ 3RUWIROLR’

/IRDQV ZLWK 3SHULRGLF SD\PHQWYV RI SULQFLSDWHDEA BHG WHUY HEWHW = ZK
considered as performing at the time such event takes place, without teeapyy the requirements of
paragraphs 57 and 59 of CriterionB3/RDQ 3RUWIROLR’

Loans classified as revolving from the start, which are restructured or renelledt be considered as non-
performing portfolio under paragraph 61 of CriterionB3/RDQ 3RUWIROLR’

The aforementioned loans will not be considered as restructured in accordangaragttaph 26 of Criterion
B- Boan3RUWIROLR’

Without the relief offered by the special accounting criteria, the perfornairifpfio reported in the balance
sheet would have been reduced g $vhile the allowance for loan losses would have increased by
approximately$1, due to the fact that loans receiving support would have been classifiea-performing
portfolio if the deferral had not been applied.

Below we detail, by type of loan, the amount subject to deferral and the tatahtof the loans:

Total amount of the
Type of portfolio No. of Cases Amount deferred loan

Mortgage loans 17 1 8 27

Reclassificatiors - At December 31, 2015, the consolidated balance sheet was reclassified to reflect the
presentation utilized for the following headings of the consolidateddialastatements at December 31,
2016:

- From Demand deposits for the amount of $2,501, to tHmactive global deposits account

- From Deposits, for the amount 0$5446 to the Vther payablesaccount, for receivable credit card
balances.
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The 2015 consolidated cash flow statement was modified to reflect these realisss.

Recognition of the effects of the inflation in the financial statement8eginning January 1, 2008, the

Institution discontinued recognition of the effects of inflation, in confty with the guidance in NIF B-10.

Through December 31, 2007, such recognition resulted maimflationary gains or losses on non-

monetary and monetary items, which are presented in the consolidated figtatei@ents as an increase or
GHFUHDVH LQ VWRFNKROGHUVY HTXLW\ DFFRXQWY DQG DOVR LQ QRQ

The accumulated inflation of the three years prior to 2016 and 2@Esumed through the value of the
Investment Units (UDI), is 10.39% and 12.34%, respectively, for wigiakon the economic environment in
both years is classified as noninflationary. As discussed previouslgutinglative effects of inflation up to
December 31, 2007 are maintained in the accounting records ofrthaidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The inflation percentages for the years ended December 31, 2056a2@ 2014 were 3.38%, 2.10% and
4.18%, respectively; therefore, the economic environment qualifies as non-isdtgtiorall of these years.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitied=inancial assets and financial liabilities may be offset
in such a way that the debit or credit balance, as the case may be, is prestmezbosolidated balance
sheet, if and only if, there is a contractual right to offset the amoegdgnized and the intention to settle the
net amount, or to realize the asset and cancel the liability simultaneously.

Funds available -Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at nominal value, except faargihgald coins,
which are stated at their fair value at each period-end. Cash held in foreigmcgus valued at the exchange
rate published at year end by the Central Bank of Mexico.

The foreign currencies acquired whose settlement is agreed at a date after the coofighetipanrchase and
sale transaction will be recognized at such transaction date as restricted funds at@itdgtequrrencies to

be received), whereas the foreign currencies sold will be recorded ésiseisent of funds available

(foreign currencies to be delivered). The counterparty must be a settlenemtaedher credit or debit, as
the case may be. This heading also includes interbank loan transacterts atga term of less than or equal
to three business days, as well as other funds available, such asaratessgunds and liquid notes and
deposits with Central Bank of Mexicthe latter include the monetary regulation deposits that the Institution
must maintain according to the provisions issued by the Bank atMexregulate money market liquidity.

Margin accounts-The margin accounts granted in cash (and in other assets equivalehf teeqased from
the entities as a result of performing transactions with financial derivativesdgnized markets or stock
exchanges are recorded at their nominal value.

For those margin accounts assigned to the clearinghouse different Bbpasavould be the case of debt
instruments or share certificates, where the clearinghouse has the right tgpkslbe the financial assets
which make up such margin accounts, the financial asset pledgesgénted as restricted, and the valuation
and disclosure standards are followed in conformity with the respectiverdicaptreatment according to its
nature.

Margin accounts are intended to procure compliance with the obligationsdlé&gwn transactions with

financial derivatives performed in recognized markets and stock exchangeseartd the initial margin,
contributions and subsequent retirements made during the effective tdr@re$pective contracts.
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Investment in securitiest

+

I+

I+

Trading securities -

Trading securities are those securities in which the Institution investke@dvantage of short-term
market fluctuations. The transaction costs for the acquisition of thatgesare recognized in results
of the year on the acquisition date. These securities are stated at fair valueirfelbiids the discount
or markup, as the case may be) in conformity with the followindedjues:

Debt instrumentst

Debt instruments are valued at fair value, which must include both the pfiaoigh accrued interest.
Interest earned is determined based on the effective interest method.

Equity instruments-

Equity instruments are valued at their fair value. In the case of secwegistered with the National
Securities Registry (RNV) or authorized, registered or regulated in markets recdgyibed
Commission. Gains or losses resulting from valuation are recognizeddartbelidated statement of
income.

Value date transactions-

7KLV KHDGLQJ UHFRUGY WKH 29DOXH G D Wsale tvaddacion®dF WLRQV”™ ZKLF
securities assigned but not settled, which are valued and recorded as negotiabbeins, recording

the reception and departure of the instrument subject matter of the transatti®tirae it is

performed against the respective debit or credit settlement account. If the amthentedotiable

instruments is insufficient to cover the amount of the securities to be delfeertbeése operations, the

FUHGLW EDODQFH LV SUHVHQWHG XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ 36HFXULW

Securities available-for-sale:

Securities available-for-sale consist of debt instruments and equity secuduégdavith an

intention other than obtaining gains from trading them on the marketiding them to maturity. The
transaction costs for the acquisition of the securities are recognized aktparhoestment. These
securities are valued in the same manner as trading securities with unrealligidnr gains or losses
UHFRJQLJHG LQ VWRFNKROGHUVYT HTXLW\

Securities held to maturity:

Securities held to maturity are debt instruments with fixed or determinableepts/or an established
maturity acquired with both the intent and the capacity of holding thematurity. These instruments
are initially recorded at fair value, which presumably reflects the agreedpgitisghe transaction
costs for the acquisition of securities. They are subsequently accdantesihg amortized cost, thus
affecting the results of the year based on accrued interest and the discourdugr nieeeived or paid
for their acquisition according to the effective interest method.

The Institution determines the increase or decrease from appraisal at fairsmatueeatated prices provided
by the price supplier, who uses different market factors in its detatioin

Cash dividends of share certificates are recognized in the results for ttie yeasame period in which the
right to receive the related payment is generated.

The exchange gain or loss on investments in securities in foreigmcigs is recognized in results for the

year.
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TheacFRXQWLQJ FULWHULD LVVXHG E\ WKH &RPPOQDVIVRQ 36 UPLWKWEE W
PDWXULW\" WR WKH FasildbkRddsalR | SWWHRFYLBIHGL WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQ FHDVI
intention or capacity to hold them to maturity.

AOVR VXFK FULWHULD DOORZ IRU UHFODVYV LULRDMWAIVR QN OERWEH FCDVGXU W
I[URP 37UDGLQJ VHF XU bwilablevfor-gale 2@ EXWLM[MWAUWDRUGLQDU\ FLUFXPVWD
prior assessment and express authorization of the Commission.

Impairment - The Institution must assess whether there is objective evidence regaaingpairment of a
security at the consolidated balance sheet date.

A security is only considered to be impaired and, accordingly, aaiiment loss is only incurred when there
is objective evidence of this impairment as a result of one or morésenvkith occurred after its initial
recognition, which affected estimated future cash flows and can be rali&telynined. It is unusual that
single event is determined as the sole cause of impairment, and it is monercdimat impairment results
from the combined effect of different events. The losses expected as thefreguliecevents are not
recognized, regardless of their probatilit

The objective evidence that a credit instrument is impaired includes observablatidarramong others,
about the following events:

a) Significant financial difficulties of the issuer of the security;

b) It is probable that the issuer of the security will be declared bankrupt ergananother type of
financial reorganization;

C) Default on contractual clauses, such as nonpayment of interest or principal;

d) The disappearance of an active market for the credit instrument in questiorfidaadial difficulties
or

e) Measurable reduction in the estimated future cash flows of the gfeepuwities as of the initial
recognition of such assets, although the reduction cannot be identiffethevindividual securities of
the group, including:

i adverse changes in the payment status of the issuers in thearoup,
ii. local or national economic conditions which are correlated with defauhis securities of the

group.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, management has not identified ebg@dtence of impairment of any
securities.

Repurchase transactionsRepurchase agreements are recorded as follows:

At the contracting date of the repurchase transaction, when the Institufiensislling party, the entry of cash
or a debit settlement account, and an account payable at fair value, initially gitethe-apon price, are
recorded and represent the obligation to restitute cash to the repurchasin§uydaseguently, during the term
of the repurchase transaction, the account payable is valued at amortized eosghizing the interest on
the repurchase agreement using the effective interest method in rethudtyeéar.

In relation to the collateral granted, the Institution will reclassify the financiatsassits balance sheet as
restricted, which will be valued based on the criteria described above in this noteauntitilrity of the
repurchase transaction.

When the Institution acts as purchasing party, the withdrawal défawailable is recognized on the
contracting date of the repurchase transaction or a credit settlement account,agitbuant receivable
recorded at fair value, initially at the price agreed, which represents the righbter the cash paid. The
account receivable will be valued subsequently during the term of the maparagreement at amortized cost
through the recognition of interest on the repurchase agreement basedfective éenterest method in the
results of the year.
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The Institution recognizes the collateral received in memorandum accounts, fgltbwiguidelines for
valuation established in accounting criterion B-3& XVWR G\ DQG $GPLQLVWUPRP@QWRQ WKHBHVVH
maturity of the transaction.

Collateral granted and received other than cash in repurchase agreemenmtselation to the collateral in
repurchase transactions granted by the seller to the buyer (other thanheabhyer recognizes the collateral
received in memorandum accounts, by following the guidelines on gustdactions established in
accounting criterion B-9. The selling party reclassifies the financial as#st@msolidated balance sheet,
and it is presented as restricted, for which purpose the standards for vaju@sentation and disclosure are
followed in accordance with the respective accounting treatment.

When the buyer sells the collateral or provides it as a guarantee, the prooeetieftransaction are
recognized, as well as an account payable for the obligation to repay the collateraiatiiriy party
(measured initially at the price agreed), which is valued at fair valits feale, or, if it is given as guarantee
in another repurchase transaction, at its amortized cost, (any spread libeyesce received and the value
of the account payable is recognized in results of the.yea

Furthermore, if the buyer then becomes a seller for another repurcessction using the same collateral
received as guarantee for the initial transaction, the repurchase interest agreest@otid transaction must
be recognized in results of the year as it is accrued, in accordance wittettwefhterest method, adjusting
the account payable valued at amortized cost as mentioned above.

The memorandum accounts recorded for collateral received by thedvayeancelled when the repurchase
transaction reaches maturity or there is a default on the part of the seller.

For transactions in which the buyer sells or in turn provides the collaterala@@s\guarantee (for example,
when another repurchase or securities loan transaction is agreed),ttbeaf@much sold or pledged
collateral is performed in memorandum accounts, by applying for valyatigposes the standards for
custody transactions established in accounting criterion B-9.

The memorandum accounts recorded for collateral received which were sotd or pledged by the buyer,
are canceled when the collateral sold is acquired to repay it to the seller, ahe/isexond transaction in
which the collateral was granted reaches maturity or there is a defaultpartioé the counterparty.

Securities loans Securities loans are transactions in which the transfer of securitiegésldgrm the lender
to the borrower, with the obligation to return such securities or athstantially similar ones on a given date
or as requested, in exchange for a premium as consideration. In these trasisactdlateral or guarantee is
requested by the lender from the borrower.

At the contracting date of the securities loan, when the Institution actsdas, lemecords the security subject
matter of the loan transferred to the borrower as restricted, for which putmostandards for valuation,
presentation and disclosure, based on the respective accounting treatmelbyverd.fBurthermore, the
collateral received that guarantees the securities loaned is recorded in memorandunts.acco

The amount of the premium earned is recognized in results of the yamagtttthe effective interest method
during the term of the transaction.

When it acts as the borrower, at the contracting date of the securities ldastitbdon records the security
subject matter of the loan received in memorandum accounts, fajjaénvaluation guidelines for the
VHFXULWLHY UHFRJQL]HG LQ WKH DFFRXQW YWIWVRG'WYV LQ FXVWRG\ RU

The security subject matter of the transaction received and the collateral receipedsented in

PHPRUDQGXP WKH KHDGLQJ RI 3& ROODWHUD @ O HRHAHIHYG! G\ | WKPM ROAKM |
WUDQVDFWLRQV DUH SUHVHQ il eceiv@edsaddsolll Kripleidde® &5 guadniee ByikReO O D W
,QVWLWXWLRQ’
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Derivatives -The Institution carries out two different types of transactions:

+ Trading -Consists of the position assumed by the Institution as market participatrfarses other
than hedging open risk positions.

I+

Hedging -Consists of the purchase or sale of derivative financial instrumergduoe the risk of a
transaction or group of transactions.

7KH ,QVWLWXWLRQTV SROLFLHV UHTXLUH WaKdadtonsRikotisadinty Ravtids/ R1 H QW
must belong to the Financial System and have authorization from thelamk of Mexico to carry out this

type of transaction, classifying and, if applicable, determining risk expdisies. Prior to carrying out these

transactions, corporate customers must be granted a credit line authorize€dih&isk Committee or

provide readily realizable guarantees through the pertinent bond contractaclicassinvolving mid-sized

and small businesses, as well as individuals, are carried out through realildable guarantees established

in bond contracts.

The assets and/or liabilities arising from transactions with derivative finandialnments are recognized or
cancelled in the consolidated financial statements on the date the transactinadsocay regardless of the
date of settlement or delivery of the asset.

The Institution initially recognizes all derivatives (including those forming paredfes) as assets or

liabilities (depending on the rights and/or obligations they embodfigicdnsolidated balance sheet at fair

value, which presumably reflects the price at which the transaction was agngddaisaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition of the derivative are directlydeg@d. |HG L Q U HNeKdgaivok XQGHU 3
financial assets and liabilitiés

All derivatives are subsequently valued at fair value without deductingatigatrtion costs incurred for their
sale or other types of disposal; this valuation effect is thenretbg6i LQ WKH UHVXOWWeR| WKH SHU
gain on financial assets and liabilities

Derivatives must be presented under a specific asset or liability heading depgendihgther their fair value
(as a consequence of the rights and/or obligations they embody3 resudebit or credit balance,
respectively. These debit or credit balances can be offset as long as theywimpig offsetting rules
established by the applicable accounting criterion.

In the consolidated balance sheet, the heading derivatives must be split libtgedmeld for trading and
hedging purposes.

Trading transactions

I+

2SWLRQDO VHFXULWLHV 3:DUUDQWYV’

Optional securities are documents which represent a temporary right acquihedhiojders in
exchange for the payment of a premium for the issue in Sharedexel) whereby such right expires
at the end of the effective term. Therefore, holding such securities smetiegnition that the intrinsic
value and the market price of the optional security in the secondarytmaaierary based on the
market price of the reference assets.

Forwards and futures contracts

I+

The balance represents the difference between the fair value of the contrifet emctracted forward
price. If the difference is positive, it is considered as surplus value and presedédssets; if
negative, it is considered as a deficit and presented under liabilities.

I+

Options:

The balance represents the fair value of future cash flows to be receivéide aatlation effects are
recognized in results of the year.
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The balance represents the fair value of future cash flows to be deliverd¢ke aradliation effects are
recognized in results of the year.

I+

Swaps:
The balance represents the difference between the fair value of the swamddisdtility.
Hedging transactions

Hedge derivatives are valued at market value, and the effect is recognized dgperttie type of
accounting hedge, as follows:

a. If they are fair value hedges, the primary hedged position is valued kattraad the net effect of the
GHULYDWLYH KHGJH LQVWUXPHQW LV UHARRLEEGBEMUHVXOWYV RI
financial assets and liabilitiés

b. If they are cash flow hedges, the hedge derivative is valued at markéearaduation of the effective
partof WKH KHGJH LV UHFRUGHG LQ WKH DFFRXIQMG IHNVXOWHURP YD
LQHIIHFWLYH SDUW LV UHFRUGHG LQ We&t\gxiodn fihnaRdiaVddseéts StTdULR G X Q
liabilities

C. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign transaction that complies with all dida@mare accounted
for in manner similar to cash flow hedges; the effective portion igremed in stockholders equity
and the ineffective portion is recognized in results.

Embedded derivativesThe Institution separates the embedded derivatives of structured notes, whereby t
reference underlying is based on the exchange rate, price indexes, interest nasendhtioxtendable
periods and UMS bond price options..

In the case of debt and bond contracts in which the reference undeslan interest rate with implied cap,

IORRU DQG FROODU 7KH UHIHUHQFH XQGHGOWRY VWKHDHRY ARRVQEHDIH @
consequently, these items are not bifurcated. Accordingly, the maiaciissued for debt and bonds is

recorded based on the applicable criteria to each contract, at the amortized costasdmth

Collateral granted and received in derivatives transactions not performed in recognized marketskr sto

exchanges The account receivable generated for cash collateral provided in derivativeticassaot

SHUIRUPHG LQ UHFRJQL]JHG PDUNHWYV RU VVWREN BZWKIHQJI B ¥ AR/X QWH/NV H
UHFHLYDEOH ZKHUHDV WKH DFFRXQW SD\DE OWledlih@asti® WHG IRU WKH
SUHVHQWHG XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ 36XQGU\ FUHGLWRUYV DQG RWKHU DI

Collateral delivered in credit instruments is recorded as restricted securities famtgaar and collateral
received in credit instruments for derivative transactions is recorded ionaedum accounts.

Loan portfolio - The balances in the loan portfolio represent the amounts disbursedawdrgtriess
UHSD\PHQWY PDGH WR GDWH SOXV DFFUXHG EO(RWXRVDLG & QMNHHUGIW M/
deduction from the total loan balance

The Institution classifies its portfolio under the following headings:

a. Commercial:Direct or contingent loans, including bridge loans, denominated in Mexesus or
foreign currency, as well as any accrued interest, granted to corporatiods/muals with business
activities and used in relation to commercial or financial activities; includes loamd to financial
institutions, excluding interbank loans with maturities of less thaethusiness days, |carelated to
factoring transactions and loans related to finance lease transactionavehéttered into with such
corporations or individuals; loans granted to trustees who act on behai$tsfand credit schemes
commonly referred to a3V W U X RiahZadtidr in which there is a change in net assets that allows
for the individual assessment of the risk associated with the scAésnancluded are loans granted to
States, Municipalities and decentralized agencies.
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b. Home mortgagedDirect loangdenominated in Mexican pesos, foreign currency, Investment Units or
PXOWLSOHV RI WKH PLQLPXP ZDdddued hiefest, glanfedth i@dviddals &n@ \
used for the acquisition, construction, remodeling or improvenfémiwsing, for non-businesss
purposes; incluesequity loans secured by the home of the borrower and homeagertgans granted
to former employees who rendered services to the credit institution.

c. ConsumerDirect loans, denominated in Mexican pesos or foreign currency, aasaaatly accrued
interest, granted to individuals in relation to credit card operations, personalgesrdl transactions
(excluding those granted through a credit card), loans for the acqudfittmmsumer durables and
finance lease transactions entered into with individuals; ieslaoinsumer loans granted to former
employees who rendered services to the credit institution.

Performing loans £The Institution has the following criteria to classify the loans as perforpartéplio:

- Loans that are current in the payments of both principal and interest.
- Loans that do not exhibit characteristics of non-performing portfolio.
- Restructured or renewed loans which have evidence of sustained paymen

Non-performing loan portfolio -The Institution applies the following criteria to classify outstanding loans as
non-performing.

- Loans with a single payment of principal and interest at maturity are considerguerforming 30
days after the date of maturity.

- Loans with a single payment of principal at maturity and with periodicaistg@ayments are
considered non-performing 90 days after interest is due or 30 filelyprancipal is due.

- Loans whose principal and interest payments have been agreed in pestadiments are considered
non-performing 90 days after an installment becomes due.

- If debts are composed by revolving credits with two outstandinghthobilling periods or, if the
billing period is not monthly, when payments have been outstgrior 60 or more days.

- Mortgage loans with periodic partial payments of principal and interest and aidered non-
performing when a payment is 90 days or more in arrears.

- Customer checking accounts showing overdrafts will be reported imthperforming portfolio at the
date of the overdratft.

- If the borrower is declared bankrupt in accordance with the Commerciafupack Law, except for
the following:

i. Loans on which the Institution continues to collect payments under the tethesfodction
VIII, article 43 of the Commercial Bankruptcy Law.

. Loans that are granted under the terms of article 75 in relation with the fsaldtéord 111 of
article 224 of the Commercial Bankruptcy Law.

- Immediate payment documents referred to by Accounting Criterion Bunds Availablé R1 WKH
Commission when not collected within the allotted period of time (2dayS as appropriate).

Non-performing portfolio which are restructured or renewed will remaiomperforming portfolio until
there is evidence of sustained payment; i.e., payment by the borrowertvaitrears for the total amount of
principal and interest due and payable for at least three consecutive installmentsdaraxcwith the loan
payment scheme, or, in the case of loans with installments that covetsperaxcess of 60 calendar days,
the payment of one installment as established in the accounting criter@a@dtitmission.

The loan payments referred to in the preceding paragraph must cover ad%ast[®incipal or the total

amount of any interest accrued under payment restructuring or remb@aies. However, accrued interest
recognized in memoranda accounts is not considered for this purpos
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Furthermore, loans with a single payment of principal upon maturityariodic payments of interest that
are restructured or renewed during the credit term are classified as non-perfoontiolip, until there is
evidence of sustained payment. This includes loans for which at least 86&cooiginal term of the loan has
not elapsed, loans for which payments received have not covered thenimtalt @f accrued interest or
covered the principal of the original amount of the loan, and loans théd have been settled as of the date
of renewal or restructuring in question.

The accrual of interest is suspended at the time the loan is classified asfoomipgrportfolio, including
those loans which, in accordance with the respective contract, capitalize interestrtmtim: of the debt.
While a loan remains in the non-performing portfolio, accrued interest@sded in memoranda accounts.
When interest on non-performing portfolio is collected, it is recognized diiedthe results of the year
XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ 3,QWHUHVW LQFRPH’

With regard to ordinary uncollected accrued interest on loans that are classifiedpesfooming portfolio,
the Institution creates an allowance for the total amount of accrued interest outstani@time the loan is
transferred to non-performing portfolio.

Acquisitions of loan portfolio ©n the acquisition date, acquired loan portfolio must be measured based on
the contractual value of the portfolio and the same portfolio classificatiorbydéé originator; any
difference arising in relation to the acquisition price is recorded as follows

a) When the acquisition price is lower than the potf® fV FRQWUDFWXDO YDOXH WKH GLII
LQ UHVXOWY RI WKH \HDU XQGHU WKH KHDXISQWR2WKH WD RS XQ & \RL(
DOORZDQFH IRU ORDQ ORVVHYV UHFRJQL]H®OWHY Db RRBUG@\QW H PDLLVDK
amount as a deferred credit, which will be amortized on a proportional basis imredatie
contractual value of the loan;

b) When the acquisition price of the portfolio is higher than its contractuaé valdeferred charge is
recognized, which will be amortized on a proportional basis in relation to thecivatrvalue of the
loan;

C) Regarding the acquisition of revolving credits, such difference wilkbegnized directly to results of
the year on the acquisition date.

Financial asset derecognitiatThe Institution only derecognizes a financial asset when the related
contractual rights expire or when the Institution transfers the financitllzssause: a) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows derived from the financial asset are transfertgdhe contractual rights to receive
the cash flows derived from the financial asset are retained, while asghmicantractual obligation to pay
these cash flows to a third party.

When a portion of the financial asset is derecognized, the Institution must

a) Derecognize the portion of the transferred financial asset based on theceostiook value,
including, if applicablethe proportional part of the estimates and/or supplementary accounts
associated with the financial asdéapplicable, the respective proportion of the unapplied or
unrecognized effects associated with the financial asset must be recogtimetesults of the year.

b) Recognize the payments received from or incurred by the transagkide considering any new
financial assets and assumed obligations at fair value.

c) For recognition purposes, the Institution utilizes an accounting criterion refjébg nature of the
payment in question.

d) The Institution recognizes in the results of the year the gain oréois®d from the difference
between the book value of the eliminated portion of the financial ass#teasdm of (i) the received
or incurred payments (recognized at fair value) and (i) the effedit(prdoss resulting from the
accrued valuation recognized in sta¢cROGHUVY HTXLW\]T DQG DWWULEXWDEOH WR
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Allowance for loan losses -

The Institution recognizes the allowance for loan losses based on the following:

+

Commercial loan portfolio:

The amount of the allowance for loan losses on each loan is determingolyaggathe following
formula:

R Pl uSP uEl,
In which:
Ri= Amount of the allowance for loan losses to be created for the nth loan.
Pli = Probability of Default of the nth loan.
SPi = Severity of the Loss on the nth loan.
Eli = Exposure to Default on the nth loan.

The amount of the allowance for loan losses on each loan is determinedyiycaihye following
formula:

PI,

1
(600 TotalCredtScore) ulni—g)

1l e

For purposes of the above:

The total credit score of each borrower will be obtained by applying the folldaimyila:
TotalCrediScore Du QuantitativeCreditSore, 1 D u QualitativeCreditScee,
Where:

Quantitative credit scofe  Is the score obtained for the nth borrower when evaluating the ris

factors.
Qualitative credit score= Is the score obtained for the nth borrower when evaluatingsthe r
factors.
D= Is the relative weight of the quantitative credit score.

Unsecured loans-

The Severity of the Loss (§®f commercial loans which are not covered by security interests in real
property, or personal or credit-derived collateral will be:

a) 45%, for Preferred Positions.

b) 75%, for Subordinated Positions, in the case of syndicated loansythizbefor purposes of
their priority of payment are contractually subordinated in relation to otkditors.

c) 100%, for loans which are 18 months or more in arrears farttoaint due and payable under
the original terms.

The Exposure to Default of each loan (Eli) will be determined based onlltheifig:

I For disposed balances of uncommitted credit lines which may be canceleditionaity or
which in practice allow for an automatic cancellation at any time and withoutryatice:

Eli=S
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Il.  For other credit lines:

0.5794
S

. S* I\/Iaxc}§ , 10020 3
e@\uthorizedLineofCredt 1

El

Where:

Si:  The unpaid balance of the nth loan at the classification date, which represeaotimt of
loan granted to the borrower, adjusted for accrued interest, less payfamsipal and
interest, as well as any reductidergivenessrebate and discount granted. In any case, the
amount subject to the classification must not include uncollected accrued interest recimgnized
memorandum accounts on the balance sheet for loans classifiedneithjperforming
portfolio.

Authorized Line of CredifThe maximum authorized amount of the line of credit at the classification
date.

The Institution may recognize the security interests in real propefpgrsonal or credit-derived
collateral in the estimate of the Severity of the Loss of the loans, wittinthef decreasing the
reserves derived from the portfolio classification. In any case, it may electnecognize the credit
enhancements if larger reserves are generated as a result. For such parptsglittions established
by the Commission are applied.

Loans granted under the terms of the Commercial Bankruptcy Law

This methodology mainly contemplates the consideration of collateral createdhenteems of

article 75 of the Commercial Bankruptcy Law for the determination of the iSewkthe Loss by
applying certain adjustment factors or discount percentages applicable topaohagmissible
security interest based on personal or real property.

Pursuant to the foregoing, in the case of loans granted under theofesaasion Il of article 224 of the
Commercial Bankruptcy Law, the Severity of the Loss will be subjetttetdollowing treatment:

0,
52L/:1</E( _%KHH=PAN= HE#@F%?PA)@ 'OP=P

Where:

Collateral = Any collateral created under the terms of article 75 of the Commercial Bankbugptcy
by applying, as the case may be, adjustment factors or discounttpgesefor each type of admissible
security interest based on personal or real property.

Adjusted Estate Fhe Estate, as this term is defined in the Commercial Bankruptcy Lawgtitedu
the amount of the obligations referred to in article 224, section | of theraéntioned Law and
applying a 40% discount to the resulting amount.

Si= Unpaid balance of the loans granted under the terms of article 224, skofitrel Commercial
Bankruptcy Law at the classification date.

In the case of loans granted under the terms of article 224, sectidnbHéd Commercial Bankruptcy
Law, the Severity of the Loss will be subject to the following treatmen

o 1= 1e{ s £OFQOPAG Yr N A
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Where:

Adjusted Estat$= The Estate, as this term is defined in the Commercial Bankruptcy Lawctaepu
the amount of the obligations referred to in sections | and Il of artide®?the aforementioned Law
and applying a 40% discount to the resulting amount.

Si = Unpaid balance of the loans granted under the terms of article 224, sdatioiél Commercial
%DQNUXSWF\ /DZ DW WKH FODVVLILFDWLRQ GDWH ~

In Document 121-1/116843-2014 and 121-1/116844-2014 dated Ap0024, the Commission
granted authorization to apply new parameters for the classification Bulireess (with annual sales
above 50 million pesos) and Other Enterprises portfolio, which were apiesdApril, 2014.

In Documentl21-1/118709/2016 and 121-1/118708/2016 dated February 9 a201®,the

Commission granted authorization to apply new parameters for the classificattbe Business and

Other EnterpriseSRUWIROLR XVHG LQ LWV 3([SHFWHG /RVNSSXLHWBQEDO OH
since Februarg016

The internally developed methodology consists of the calculation of tleetexibloss of 12 months
with the following concepts:

- Probability of DefaulttBased on a rating determined based on the financial information of the
companies and 100% for non-performing portfolio.

- Severity of LosstCalculated based on the collateral and time in default.

The Institution records the respective allowances for loan losses maghlying the results of the
classification made quarterly to the balance of the debt recorded on the firdledech month.

The allowances for the losses from the commercial loan portfolio created msthution as a result
of the classification of each loan are classified in accordance with the follperngntages:

Risk Level Percentages Ranges Loss Reserves
Al 0% to 0.90%
A2 0.901% to 1.50%
B1 1.501% to 2.00%
B2 2.001% to 2.50%
B3 2.501% to 5.00%
C1 5.001% to 10.00%
Cc2 10.001% to 15.50%

D 15.001% to 45.00%
E More to 45.00%

+ Portfolio of States and Municipalities:

When classifying the loan portfolio of States and Municipalities, the Instituticsidars the
Probability of Default, Severity of the Loss and Exposure to Defaulteatso classifying the
aforementioned portfolio of States and Municipalities into different groups andigstapdifferent
variables for the estimation of the probability of default of the commercidbporin relation to loans
granted to States and Municipalities.

37



The allowance for loan losses of each loan will be determined using theifglmwmula:

I+

R PI, uSP uEl,

Where:

Ri= The amount of the allowance for loan losses to be created for the nth loan.
Pli = Probability of Default of the nth loan.

SPi = Severity of the Loss of the nth loan.

Eli = Exposure to Default of the nth loan.

The probability of default of each loan (Pli) will be calculated accordinigetdollowing formula:

1
P ! In(2)
(500 TotalCrediScore) u——=
1l e 40

For purposes of obtaining the respective Pli, the total credit score of each basroaleulated by
applying the following formula:

Total Credit Score =QXPCCt) + (1-p PCCI

Where:

PCCt= Quantitative Credit Score = IA+IB + IC

PPCI = Qualitative Credit Score = IIA + 1I1B

D= 80%

A= Average days in arrears with banking institutions (IFB) + % ofroe payments with IFB
+ % of on time payments with non-bank financial institutions.

IB = Number of ratings agencies recognized in accordance with the preweiich provide a
classification to the State or Municipality.

IC = Total debt to eligible participations + debt service to adjusted total revenues + simort-ter
debt to total debt + total revenues to current expense + investment to total revenues +
proprietary revenues to total revenues.

A = Local unemployment rate + presence of financial services of regulated entities.

IIB = Contingent obligations derived from retirement benefits to adjusted evtiues +

operating balance sheet to local Gross Domestic Product + level and efficiency of
collections + robustness and flexibility of the regulatory and institutioaaddwork for
budget approval and execution + robustness and flexibility of the reguéatd
institutional framework for approval and imposition of local taxes +sgarency in public
finances and public debt + issuance of outstanding debt in the stoaktmark

Unsecured loans -

The Severity of the Loss (SPi) of the loans granted to States or Municgulitieh are not covered
by security interests in real property, or personal or credit-derived callatiéirbe:

a. 45%, for Preferred Positions.

b. 100%, for Subordinated Positions or when the loan is 18 monthererimarrears for the
amount due and payable under the original terms.
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I+

The Exposure to Default of each loan (Eli) will be determined based onlltheirfig:

S' -0.579%4
Eli = Si * Max ! ,100%
Autorized Line of Credit
Si=  The unpaid balance of the nth loan at the classification date, which represeatwotimt of

loan granted to the borrower, adjusted for interest accrued, less payfamsipal and
interest, as well as any reduction, forgiveness, rebate and discount gmnamteg chse, the
amount subject to the classification must not include uncollected accrued interestzeztogn
in memorandum accounts on the balance sheet for loans classifiedneithperforming
portfolio.

Authorized Line of Credit ¥he maximum authorized amount of the credit line at the classification
date.

The Institution may recognize the security interests in real propengrsonal or credit-derived
collateral in the estimation of the Severity of the Loss of the loanthdgurpose of reducing the
allowance for loan losses derived from the portfolio classification. Fdrgurpose, the provisions
established by the Commission are applied.

Admissible security interests in real property may be financial aniihaoial. Furthermore, only
those security interests in real property which comply with the remeints established byeth
Commission are recognized.

Mortgage portfolio:

The Institution determines the allowance for loan losses related to the mqytytigho based on
criteria established by the Commission, calculating the Probability of Defaudtrityesf Loss and
Exposure (expected loss model) as of the classification date, accordingdtbotivang:

+ Probability of default: For portfolio with less than four paymentariears, it is determined
based on the number of late payments, the maximum delay in theulastdathly periods, the
average payment commitment of the last seven periods, as well as the thtieretlit
enhancements with respect to the loans and the currency; and 100% if thete arexfore
late payments.

I+

Severity of loss: This is determined based on the value of the credit enhaheétiheespect
to the loans and the means of formalizing the credit enhancement, drecase of
unemployment insurance coverage, the balance of the housing sultaccoun

The allowances for loan losses on the mortgage portfolios establiglieel Institution as the result of
classifying the loans will be based on the following risk levels and percentages:

Risk Level Allowance Percentage Ranges for Loan Losses

Al 0% to 0.50%
A2 0.501% to 0.75%
Bl 0.751% to 1.00%
B2 1.001% to 1.50%
B3 1.501% to 2.00%
C1 2.001% to 5.00%
Cc2 5.001% to 10.00%

D 10.001% to 40.00%

E 40.001% to 100.00%
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I+

I+

Consumer loan portfolio that does not include credit card operations:

The Institution determines the allowance for loan losses related to noningvodvmsumer portfolio as
established by the Commission, calculating the Probability of Default, Sevktibss and Exposure
(expected loss model) as of the classification date, as follows:

+

I+

I+

Probability of default: Depending on the payment periodicity and the tyloaofit is
determined using variables such as the number of payments in arrearaxitimeim length of
arrears, average payment compliance, the remaining term and the wdniies that the loan

is paid or financed.
Severity of loss: This is 65% for up to 10 months in arrears adb 10Bereafter.

Exposure refers to the balance as of the classification date excluding accriest mtenot
collected for loans in non-performing portfolio.

Allowances for loan losses in the consumer portfolio, excluding creditogemetions, are classified
based on the following degrees of risk and percentages:

Level of risk Allowance Percentage Ranges for Loan Losses
Al 0% to 2.00%
A2 2.01% to 3.00%
Bl 3.01% to 4.00%
B2 4.01% to 5.00%
B3 5.01% to 6.00%
C1 6.01% to 8.00%
Cc2 8.01% to 15.00%
D 15.01% to 35.00%
E 35.01% to 100.00%

JRU WKLY SRUWIROLR JHQHUDO UHVHUYHSHMUIHF ARRFHOWH IGYHHM @& HLUH
ones with risk rating ofB " or above.

Consumer credit card loan portfolio:

7KH &RPPLVVLRQ DSSURYHG WKH ,QVWLWXWUR® Y\DWHQQXH\RWG WR I+
Document 111-1/69930/2009 on June 22, 2009, which has bpkedafpom the month of August

2009.

In Document 121-1/118710/2016 dated February 3, 2016, the Ceiomgganted authorization to
DSSO\ QHZ SDUDPHWHUV IRU WKH FODVV UMW FOOIR X VRHI@dHY R O/YL &J
/IRVV ,QWHUQ D O whidMinere epRliedsarfing on February 2016.

The internally developed rating methodology involves calculating the expetteaiith loss based
on the following:

The internally developed rating methodology involves calculating the expetteaiith loss
based on the following:

Non-compliance probability - Based on variables including portfolio type, accoung, ag
admission tool or the behavior of loans with at least three outstanding gaytogether with a
100% rating for loans with three or more outstanding payments.

Loss severity - Is calculated based on variables such as portfolio typesebatang and
noncompliance period.

Exposure - Is determined according to the credit limit and current balance.
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The allowance for credit card losses created by the Institution followingrédg rating process is
classified according to the following risk level and percentages:

Level of risk Allowance Percentage Ranges for Loan Losses

Al 0% to 3.00%
A2 3.01% to 5.00%

B1 5.01% to 6.50%

B2 6.51% to 8.00%

B3 8.01% to 10.00%

C1 10.01% to 15.00%

Cc2 15.01% to 35.00%

D 35.01% to 75.00%

E More than  to 75.01%

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the classification and creation of tharai¥or loan losses of
the consumer loan portfolio is performed with figures as of the lasbfdegch month and is presented
to the Commission at the latest as of the 30 days following the mos#ifigld, in accordance with the
reserve percentages applicable to each type of portfolio, as indicated above.

Additionally, a reserve is recognized for the total amount of the uncollected interexi epplicable
to loans that are classified within non-performing portfolio.

Additional reserves:
The additional reserves established by the Institution reflect internal rating modielly, for
mortgage loans, which consists of applying specific percentagescfeddoss) to the unpaid balance
of the debtor.
Restructuring and renewal processes
A restructuring process is a transaction derived from any of Hosvfog situations:
a) The extension of credit enhancements given for the loan in question, or
b) The modification of original credit or payment scheme conditions, whichdeclu
the modification of the interest rate established for the remainder of the loath perio
the change of currency or account unit, or
the concession of a grace period regarding the payment obligations detailed
in the original credit terms, unless this concession is granted after the oyigamated
period, in which case it is considered as a renewal.
Restructuring transactions do not include those which, at the restructurinmdizizte payment
compliance for the total amount due for principal and interest and whichmmdify one or more of

the following original credit conditions:

Credit enhancementsnly when they imply the extension or substitution of credit enhagwesnfior
others of higher quality.

Interest rate:when the agreed interest rate improves.

Currency:provided the respective rate is applied to the new currency.
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Payment dateonly if the change does not mean exceeding or modifying payregotjity.
Modifying the payment date must not permit nonpayment in any given period

A renewal is a transaction which extends the loan duration or matatéyod when the loan is paid at
any time by using the proceeds of another loan contracted with theegtityén which one of the
parties is the same debtor or another individual or entity with equitglsblding relationships thereby
constituting a joint risk. A loan is not considered to be renewed whearséhents are made during
the term of a pre-established credit line.

Restructured or renewed non-performing loans remain in the noorpé@rg portfolio until evidence

of sustained payment is obtained; i.e., timely borrower payment compirarslation to the total
principal and accrued interest due, with a minimum of three consecutive ptsyim accordance with
the loan payment scheme or, in the case of loans with payment perioedieg®0 calendar days, the
settlement of one payment, as established by the accounting criterion issbhedoynmission.

The loan payments referred to by the preceding paragraph must covet 20keof principal or any
interest accrued under the restructuring or renewal payment scheme. Anteuest recognized in
memoranda accounts is not considered for this purpose.

If a restructuring or renewable process is used to consolidate differesigicaried to the same
borrower in a single loan the treatment applied to the total debt balance refsoitirthis
restructuring or renewal process reflects the rating given to the lowestarated) the component
loans.

Performing loans other than those with a single principal paymenhamqmayment of interest accrued
periodically or at maturity, which are restructured or renewed before at leastf 808waiginal credit
period has elapsed are only considered as performing when the boresvegrdettled all accrued
interest, and b) paid the principal of the original loan amount which was chesranewal or
restructuring date.

If all the conditions described in the preceding paragraph are not fulfilled,doactassified as non-
performing from their restructuring or renewal date and until evidensestdined payment is
obtained.

Performing loans other than those involving a single principal payrenperiodic payment of
interest or at maturity and which are restructured or renewed during th(feof the original credit
period are only classified as performing when the borrower has a) sditéedrued interest; b) paid
the original loan amount due at the loan renewal or restructuring date and, 8)%add the original
loan amount.

If all the conditions described in the preceding paragraph are not fulfilled,doactassified as non-
performing from their restructuring or renewal date and until evidensestdined payment is
obtained.

Loans involving a single principal payment, the payment of interest periodicalymaturity and
which are restructured during the credit period or renewed at any time ardedlassifion-performing
portfolio until evidence of sustained payment is obtained.

Loans which are initially classified as revolving and which are restructureshewed at any time are

only considered as performing when the borrower has settled all accrued interkestnthas no

RYHUGXH ELOOLQJ SHULRGV DQG WKH HGBBBHEWW\ QWHRH G B G DR DHU
i.e., itis highly likely that the borrower will settle the outstanding paymen
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Securitization with transfer of ownershipBy securitizing the mortgage portfolio with transfer of
RZQHUVKLS WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQ WKH VAWYQW KHUIRUI'K T/ WG X LH. UL
YHKLFOH WKH 37UXVW"~ WR HQDEOH DNMXHQWHVUW HG LV R \L WWKKHH A#4LFI
+RXVH" |IRU SODFHPHQW DPRQJ VPDOO L@XHVWRAUXUQ@KLFK WHKBUS
generated from the securitized financial asset, and as consideration the Traes&ves cash and a

certification granting it the right to the remaining cash flows from the Trtest péiyment of the

certificates to their holders.

The Transferor provides administrative services for the transfer of tecfal assets and recognizes

revenues derived from such services at the time they are earned. Such rereepresseated under the
KHDGLQJ 3&RPPLVVLRQV DQG IHH LQBERRPHPD GDJLHSE MEWHH TUIXYFMX Z U
reimbursed by the Trust itself with the prior authorization of the ComRepresentative, provided

that the Trust has sufficient cash flows to make such reimburseieafTransferor will hold any

payments made on account of the Trust in debtor accounts until the latterregisnbuch expenses.

On December 17, 2007, the Commission authorized the Institutiongthi@ocument
153/1850110/2007, registered in the National Securities Register of treeGéificate Issuance
Program up to the amount of $20,000 or its equivalent in UDIsamitbffective term of five years
computed as of the authorization date; such program is revolving.

The Institution recognized the securitized transactions performed duringr2e@6&rdance with the

accounting criteria issued by the Commission in April 2009 regardingG VVHW UHFRJQLWLRQ D
GHUHFRJQLWIHFXULWL]HG W U D Q/MFWRGRLQE/D VDERID SRIVHSHE WLV LH V'’
After applying these criteria, the Institution derecognized the securitized assdiy teddrusts,

which were subsequently consolidated on its balance sheet. Accordiegly,absets are recorded

under assets in the balance sheet. The securitizations performed p€io®tare not consolidated,

based on the treatment established by the Commission.

The benefit valuation methodology applied to the securitized transaction residetliied below:

- The Institution has tools to measure and quantify the impact of securiinsddtions on the
balance sheet and statement of income based on the cost of funding, fetepdaloreserves
and liquidity levels when structuring issuances and during the lgaadi.

- The valuation system measures the follow-up of certificate performance asubtirdinated
portions recorded by the Institution and, if applicable, it also valudsotte position to
consider its possible sale on a secondary market.

- The valuation model is used to calculate the Institution's constant historica}pergaate
computation, the mortality rate, current credit percentage, interest rate, issuanceardoun
value of guarantees with respect to the loan guarantee, among other items.

Notwithstanding the above, the Institution has taken a conservative pasitiatecided not to
recognize the valuation of the benefits on the remaining securitizatioadtems of the trusts 711,
752, and 847 resulting from the application of the methodology explabed, and recognized only
the amortization of the value of the confirmed cash flows received fiomtausts, which are held at
amortized cost.

The characteristics of securitization contracts are detailed in Note 12.
Other receivable, netBalances of sundry debtors that are not settled within the 90 or 60 days

following their initial recognition (the number of days depend on whétaknces are identified or
not) are reserved with a charge to results of the year, regardless aftibbifity of recovery.
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The debit and credit balances of the transaction settlement accounts represery andesgcurity
purchases and sales recorded on the date of transaction.

Foreclosed assets or assets received through payment in kind, Assets that are foreclosed or
received through payment in kind are recorded at the lower of cast afue, less the direct and
incremental costs and expenses incurred when they were awarded.

Property acquired through legal foreclosure are recognized on the dalecbrtive foreclosure ruling
is issued.

Property received as payment are recorded on the date on which thd pakment document is
executed or when the delivery or transfer of ownership is formalizadlatument.

On the recording date of the foreclosed assets or assets received throughtpayind, the value of
the asset which originated the foreclosure, as well as its respective reserve, canseted from the
balance sheet, or the portion involving accrued or overdue paysettiesl through the partial
payments in kind referred to by accounting criterionB2/RDQ 3RUWIROLR"’

If the value of the asset which originated the foreclosure, net of resexgesds the value of the
foreclosed assetsWKH GLIIHUHQFH ZLOO EH UHFRJQL]HG LBPFQWKNXOWY RI1 V
RSHUDWLQJ LQFRPH H[SHQVHV -’

When the value of the asset that originated the foreclosure, net of reseless than the value of the
foreclosed assets, the value of the latter must be adjusted to the net Yhtiagsset.

Foreclosed assets are valued according to the type of asset in questgrghanaluation must be
UHFRUGHG DJDLQVW UHVXOWYV RI WKH \HDU BIVFR2WKRD\RESSHUDWLR

In accordance with the rules of the Commission, the mechanism to falldetermining the
allowance for holding foreclosed assets or assets received as payment is &aidllows:

Allowance for personal property

Time elapsed as of the Allowance

repossession or paymenin-kind (months) percentage
Upto6 0%
More than 6 and up to 12 10%
More than 12 and up to 18 20%
More than 18 and up to 24 45%
More than 24 and up to 30 60%
More than 30 100%

Allowance for real estate property

Time elapsed as of the Allowance

repossession or paymenin-kind (months) percentage
Upto 12 0%
More than 12 and up to 24 10%
More than 24 and up to 30 15%
More than 30 and up to 36 25%
More than 36 and up to 42 30%
More than 42 and up to 48 35%
More than 48 and up to 54 40%
More than 54 and up to 60 50%
More than 60 100%
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Property, furniture and equipment, netAre recorded at acquisition cost. Assets acquired prior to
December 31, 2007 were restated by applying factors derivedf@isup to that date. The related
depreciation and amortization is recorded by applying a given percertseg dn the estimated
useful life of such assets to the cost restated to that date.

Depreciation is determined based on the cost or the cost restated until 200 heusirgight-line
method as of the month following the acquisition date, applying the folprates:

Rate

Real estate 2.5%
Construction 1.3%
Construction Components:

Elevators 3.3%

Power plants 2.8%

Pipelines 2.8%

Air conditioner 2.8%
Computer equipment 25.0%
$70MV 12.5%
Furniture and equipment 10.0%
Vehicles 25.0%
Machinery and equipment 10.0%

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method of constaunctids components,
are reviewed at the end of each year, and the effect of any chaegjaviate is recognized initially
and recorded on a prospective basis.

Until DecembeB1, 2015, the Institution capitalizes the interest from financing as part of constructio
in progress.

Impairment of long-lived assets in us&he Institution reviews the book value of long-lived assets in
use, in the presence of any indicator of impairment which showththhbok value might not be
recoverable, considering the higher of the present value of the futuwasheflows or the net selling
price. Impairment is recorded if the book value exceeds the higher afbtieenentioned values. The
indicators of impairment considered for such purposes are, amaag,dtie losses from operations or
negative cash flows in the period, if they are combined with a histgoyojection of losses,
depreciation and amortization charged to results which, in percentage teretatiém to revenues,

are substantially higher than those of previous years, or the servidesa®, competition and other
economic and legal factors.

Equity investmentsAre represented by those equity investments made by the Institutiotitiesen
over which it has significant influence but lacks control, and are initiallyrdec at acquisition cost
and subsequently valued by the equity method. The dividends reegeévddcreased from the equity
investment.

Furthermore, there are other equity investments which are recorded isitaegcost and the
dividends received from these investments are recognized in resulis fgrar, except when they
refer to profits from periods before the acquisition, in which cageateerecorded as a reduction to
the equity investment.

Income Tax-,QFRPH 7D[ 3,65 LV UH RHe YaarHnGvhic® tHeHavexr@wkrad. RHe
deferred tax derived from the temporary differences is recognizadibg the assets and liabilities
method, which compares the accounting and tax values of the assets and liabilgiesnifarison
results in temporary differences, both deductible and creditable, which are addedatocredit for
the undeducted allowance for loan losses, and the tax rate at which the itemsevé# is\then
applied. The deferred tax asset is recorded only when it can very prbleatelgovered.
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7KH HIITHFW RI DOO WKH LWHPY DERYH LV SHHWDHBGM/RQ & HW UQHEK
WD[HV QHW~

Asset tax paid which is expected to be recovered is recorded as a tax crigljfrasdnted in the

balance sheetutdU WKH KHDGLQJ Rl 3'HIHUUHG FKDUJHV SUHSDLG H[SHC

Deferred taxes Deferred taxes which are expected to be recovered are recorded as a tax credit and is
SUHVHQWHG LQ WKH EDODQFH VKHHW X QG HitpevsEsthtnH HDGLQJ RI 3'HI
LQWDQJLEOHV"

Other assets Software, computer developments and intangible assets are recorded oragittadly
face value incurred, and were restated from that date of acquisition arsdistaunt until December 31,
2007, using the factor derived from UDIs.

The amortization of software, computer developments and intangible assedsdefthite useful life
is calculated by the straight-line method, applying the respective rates totétedexpense.

Direct employee benefitsUnder Mexican Labor Law, the Institution is liable for the payment of
severance indemnities and seniority premiums to employees terminaledcertain circumstances.

The Institution records the liability for severance payments, senipgtyions, comprehensiv
medical services and life insurance as it is accrued, in accordance with actuarial caldudatoinsn
the projected unit credit method, using nominal rates. The Institution recodrézesttiarial gains and
losses against the result of the year, in accordance with NIFDPSOR\HH % HQHILWV’

Therefore, the liability is being recognized which, at present value, will toedrenefits obligation
projected to the estimated date of retirement of the employees working atthdiém and its
subsidiaries, as well as the obligation derived from the retired personnel.

Provisions- Provisions are recognized for present obligations as a result of past evaraset
probable to result in the future use of economic resources and that ceasbnably estimated.

Foreign currency transactions Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate
effective at the transaction date except for those generated by foreign branskésaAd liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are adjusted at the period end exchanuelisteed by the Central
Bank of Mexico. Exchange fluctuations related to these assets and liabilities asxidbaitte income
statement.

Financial margin- 7TKH ,QVWLWXWLRQTV ILQDQFLDO Pdoetded thtdd FRPSULVH
interest income less interest expense.

Interest income is comprised of the general returns generated by the iialiogeased on the periods
established in loans executed with borrowers and negotiated interest rates, the applicatoesof
collected in advance, the premiums or interest accrued by deposits made wnitlafieatities, bak
loans, margin accounts, securities investments, repurchase agregntesesurities loans. In addition,
amortization of debt placement premiums and commissions collected for initeatirgy credit, as
well as dividends of equity instruments are included in interest income.

Interest expense is comprised of the premiums, discounts and interedgdramkepurchase
agreements, securities loans, debentures, debt placement issuance expensesiats] @lseo
amortization of costs and expenses incurred to originate loans is inglitbadinterest expense.

Commissions charged and associated costs and experSemmissions charged for initial loan
RULJLQDWLRQ DUH UHFRUGHG DV GHIHUUH GH U HYGINIDXGVH X Q GIHQG: "Dl
DPRUWL]HG WR HDUQLQJV XQGHU 3, QWHUHRWHLQ WKPHO L XH/ IRQ IWW K +
except for those related to revolving loans, which are amortized ovemarit® period.
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Commissions collected on the restructuring or renewal of loans are addecttmtmissions
originated and are recognized as a deferred loan that is amortized to resultsaustrajght-line
method throughout the new term of the loan.

Commissions recognized after the initial loan grant, those incurred as part @ititenance of such
loans, or those collected on undrawn loans are recognized in earthiegghey are incurred.

Commissions collected for credit card annual fees, whether the firstsagient renewal fees, are
UHFRJQL]J]HG DV GHIHUUHG UHYHQXHV XQGHWHBIBUHHGE RYWH HXG \
RYHU D PRQWK SHULRG DJDLQVW HDW®RPGHIV XQGHU 2&RPPLVVLR

The incremental costs and expenses associated with the initial loan gracogrézed as a deferred
FKDUJH DQG DUH DPRUWL]JHG DJDLQVW HDUBR LDFIAR K Q W,.LQON HHHMR G
which income from collected commissions is recognized.

Any other costs or expenses, including those related to promotiontisitigeipotential customers,
management of existing loans (follow-up, control, recoveries, etc.) aadanthillary activities related
to the establishment and monitoring of loan policies are recognized directhningsaas incurred
under the respective line item that corresponds to the nature of the costrmseexp

Costs and expenses associated with the issuance of credit cards areeda@ma deferred charge,
which is amortized to earnings over a 12 month period under thectespline item that corresponds
to the nature of such cost or expense.

On the cancellation date of a credit line, the remaining unamortized balancenifssmn fees
collected for credit lines cancelled before the end of the 12 month period areizedadjrectly in
UHVXOWYV IRU WKH \HDU XQGHU WKH KHDGLQJ 3&RPPLVVLRQV DQG

Memorandum accountst

Memorandum accounts are used to record assets or commitments whatHatonrpart of the
Institution's balance sheet because the related rights are not acquired aorsogtments are not
recognized as a liability of the entities until such eventualities occur, respgclifielamounts
accrued in the memorandum accounts have only been subject tteatgliwthen an accounting record
arises from their information (the memorandum accounts that were not aamditedlicated in each
case):

+ Contingent assets and liabilities:

Any formal claims received by the Institution which involve some kifhiéhbility are recorded
in books.

I+

Loan commitments:

Loan commitments represent the amount of letters of credit granted btitibn which are
considered as irrevocable commercial loans not utilized by the borrowersyzsetiu
authorized credit lines.

The items recorded in this account are subject to loan classification.

I+

Assets in trust or under mandate (unaudited):
Assets in trust include the value of the goods received in trust, and theldegd to the

administration of each one is kept in separate records. Assets wuanatemrecord the
declared value of the goods subject to mandate contracts executed byitiltéoins
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I+

Assets in custody or under administration (unaudited):

This account is used to record the goods and securities which are refoainvehird parties for
custody or to be administered by the Institution.

Securities in custody and under administration are deposited in S.D. IndevadjtDegtitution
Securites, S.A. de C.V.

I+

Collateral received by the Institution:

This balance represents the total amount of collateral received in repurchase tramaadtion
securities loans, with the Institution acting as the repurchasing parboarmuver.

I+

Collateral received and sold or given in guarantee by the Institution:

This balance represents the total collateral received and sold or given in guateeTigbe
Institution acts as a repurchasing party and borrower.

I+

Uncollected earned interest derived from non- performing loans:

The interest earned is recorded in memorandum accounts once a perfoontialio loan is
transferred to non-performing portfolio.

I+

Other record accounts (unaudited):

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the other recording accountst@ésgance of
$3,188,624 and $2,682,535 respectively.

Cash Flow Statemat - The consolidatedD VK IORZ VWDWHPHQW SUHVHQWY WKH ,Q\
generate cash and cash equivalents, as well as how the organization usesihit®esto meet their

needs. The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect In@siiad on the provisions of

CriterionD- 3&DVK )ORZ 6WDWHPHQWYV™ RI WKH $FFRXQWLQJ &ULWHULL

The consolidated statement of cash flows, together with the rest of the catezbfidancial
statements provide information that enables the user to:

- Assess the changes in assets and liabilities of the Institution and oarisidirstructure.
- Evaluate collection and payment amounts and dates in order to adapt to circunstdnces
opportunities to generate and/or apply cash and cash equivalents.
4. Funds available

At December 31, 2016 and 2Q¥6nds available consisted of the following:

2016 2015
Cash $ 54211 $ 55,964
Banks 88,779 21,453
Restricted cash 42,864 72,188
Other quick funds 895 497
$ 186,749 $ 150,102
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Banks include deposits in domestic and foreign banks in Mexican paebts%undollars, translated at the
exchange rate published by the Central Bank of Mexico of $20.6194 Meéasas and $17.2487 Mexican
pesos per one U.S. dollar, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respeatidedre comprised as follows:

Mexican pesos U.S. Dollars (in Mexican pesos) Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Deposits with foreign credit
institutions $ 336 $ - $ 73,115 $ 16,755 $ 73,451 $ 16,755
Central Bank of Mexico 14692 4,664 636 34 15,328 4,698

$ 15,028 $ 4664 $ 73,751 $ 16,789 $ 88,779 $ 21453

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, restricted funds available are as follows:

2016 2015

Monetary regulation deposits (1) $ 40,250 $ 59,682
Foreign exchange to be received (2) 62,333 49,542

Foreign exchange to be delivered (2) (60,285) (42,418)
Interbank loans call money (3) - 5,000
Other restricted deposits 566 382
$ 42,864 $ 72,188

(1) Asof December 31, 2016 and 2015, the sole account of the CentrabBlsigkico includes the
,QVWLWXWLRQYVY ORQHWDU\ 5HIXODWLRQ 'KSRY DRRXQWWVWKR &HQW
and $59,682, respectively. These Monetary Regulation Deposits will have anitadifration, for
which purpose the Central Bank of Mexico will provide timely notice ofitite and the procedure for
withdrawal of the respective balances. Interest on the deposit is payabl@&werys by applying the
rate established in the Regulations issued by the Central Bank of Mexico.

On May 12, 2016 through Circular 9/2016, the Bank of Mexico isauled for the auction of
Reportable Monetary Regulation Bonds (BREMS R), which indicate that trstaeniients can be
settled with monetary regulation deposit (DRM) resources. The current Prowastabdish that the
DRM may be comprised of cash, securities or both.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Institution holds BREMS Ehéoamount of $28,950 and

$13,210, respectively, which form part of the DRM. These amounts aneleelcas restricted under

WKH KHDGLQJ RI 3,QYHVWPHQWYV LQ VNFXVYDWRMEIE QsQs t tetKH FDWHJR
case because the bond issuance prospectus establishes that they mestadlgibectly or through

repurchase transactions to the Bank of Mexico, when determined by the lattghtits general

provisions.

(2)  Foreign currencies to be received and delivered for purchases and sales to be 2dtianiin8 hours
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are composed as follows:

2016
Balance in foreign Mexican
Currency peso
(Millions of US dollars) equivalent

Purchases of foreign currencies to be received at 24
48 hours 3,023 % 62,333
Sales of foreign currencies to be settled at 24 and 4¢
hours (2,924) (60,285)

99 $ 2,048
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2015

Balance in foreign Mexican
Currency peso
(Millions of US dollars) equivalent

Purchases of foreign currencies to be received at 24
48 hours 2872 % 49,542
Sales of foreign currencies to be settled at 24 and 4¢
hours (2,459) (42,418)

413 % 7,124

When the foreign exchange deliverable or receivable on the purchases amdesedesrded under the
KHDGLQJ RI 3)XQGV DYDLODEOH"™ WKH VHWWRIHWHK B WHDES IRX QW VRIP
UHFRUGHG QHW LQ WKH EDODQFH VKHHW KHLHDE OHPEAKIBND AOL@A ¢ R
IURP VHWWOHPHQW RI RSHUDWLRQV’

3) 3&DOO0O PRQH\" R Sad td D&¥e¢dnib€r 81,J20I5 Q&fresent interbank loan transactions agreed
at a term shorter than or equal to four business days, at a EB#% and 3.32%, respectively.

Margin accounts

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, margin accounts are comprised asfollow

2016 2015

Derivatives margin in authorized markets $ 8,998 § 2,774

Investment in securities

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, financial instruments were as follows:

a. Trading -
2016 2015
Increase
(decrease)
Acquisition Accrued due to
Instrument Cost interest valuation Book value Book value
Securitized certificates $ 6,255 $ 88 $ (40) $ 6,303 $ 10,555
Sovereign debt Eurobonds 6,268 74 (178) 6,164 7,582
Net equity instruments 6,071 - (321) 5,750 5,287
$'5EV 7,384 - (90) 7,294 1,168
Promissory notes with returns
realizable at maturity (PRLV) 54 - - 54 39
Federal Mexican Government
Development Bonds in UDIS
(UDIBONDS) 281 20 4) 297 2,693
Corporate Eurobonds 2,472 24 39 2,535 1,636
Fixed-rate bonds 1,776 119 (24) 1,871 8,776
Certificates of Deposit (CEDES) - - - - 600
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2016 2015
Increase

(decrease)
Acquisition Accrued due to
Instrument Cost interest valuation Book value Book value
Mexican Bank Saving Protection

Bonds (BPA’s) 7,963 109 14) 8,058 1,216
Bank securitized certificates 384 6 - 390 2,372
Exchangeable securitization

certificates (CBIC’s) 333 7 - 340 232
Federal Treasury Securities

(CETES) 169 - - 169 591
Federal Government Developmen:

Bonds (BONDES) 417 1 - 418 8,146
Treasury Bills - - - - 8,965
Treasury Notes 103 1 (2) 102 85

39,930 449 (634) 39,745 59,943

Collateral granted (a.1.) 197,262 101 497 197,860 188,926
Value date purchases (a.2.) 15,154 75 (42) 15,187 6,149
Value date sales (a.3.) (17,702) (92) 32 (17,762) (5,556)
Total $ 234644 $ 533 $ (147) $ 235,030 $ 249,462

During 2016 and 215, the Institution recognized in valuation gains (losses) for net amoufifD&f
and ($276), respectively.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the remaining periods of thesrirerets were as follows:

2016
Total
Less than Between 1and  More than 3 Without a acquisition
Instrument 1 month 3 Months Months Fixed period cost
Securitization certificates $ - $ - $ 6,255 $ - $ 6,255
Sovereign debt Eurobond - - 6,268 - 6,268
Net equity instruments - - - 6,071 6,071
$'5EV - - - 7,384 7,384
Promissory notes with returns
realizable at maturity (PRLV) - - 54 - 54
Federal Mexican Government
Development Bonds in UDIS
(UDIBONDS) - - 281 - 281
Corporate Eurobonds - - 2,472 - 2,472
Fixed-rate bonds - - 1,776 - 1,776
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds (BPA’s) - - 7,963 - 7,963
Bank securitized certificates - - 384 - 384
Exchangeable securitization
certificates (CBIC’s) - - 333 - 333
Federal Treasury Securities
(CETES) - 19 150 - 169
Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES) - - 417 - 417
Treasury Notes - - 103 - 103
Total $ - $ 19 $ 26456 $ 13455 $ 39,930
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2015

Total
Less than Between 1 and More than 3 Without a Acquisition
Instrument 1 month 3 Months Months Fixed period Cost
Securitization certificates $ 70 $ 30 $ 10,351 $ - $ 10451
Sovereign debt Eurobond 380 - 7,368 - 7,748
Net equity instruments - - - 5,578 5,578
$'5EYV - - - 1,217 1,217
Promissory notes with returns
realizable at maturity (PRLV) - - 39 - 39
Federal Mexican Government
Development Bonds in UDIS
(UDIBONDS) - - 2,692 - 2,692
Corporate Eurobonds 5 - 1,680 - 1,685
Fixed-rate bonds - - 8,678 - 8,678
2015
Total
Less than Between 1 and More than 3 Without a Acquisition
Instrument 1 month 3 Months Months Fixed period Cost
Certificates of Deposit
(CEDES) - 300 300 - 600
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds (BPA’s) - - 1,208 - 1,208
Bank securitized certificates - 34 2,320 - 2,354
Exchangeable securitization
certificates (CBIC’s) - - 228 - 228
Federal Treasury Securities
(CETES) - 591 - - 591
Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES) - - 8,142 - 8,142
Treasury Bills - - 8,970 - 8,970
Treasury Notes - - 86 - 86
Total $ 455 $ 955 $ 52,062 $ 6,795 $ 60,267
a.l. The collateral granted as of December 31, 2016 and 2Edomprised as follows:
2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument cost interest (decrease) value value
Fixed-rate bonds $ 14504 $ 23 % (43) $ 14484 $ -
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds (BPA’s) 20,779 8 11 20,798 -
Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES) 29 - - 29 -
Federal Treasury Securities
(CETES) 2 - - 2 -
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a.2.

2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument cost interest (decrease) value value
Security loans 35,314 31 (32) 35,313 -
Other collateral - - - - 40,020
Bank securitization
certificates 1,863 - - 1,863 72
Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES) 15,286 2 Q) 15,287 3,450
Fixed rate bonds 22,637 7 36 22,680 26,963
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds (BPA's) 91,428 57 497 91,982 52,613
Federal Treasury Securities
(CETES) 6,706 1 - 6,707 58,296
2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument cost interest (decrease) value value
Federal Mexican Governmer
Development Bonds in
UDIS (UDIBONDS) 15,950 1 (112) 15,940 1,845
Exchangeable securitization
certificates (CBIC’s) 4,061 1 8 4,070 4,574
Net equity instruments 36 - 1 37 -
Securitization certificates 3,981 1 (1) 3,981 1,093
Bonds received as repurcha:s
agreement collateral 161,948 70 529 162,547 148,906
Total restricted
securities $ 197,262 $ 101 % 497 $ 197,860 $ 188,926
Value date purchases at December 31, 2016, and 2015 was edmagfisllows:
2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument Cost Interest (Decrease) Value Value
Net equity instruments $ 164 $ - $ - $ 164 $ 500
$'5EV 748 - (54) 694 66
Fixed rate bonds 10,450 61 7 10,518 4,142
Federal Treasury Securities
(CETES) 150 - - 150 596
Federal Mexican Governmer
Development Bonds in
UDIS (UDIBONDS) 3,075 6 2) 3,079 541
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds (BPA's) - - - - 202
Securitization certificates 300 7 1 308 -
Sovereign debt Eurobond 267 1 6 274 102
$ 15154 $ 5 3% (42) $ 15187 $ 6,149
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a.3.

Value date sales at December 31, 2016, and 2015 were compridkxvas fo

2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument Cost Interest (Decrease) Value Value
Fixed rate bonds $ (8549 % (45) % (12) $ (8,606) $ (2,880)
Federal Treasury Securities
(CETES) (547) - - (547) (397)
Federal Mexican Governmer
Development Bonds in
UDIS (UDIBONDS) (3,651) (6) 2 (3,655) (1,596)
Securitization certificates 8 (15) - ) (92)
Net equity instruments (167) - 1 (166) (134)
2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument Cost Interest (Decrease) Value Value
Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES) (846) Q) - (847) -
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds (BPA's) (997) Q) - (998) -
ADR's (102) - - (202) a7
Sovereign debt Eurobonds (2,851) (24) 41 (2,834) (440)
$ (17,702) $ 92) $ 32 $ (17,762) $  (5,556)
Available for sale -
2016 2015
Valuation
Acquisition Accrued Increase Book Book
Instrument Cost Interest (Decrease) value value
Sovereign debt Eurobonds $ 15,786 $ 332 % 766 $ 16,884 $ 25,738
Securitization certificates 13,062 169 (383) 12,848 15,357
Corporate Eurobonds 10,248 154 (899) 9,503 3,061
Federal Mexican Governmer
Development Bonds in
UDIS (UDIBONDS) - - - - 314
Net equity instruments 814 - (81) 733 610
$'57V 13 - 470 483 381
Certificates of Deposit
&('(6 8',EV - - - - 117
Bank Eurobonds 350 3 2) 351 294
% D QFR G Hs MprjdtdnR
Regulation Bonds
(BREMS) 3,720 1 - 3,721 -
43,993 659 (229) 44,523 45,872
Restricted securities (b.1.) 110,040 33 (3,932) 106,141 102,074
Total $ 154,033 $ 692 $ (4,061) $ 150,664 $ 147,946
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b.1.

Instrument

Bank Eurobonds $

Securitization certificates

Corporate Eurobonds

Net equity instruments

$'51TV

Bank Eurobonds

% D QFR G Hs Mprjdtd&RREgulation
Bonds (BREMS)

At December 31, 2016, the remaining scheduled maturities of the atsbugrients were as follows:

Between 1 and More than 3 Without a Total

3 months months fixed period acquisition cost

- $ 15786 % - $ 15,786

350 12,712 - 13,062

187 10,061 - 10,248

- - 814 814

- - 13 13

- 350 - 350

- 3,720 - 3,720

537 $ 4262 $ 827 $ 43,993

Total $

At December 31, 2015, the remaining scheduled maturities of the atsbuanents were as follows:

Between 1 and More than 3 Without a Total
Instrument 3 months months fixed period acquisition cost
Net equity instruments $ - $ - $ 803 % 803
$'517V - - 11 11
Sovereign debt Eurobonds - 25,561 - 25,561
Corporate Eurobonds 585 2,459 - 3,044
Bank Eurobonds - 293 - 293
Securitization certificates 266 14,963 - 15,229
Certificates of Deposit (CEDES} ', E V - 75 - 75
Federal Mexican Government Developme
Bonds in UDIS (UDIBONDS) - 346 - 346
Total $ 851 $ 43697 $ 814 $ 45362

Collateral granted (restricted securities) as of December 31, 2016 &ndved as follows:

2016 2015
Increase
Acquisition Accrued (Decrease) Book Book
Instrument cost interest due to valuation value value
Fixed rate bonds $ 79467 $ 24 % (3911) $ 75580 $ 87,567
Federal Government
Development Bonsl
(BONDES) - - - - 143
Securitization certificates 28,942 8 - 28,950 13,210
%DQFR GH Op[LFRY
Regulation Bonds (BREMS) 356 - (21) 335 -
Total collateral receivable
from repurchase
agreements 108,765 32 (3,932) 104,865 100,920
Treasury Bills given as
collateral 1,275 1 - 1,276 1,154
Total restricted securites $ 110,040 $ 33 $ (3932) $ 106,141 $ 102,074
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c. Held to maturity -

The following securities have medium and long-term maturities:

2016 2015
Acquisition Accrued Book Book
Instrument cost interest value value
Government bonds- Mortgage debtor suppt
program $ 15656 % - $ 15656 $ 15,052
Government bonds- State and Municipality
debtor support program - - - 1,774
U.S. Treasury securities - - - 51
Total $ 15656 $ - $ 15656 $ 16,877

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the yields reltitecbt@rall held to maturity
portfolio, recorded in the result of the year, amounted to $661 & $spectively.
d. Collateral Received

The terms and conditions for the delivery of securities as collateral are intindhe/framework
contracts of Repurchase Agreements, Securities Loans, and Derivatives (BWAK]}. These
contracts establish the exchange of collateral, which will help mitigate the credinh risler to have
a reasonable level of collateral; the collateral granted does not fulfill criteria for transfenafship,
for which reason the entity providing the collateral retains the corpordtecamomic rights of such
instruments, unless there is default on the secured obligations. Hotheser framework contracts
stipulate the temporary use and enjoyment of such securities withrtimaitment to return them at
maturity of the guarantee transaction or margin return calls due toeadedn the secured value at
risk.

As a result of the collateral exchange agreements of financial institutions which hagative market
value, a commitment is made to deliver to the other party (which there@ments a positive market
value) assets or cash to reduce the exposure for credit risk, under thstijguiated in the
aforementioned bilateral contract.
7. Repurchase transactions
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, repurchase transactions weneseshgs follows:

a. Repurchase agreement receivables

As repurchasing party:

2016 2015
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Side Side Side Side
Receivable  Collateral Receivable  Collateral
under sold under Sold
Instrument repurchase or delivered Debit repurchase or delivered Debit
Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES) $ 1,220 $ 1,179 $ 41 $ 48,840 $ 48,665 $ 175
Fixed rate bonds 5,488 5,249 239 6,717 6,650 67
Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds
(BPA's) 1,400 1,400 - 10,973 10,922 51
Securitization
certificates 2,323 2,314 9 12,000 1,062 10,938
Total $ 10431 $ 10142 3 280 ¢ 78530 $ 67299 $ 11,231
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b.

Repurchase payables

Security vendor:

Fixed rate bonds

Instrument

Mexican Bank Saving Protection Bonds (BPA’S)

Federal Government Development Bonds (BONDES
Federal Treasury Securities (CETES)
Federal Mexican Government Development Bonds it

UDIS (UDIBONDS)

Instrument

Securitization certificates
%DQFR GH Op[LFRYV ORQHWDU\

(BREMS)
Bank Bonds

Exchangeable securitization certificates (CBICs)

Total

2016 2015
Liability Liability
side side
payables payables
under resale under resale
agreements agreements
$ 98,205 $ 110,943
89,180 51,434
15,288 3,049
6,706 57,914
16,304 1,847
2016 2015
Liability Liability
side side
payables payables
under resale under resale
agreements agreements
4,259 1,376
28,975 13,216
1,507 72
4,061 4,580
$ 264,485 $ 244,431

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the interest (premiums) earned msttution were $14,629 and

$13,744, respectively is recordedinth e Q VROLGDWHG VWD W HiRétegtvihsorel LOQFRPH LQ

Also, at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the interest (premiums) chartpedinstitution were $11,728
and $9,734, respectively.

Payables in transactions involving securities loans and derivatives

Instrument
Borrower:
Government securities -
Fixed rate bonds
Net equity instruments
Federal Mexican
Government
Development Bonds
in UDIS
(UDIBONDS)
Federal Treasury
Securities (CETES)
Net equity instruments

2016 2015
Liability Liability
Memoranda accounts portion Memoranda accounts portion
Collateral Payables Payables
received for from Collateral from
Collateral loans and collateral Collateral received for collateral
received for sold or Sold or received for loans Sold sold or
securities given in givenin securities or given in given in
loans guarantee guarantee loans guarantee guarantee
$ 20490 $ 20490 $ 20490 $ 22941 $ 22941 $ 22,941
41 41 41 6,577 6,577 6,577
7,570 7,570 7,570 2,634 2,634 2,634
1,945 1,945 1,945 4,746 4,746 4,746
4,370 4,370 4,370 o] o o
34,416 34,416 34,416 36,898 36,898 36,898
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Instrument

Repurchase agreements:

Securitization certificates

Federal Government
Development Bonds
(BONDES)

Net equity instruments

Fixed rate bonds

Mexican Bank Saving
Protection Bonds
(BPA's)

Total

2016 2015
Liability Liability
Memoranda accounts portion Memoranda accounts portion
Collateral Payables Payables
received for from Collateral from
Collateral loans and collateral Collateral received for collateral
received for sold or Sold or received for loans Sold sold or
securities given in givenin securities or given in given in
loans guarantee guarantee loans guarantee guarantee
2,315 2,315 o o o o
1,181 1,181 o 49,958 49,958 o
36 36 o o o o
1,402 1,402 o 17,617 17,617 o
5,439 5,439 o 10,929 10,929
10,373 10,373 a 78,504 78,504 o
$ 44789 $ 44789 $ 34416 $ 115402 $ 115402 $ 36,898

Premiums payable were recognized in the results of 2016 and 20th& fonount of $6ard $44

respectively.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Institution has contracted repurches@agts for an average
period of 22 days, while transactions involving securities loans arerpexdl over an average period

of 8 days.

Derivatives

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, securities and derivative transactianasvfetlows:

a. Derivatives- The chart below shows the open derivative instrument transactitmes loftitution as of
December 31, 2016 and 2017. The currency position generatedsbydémgvative instruments must be
added to the position in the balance sheet in order to obtain the yeawstiimhpamount analyzed in

Note 26.
Trading:
2016
Notional amount Balance
Transaction Asset Liability Debit Credit
Long-term futures position $ 90228 $ 90,228 $ - $ -
Short-term futures position 8,459 8,459 - -
Long-term forwards contrés 497,619 489,326 17,411 9,118
Short-term forwards contracts 484,231 501,706 1,742 19,217
Options acquired 6,200 - 6,200 -
Options sold - 11,983 - 11,983
Swaps 1,013,433 997,538 123,604 107,709
$ 2,100,770 $ 2,099240 $ 148957 $ 148,027
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2015

Notional amount Balance
Transaction Asset Liability Debit Credit
Long-term futures position $ 25864 $ 25864 $ - $ -
Short-term futures position 16,330 16,330 - -
Long-term forwards contracts 381,528 381,837 8,779 9,088
Short-term forwards contracts 339,906 347,927 2,776 10,797
Options acquired 4,419 - 4,419 -
Options sold - 7,813 - 7,813
Swaps 908,032 900,683 79,880 72,531
$ 1,676,079 $ 1,680,454 $ 95,854 $ 100,229
Hedging:
2016
Notional amount Balance
Transaction Asset Liability Debit Credit
Long-term forwards contracts $ 2,778 % 2485 % 293 %
Short-term forwards contracts 142 188 46
Swaps 93,980 86,302 18,641 10,963
$ 96,900 $ 88,975 $ 18934 $ 11,009
2015
Notional amount Balance
Transaction Asset Liability Debit Credit
Long-term forwards contracts $ 2873 % 2779 8% 94 $
Short-term forwards contracts 314 297 38 21
Swaps 101,939 96,639 13,147 7,847
$ 105,126 $ 99,715 $ 13279 $ 7,868

Futures and forward contracts For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Institution carried out

transactions in recognized markets (Mexican Derivatives Market (Mex-Der) Chicadjoleuy
including an equity of $7,650 distributed in rates df3( currencies of $6,635, indexes of $867 and

securities of $161.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Institution carried out transactiecognized markets

(Mexican Derivatives Market (Mex-Der) Chicago and ITAU), including an eqfiys,263
distributed in rates of $34, currencies of $4,939, indexes and securit230of $

The Institution also entered into forward contracts with the principal forigencies. At the close of
the year 2015, the following contracts are open:
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Trading:

Sales Purchases
Type of Contract Contract Book
Transaction Underlying Receivable value value Deliverable balance
Futures M10 Bonds $ 885 $ 885 $ - $ - $ -
Index 2,981 2,981 3 3 -
S&P 167 167 148 148 -
U.S. dollars 4,426 4,426 90,077 90,077 -
$ 8459 $ 8,459 $ 90228 % 90,228 $ -
Forwards U.S. dollars $ 456,394 $ 474,167 $ 478535 $ 470,069 $ (9,307)
Index 17,771 17,598 17,910 18,088 (5)
Equity 147 140 576 563 20
Bonds 9,919 9,801 598 606 110
$ 484231 $ 501,706 $ 497,619 $ 48,326 $ (9,182)
Hedging:
Sales Purchases
Type of Contract Contract Book
Transaction Underlying Receivable value value Deliverable balance
Forwards U.S. dollars $ 142 $ 188 $ 2,778 $ 2485 $ 247
At the close of the year 2015, the following contracts are open:
Trading:
Sales Purchases
Type of Contract Contract Book
transaction Underlying Receivable value value Deliverable balance
Futures TIHE $ 4824 $ 4,824 $ - $ - $ -
M10 Bonds - - 2,394 2,394 -
BMF 20 20 472 472 -
Index 4,319 4,319 300 300 -
S&P - - 5,747 5,747 -
U.S. dollars 7,167 7,167 16,951 16,951 -
$ 16,330 $ 16,330 $ 25,864 $ 25,864 $ -
Forwards U.S. dollars $ 311,781 $ 320,009 $ 369,754 $ 369,858 $ (8,332)
Index 11,715 11,509 6,091 6,303 6)
Equity 5,157 5,161 5,683 5,676 3
Bonds 11,253 11,248 - - 5
$ 339906 $ 347,927 $ 381528 $ 381837 $ (8,330)
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Hedging:

Sales Purchases
Contract Contract Book
Type of transaction Underlying Receivable value value Deliverable balance
Forwards U.S. dollars $ 314 $ 297 $ 2873 $ 2779 $ 111
Options - At December 31, 2016, option transactions were as follows:
Trading:
Notional Fair
Type of transaction Underlying amount Value
Purchases OTC Options Interest rates $ 82,842 $ 2,374
Equity securities and
index 28,058 2,008
U.S. dollars 51,595 1,147
Equity securities and
Market options index 7,421 671
$ 6,200
Sales OTC Options Interest rates $ 198,528 $ 2,000
Equity securities and
index 19,473 8,310
U.S. dollars 52,860 1,217
Equity securities anc
Market options index 12,183 456
$ 11,983
At December 31, 2015, option transactions were as follows:
Trading:
Notional Fair
Type of transaction Underlying amount Value
Purchases OTC Options Interest rates $ 35,898 $ 666
Equity securities and
index 16,065 1,852
U.S. dollars 80,416 701
Equity securities and
Market options index 6,804 1,200
$ 4,419
Sales OTC Options Interest rates $ 226,836 $ 956
Equity securities and
index 12,071 5,603
U.S. dollars 83,261 262
Equity securities anc
Market options index 6,879 992
$ 7,813
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d.

Swaps At December 31, 2016, swaps transactions were as follows:

Trading:

Underlying

Currency

Interest rates

Shares

CDS
CRA

Authorized
markets

Currency

U.S. Dollar
Mexican Peso
uDIS

Euro

Colombian Peso
Pound Sterling
Swiss Franc
Chilean Peso

Mexican Peso
U.S. Dollar
Pound Sterling
Euro

U.S. Dollar
Mexican Peso

U.S. Dollar

Mexican Peso

Mexican Peso

Receivable
contract
value

$ 302,861
197,706
91,196
45,386
2,182

1,274

3,651

Payable

contract

$

value

244,825
180,798
107,613
84,599
875
1,274
4,059

1,784,178
1,107,436
510
104,006

5,614
2,077

825

96,058

At December 31, 2015, swap transactions were as follows:

Trading:

Underlying

Currency

Currency

U.S. dollar
Mexican peso
uDIS

Euro
Colombian peso
Pound Sterling
Swiss Franc
Chilean Peso

Receivable
contract
value

$ 248,490
172,766
88,944
31,365

333

1,272

2,890

$

Payable
contract
value

206,434
156,591
101,460
69,536
692
1,272
3,449

Net
Receivable Payable position
$ 325705 $ 256,489 $ 69,216
287,031 291,844 (4,813)
49,789 94,408 (44,619)
1,711 1,809 (98)
- 4,404 (4,404)
664,236 648,954 15,282
$ 255501 $ 252,846 $ 2,655
88,954 90,580 (1,626)
15 30 (15)
1,635 1,821 (186)
346,105 345,277 828
$ 3457 % 59 $ 3,398
36 3,382 (3.346)
3,493 3.441 52
$ 29 % 24 % 5
$ (272) $ - $ (272)
$ (158) $ (158) $ -
$ 1013433 $ 997,538 §$ 15,895
Net
Receivable Payable position
$ 267,706 $ 217,944 $ 49,762
271,080 264,092 6,988
33,234 76,460 (43,226)
1,647 1,719 (72)
- 3,741 (3,741)
573,667 563,956 9,711
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Underlying

Interest rates

Shares

CDS

CRA

Authorized
markets

Currency
Mexican peso
U.S. dollar

Pound Sterling
Euro

U.S. dollar

Mexican peso

U.S. dollar

Mexican peso

Mexican peso

Receivable Payable
contract contract
value value
$ 2,362,155
951,357
509
69,758
$ 1,135
84
$ 1,380
$ -
$ 3,163

Net
Receivable Payable position
$ 260287 $ 261581 $ (1,294)
71,797 72,321 (524)
39 37 2
2,324 2,512 (188)
334,447 336,451 (2,004)
$ 53 % 28 % 25
2 1 1
55 29 26
$ 4 % 35 3 9
$ (393) $ - $ (393)
$ 212 $ 212 $ -
$ 908,032 $ 900683 $ 7,349

The Institution entered into nominal interest rate swaps in Mexican pesos withsviasttutions, at
annual rates ranging from 1.80% to 20.26%. At December 31, 2015tibeat amount of swaps was

$2,362,155.

Hedging:

At December 31, 201&

Underlying

Currency

Interest rates

Currency

Mexican peso
U.S. dollar
Pound Sterling
Euro

Mexican peso
U.S. dollar

Receivable Payable
contract contract
value value

$ 18,400 $ 21,006
33,067 8,294
- 1,202
- 15,390

$ - $ 29,231
- 70,831

Net
Receivable Payable position
$ 20,046 $ 23,806 $ (3,760)
40,005 9,438 30,567
- 1,740 (2,740)
- 18,723 (18,723)
60,051 53,707 6,344
$ 13,135 $ 12,666 $ 469
20,794 19,929 865
33,929 32,595 1,334
$ 93980 $ 86,302 $ 7,678

The Institution entered into nominal interest rate swaps in Mexican pesos withsviagbtiutions &
annual rates ranging from 5.02% to 8.91%. At December 31, 2016,ttbeat@mount of swaps was

$29,231.
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At December 31, 201%

Hedging:
Contract Contract
value value Net
Underlying Currency receivable deliverable Receivable Deliverable position

Currency Mexican peso $ 22949 $ 21,241 % 25430 $ 25090 $ 340
U.S. dollar 34,975 8,015 42,166 9,349 32,817

Pound Sterling - 1,200 - 1,693 (1,693)

Euro - 23,390 - 26,582 (26,582)

67,596 62,714 4,882

Interest rates Mexican peso $ - $ 30,713 % 13,806 $ 14,861 $ (1,055)
U.S. dolbr - 56,353 20,537 19,064 1,473

34,343 33,925 418

$ 101939 $ 96,639 $ 5,300

The Institution entered into nominal interest rate swaps in Mexican pesos withsviagbtitutions at
annual rates ranging from 3.33% to 8.91%. At December 31, 201otibeal amount of swaps was
$30,713.

Collateral received in OTC derivatives as of December 31, 2016 and 2@&toridad under the
KHD GRagablessRU FROODWHUDO UHFHLYHG LQ FDVK” DQG LV VKRZQ D!

2016 2015

Cash received as Acquisition Accrued Book Book

derivatives warranty cost interest value value
Actimed, S.A. de C.V,, SIID $ - $ - $ - $ 2
Banco Actinver, S.A., IBM - - - 2
Banco Base, S.A., IBM 188 - 188 100
Banco Inbursa, S.A., IBM 1,531 - 1,531 1,483
Banco JP Morgan, S.A., IBM 778 1 779 510
Banco Nacional de Obras, S.N.C - - - 654

Banco Regional de Monterrey,

S.A, IBM 29 - 29 41
BBVA Banco Continental 27 - 27 161
BBVA Colombia - - - 225
Banco Nacional Com Exterior, S.N.( 544 3 547 510
Bimar Internacional 392 - 392 446
Credit AgricoleCIB 2,042 1 2,043 1,626
Credit Suisse Securities 3,221 2 3,223 8,146
Deutsche Bank 7,103 5 7,108 2,542
Goldman Sachs Paris 5,921 4 5,925 3,795
HSBC Bank USA N.AN.Y 109 - 109 46
J. Aron and Company 1,129 1 1,130 1,065
Merrill Lynch Cap.S.E 1,111 1 1,112 569
Morgan Stanley & CO 188 - 188 393
Morgan Stanley SAS 2,071 1 2,072 1,294
Natixis 1,543 1 1,544 1,576
Sociedad Hipotecaria Federal, S.N.( - - - 1,373
Valores Mexicanos Casa de Bolsz

S.A. de C.V. 35 - 35 1
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e.

f.

Cash received as
derivatives warranty

VECTOR Casa de Bolsa, S.A. de
C.V.

Actiganamassa DCV SIID

Alsea SAB de CV

BBVA SERVEX

Banco Interacciones

Banco Santander (México), S.A.

Banco ve por mas S.A.

Banco Mercantil del Norte

Casa de Bolsa Finame

Morgan Stanley CAP S

XIGNUX, S.A. de C.V.

Total collateral received incas $

As of December 31 2016 and 2018V KH ,QVWLWXWLRQ KDV QRW UHJLVWHUHG 3&

2016 2015
Acquisition Accrued Book Book
cost interest value value
7 - 7 22
1 - 1 -
131 - 131 -
846 - 846 -
201 1 202 -
2,511 12 2,523 -
14 - 14 -
3,447 2 3,449 -
68 - 68 -
729 - 729 -
318 - 318 17
36,235 $ 35 $ 36,270 $ 26,599

Transactions with embedded derivative financial instruments

Held for trading purposes:

2016
Book value Balance
Transaction type Asset Liability Asset Liability
Options acquired 1,009 $ - $ 1,009 $ -
Options sold - 1,249 - 1,249
Swaps 18,993 17,498 5,541 4,045
20,002 $ 18,747 $ 6,550 $ 5,294
2015
Book value Balance
Transaction type Asset Liability Asset Liability
Options acquired 238 % - $ 238 % -
Options sold - 1,119 - 1,119
Swaps 18,869 17,524 5,195 3,850
19,107 $ 18643 $ 5433 $ 4,969
Embedded options (Underlying
Held for trading purposes:
2016
Transaction type Underlying Face value Fair value
Purchases OTC Options U.S. dollar $ 3,860 $ 12
Interest rate 1,196 48
Indexes 28,434 949
$ 33,490 $ 1,009
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Transaction type

Sales OTC Options
Transaction type

Purchases OTC Options

Sales OTC Options

Embedded swaps (Underlying)

Held for trading purposes:

Underlying Currency

Currency Mexican peso
U.S. dollar
Euro

Interest rate Mexican peso

U.S. dollar

Underlying Currency

Currency Mexican peso
U.S. dollar
Euro

Interest rate Mexican peso

U.S. dollar

2016

Underlying Face value Fair value
Interest rates $ 13,173  $ 14
Indexes 14,413 1,195
U.S. dollar 3,439 40

$ 31,025 $ 1,249
2015

Underlying Face value Fair value
U.S. dollar $ 257 % 2
Interest rates 33,293 178
Indexes 2,991 58

$ 36541 $ 238
Interest rates $ 13506 $ 105
Indexes 15,647 1,011
U.S. dollar 107 3
$ 29,260 $ 1,119
2016
Receivable Payable
Receivable market market
face value value value Fair value
$ 4509 $ 4544 % 4622 $ (78)
4,785 5,388 5,232 156
381 438 432 6
$ 9675 $ 10370 $ 10286 $ 84
$ 45450 $ 8,478 $ 7,109 $ 1,369
1,112 146 102 44
$ 46562 $ 8,624 $ 7,211 % 1,413
2015
Receivable Payable
Receivable market market
face value value value Fair value
$ 5272 $ 5315 $ 5,403 $ (88)
4,556 5,335 4,950 385
358 419 411 8
$ 10186 $ 11069 $ 10,764 $ 305
$ 49401 $ 7618 $ 6,635 $ 983
1,015 182 125 57
$ 50416 $ 7,800 $ 6,760 $ 1,040
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As of December 31, 2016, the Institution has entered into the folldwidge contracts:

Type of Hedge: Cash Flow Hedges

Maximum maturity
Description of coverage Risk hedged Hedge instrument date of hedge

Partial coverage of Monetary Regulation Variable flows from

Deposit the DRM 24 IRS FIJAITIIE Jun -2020
Exchange rate
variation in
Coverage of expenses and investment in  estimated expense 12 FWD sale
EUR and USD flows EUR/MXP Jun -2017
Coverage of sovereign bonds of the Variable flows from 1 FWD sale
Brazilian government the bond BRL/USD/MXN January 2017
* As of the date the cash flows prognosticated for the transactiong@teuithin the time initially
agreed.
Type of Hedge: Fair Value
Description of coverage Nature of the records covered Hedge instrument
t 6 IRS Pays Variable Interest in
Fixed Rate Risk on USD and receives fixed interest
Coverage of loans in USD and MXP  Loans in USD And + 2 IRS Pays Variable Interest in
From Fixed Rate to Floating-Rate Fixed Rate in MXP MXP and receives fixed interest

Fixed Rate on Bonds
Coverage of Mexican Sovereign Bonc  UMS in EUR/
in EUR/USD/GBP USD/GBP - V/F 70 CCS VIF

Coverage Issuance of Subordinated Fixed Rate on Notes
Notes USD Issued USD V/F 31IRS F/IV

Coverage Issuance of Subordinated Fixed Rate on Notes
Notes USD Issued USD V/F 24 CCS FIV

Fixed Rate in Foreign
Currency USD, EUR,

Coverage of Corporate Bonds uDI 54 CCS VIF
Fixed Rate on Bonds
Coverage of Corporate Bonds usbD 48 IRS V/F
* The Fair value of the Cross Currency Swaps (CCS) do not inclugxthange rate, as it is not

part of the hedging.

IRS - Interest rate Swaps. CCS - Cross currency swaps.

Fair value hedge

Periods in which flows

Amount recognized in

comprehensive income

Amount that is Line of the
reclassified from Consolidated Income
Equity to Income Statement where the

Line of the
Consolidated Balance
Sheet where the
primary position is
recorded

Restricted Funds
available

Property, furniture
and equipment
Marketing

Securities

Part of the balance sheet where the primary positiorsi

instrument affect results of the period Statement Hedge is being applied
Interest Margin from
$ (302) 41 months $ (644) $ 22 Funds available
$ 293 5 months $ 200 $ 372  Expenses
Interest Margin from
$ 0 months $ (18) $ - Securities
Maximum maturity of Fair value hedge Gain/loss hedge Gain/loss hedging
hedge instrument instrument element recorded
2040 $ 134 1,786 $ (1,547) Performing Loan Portfolio
2025 $ (5,652) 406 $ (403) Investment in securities
2024 $ 871 (2,173) $ 2,173 Subordinated debt
2024 $ 3,680 (1,227) $ 1,224 Subordinated debt
2025 $ (837) 420 $ (410) Investment in securities
2025 $ 527 448 $ (448) Investment in securities

Ineffectiveness
recognized

N/A

Ineffectiveness
recognized

®)
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9.

Loan portfolio

Commercial loans-

Denominated in Mexican
pesos-
Commercial
Rediscounted portfolio
Lease portfolio
Denominated in U.S.
dollars- (equivalent in
Mexican pesos)
Commercial
Rediscounted portfolio
Lease portfolio
Total Commercial or
business activity loans

Financial entities
Government entities

Total Commercial loans

Consumer loans-

Credit card
Other consumer loans
Total consumer loans

Mortgage loans

Residential and non-
residential
Low income

Total mortgage loans

Total Loan portfolio

Portfolio

Business or commercial
activity
Loans to financial entities

Loans to government entities

Business credit card
Company credit card

Total

Loans granted classified by type of loan at December 31, 2016 abd@&E as follows:

Performing portfolio Non-performing portfolio Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$ 254914 $ 210,673 $ 5578 $ 4913 $ 260,492 $ 215,586
13,203 8,119 49 44 13,252 8,163
1,831 1,311 21 6 1,852 1,317
138,285 122,355 324 137 138,609 122,492
606 1,239 26 48 632 1,287
1,135 258 2 11 1,137 269
409,974 343,955 6,000 5,159 415,974 349,114
19,606 15,869 322 499 19,928 16,368
142,641 137,515 1 1 142,642 137,516
572,221 497,339 6,323 5,659 578,544 502,998
102,712 95,280 4,016 3,789 106,728 99,069
143,253 122,702 4,739 3,644 147,992 126,346
245,965 217,982 8,755 7,433 254,720 225,415
166,694 150,959 6,828 7,208 173,522 158,167
14,821 16,883 853 1,105 15,674 17,988
181,515 167,842 7,681 8,313 189,196 176,155
$ 999,701 $ 883,163 $ 22759 $ 21405 $1,022460 $ 904,568

During 2016 and 2015, the Institution acquired portfolio in the atofuB0 and $158, respectively, with a
corresponding book value at the time of the purchase of $0 amespEctively.

At December 2016 and 2015, housing loan portfolio includes restrieteditized performing portfolio of
$4,689 and $5,663, respectively, and non-performing portfoli8® and $94, respectively.

Commercial loans are detailed below; the distressed and non-distressed perémaimag-performing
portfolios at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are also identified. Tittfeljpodoes not include guarantees and
interest collected ahead of time, which are shown as part of the commercial portfii@apnsolidated
balance sheet:

2016
Distressed Non-distressed
Non Non
Performing performing Performing performing Total
$ - $ 5,144 380,172 $ 6 $ 385,322
- 322 19,601 - 19,923
- 1 142,640 - 142,641
- 1,552 30,637 638 32,827
- 2 101 1 104
$ - $ 7,021 573,151 $ 645 $ 580,817
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2015

Distressed Non-distressed
Non Non
Portfolio Performing performing Performing performing Total
Business or commercial
activity $ - $ 3,488 $ 316,189 $ 990 $ 320,667
Loans to financial entities - 321 16,080 179 16,580
Loans to government entities - 1 137,515 - 137,516
Business credit card 3 802 27,997 1,120 29,922
Company credit card - 2 86 2 90
Total $ 3 3 4614 $ 497867 $ 2291 $ 504,775

The restructured and renewed portfolio at December 31, 2016, and 264 aswvfollows:

2016
Restructured Portfolio Performing Non performing Total
Business or commercial activity $ 62,279 $ 1582 % 63,861
Consumer loans 1,050 999 2,049
Mortgage loans 16,848 3,838 20,686
Total $ 80,177 $ 6,419 $ 86.596
2015
Restructured Portfolio Performing Non performing Total
Business or commercial activity $ 55,558 $ 1,415 $ 56,973
Consumer loans 898 1,151 2,049
Mortgage loans 17,379 4,182 21,561
Total $ 73,835 $ 6,748 $ 80,583

At December 31, 2016, the Institution has collateral in real property amtbent of $8,473, together with
collateral in securities in the amount of $5,634, for restructured commercial loan

At December 31, 2015, the Institution has collateral in real property imtherd of $9,589, together with
warranties in securities in the amount of $4,973, for restructured comnieacial

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, aging of non-performantjolio is as follows:

2016
Period
181 to 365 366 days to 2
Portfolio 1 to 180 days days years Warranty Total

Business or commercial

activity $ 1,8%5 $ 2,89 $ 3,109 $ (1,330) % 6323

Consumer loans 8,337 418 - - 8,755

Mortgage loans 1,641 1,981 4,059 - 7,681

Total $ 11833 $ 5,088 $ 7168 $ (1,330) $ 22759
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2015

Period
181 to 365 366 days to 2
Portfolio 1 to 180 days days years Warranty Total

Business or commercial

activity $ 3,128 % 1,547 $ 2224 $ (1,240) $ 5,659

Consumer loans 7,134 314 - (15) 7,433

Mortgage loans 1,452 2,286 4,575 - 8,313

Total $ 11,714 % 4,147 $ 6,799 $ (1,255) $ 21,405

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, unaccrued commissions for initraltyigg credit, by type and average
payment period, are as follows:

2016
By amortization period
More than 15

1to 5years 15 years years Total
Business or commercial activity — $ 652 $ 553 $ 67 % 1,372
Mortgage loans - 15 194 209
Total $ 652 3 568 $ 361 3 1,581
2015

By amortization period
More than 15

1to 5years 15 years years Total
Business or commercial activity — $ 463 $ 447 % 180 $ 1,090
Mortgage loans - 21 217 238
Total $ 463 $ 468 $ 397 $ 1,328

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the balances of non-perfoisaimgortfolio fully reserved and
eliminated from the balance sheet were as follows:

Concept 2016 2015

Business or commercial activity $ 2729 % 3,866
Consumer loans:

Credit card 3,273 3,316

Other consumer loans 3,037 3,783

6,310 7,099

Mortgage loans 5,415 4,223

Total $ 14,454 % 15,188

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amounts of portfolio stidwt including securitization
transactions, were as follows:

Concept 2016 2015
Business or commercial activity $ - $ 978
Credit card and consumer 10,683 12,392
Mortgage loans 1,182 1,335
Total $ 11,865 $ 14,705
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As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amount of lines of credit and ¢dtbeeslit recorded in memoranda
accounts comes to $553,195 and $458,700, respectively.

Revenues from interest and commissions recorded in the financial margigrded by type of loan, are
comprised as follows:

2016 2015
Type of loan Interest Commissions Total Total
Commercial loans-
Denominated in Mexican pesos-
Commercial $ 19,641 $ 1,021 % 20,662 $ 15,616
Rediscounted portfolio 828 - 828 564
Lease portfdb 120 - 120 79
Denominated in U.S. dollars-
Commercial 5,111 1 5,112 3,890
Rediscounted portfolio 72 - 72 56
Lease portfolio 46 - 46 7
Total commercial loans 25,818 1,022 26,840 20212
Loans to financial entities 865 - 865 487
Loans to government entities 7,549 - 7,549 5,977
Total commercial loas 34,232 1,022 35,254 26,676
Consumer loas-
Credit card 29,766 - 29,766 27,934
Other consumer loan 28,699 409 29,108 24,696
Total Consumer loan 58,465 409 58,874 52,630
Mortgage loans 18,306 61 18,367 17,408
Total $ 111,003 $ 1492 $ 112,495 $ 96,714

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amount of the recoveries giddéoiio written off or eliminated
were $695 and $738 UHVSHFWLYHO\ UHFRJQL]JHG LQ WKH KHDRIQYRCGRHBWH (R !
statement of income.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, loans classified by economic seet@ssvfollows:

2016 2015
Concentration Concentration
Amount percentage Amount percentage
Private (companies and
individuals) $ 415,964 40.68% $ 349,114 38.59%
Credit card and consumer 254,720 24.91% 225,415 24.92%
Mortgage 189,196 18.50% 176,155 19.47%
Government entities 142,642 13.95% 137,516 15.20%
Financial 17,490 1.71% 13,917 1.54%
Foreign (non-Mexican
entities) 2,438 0.25% 2,450 0.28%
Other past-due loans 10 - 1 -
Total $ 1022460 100.00% $ 904,568 100.00%

Related-party loans At December 31, 2016 and 2015, loans granted to related parties idaaczomwith the
provisions of article 73 of the law of credit institutions, amounte®3®,962 and $39,750, respectively. The
amount of related-party loans at December 31, 2016 and 2015 in8lL@g46 and $13,984, respectively, of
letters of credit, which are recorded in memorandum accounts.
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Credit support program -

Early termination of debtor support programs:

On July 15, 2010, an agreement was signed between the Federal Gaonetiroagh the Treasury

'HSDUWPHQW 6+3& DQG FHUWDLQ &UHGLW ,QVY AL W IORGW VAL W K W K
$VVRFLDWLRQ WR HDUO\ WHUPLQDWH WKH GHEWRU VXSSRUW SURJUD

The support programs in which the Institution participated, and whictharsubject matter of this
Agreement, are:

- Housing Loan Debtor Support Program
- Housing Loan Debtor Benefits Agreement

At December 31, 2010, the amount of the payment obligations &&ttheral Government is comprised as
follows:

Restructured loans under the Agreement $ 4,098

Non-performing portfolio which showed payment compliar

as of March 31, 2011 37
Total base mount $ 4,135

General conditions of payment obligations of Federal Goverttmen

The payment obligations of the Federal Government will be fulfilled througdilments of $827 a year,
adjusted for accrued interest and any excess amount between the 7.5% aretdge of the indicators of
arrears at the close of each of the months of the year immediately befgpayment, for a period of five
years, in accordance with the following:

Annual payment Payment date
First December 1, 2011

Second June 1, 2012

Third June 3, 2013

Fourth June 2, 2014

Fifth June 1, 2015

The interest accruing shall be at the rate resulting from the arithmetic averageohtial rates of return
based on discounted CETES within 91 days, issued during the immggisetding month each period, led
to a yield curve within 28 days, capitalized monthly, for the perioainh are not available with the
observed rates, interest rates futures Cetes within 91 days of the monthateipgaieceding each period,
which publishes Proveedor Integral de Precios, S.A.

As of December, 31, 2015, the annuities have been totally paid.

SRVLWLRQ LQ VSHFLDO &HWHV DQG VSHFLDO 3& " &IHWHR/I ZBEHFKXUAKMH HY
KHOG WR PDWXULW\’
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As of December 31, 2016 WKH UHPQDQW RI WKH VSHFLDO &HWHVI®WG VSHFLDO

Special Cetes Special 3 & ‘Cetes

Trust of No. of Date of No. of Date of
origin securities Amount maturity securities Amount maturity
4215 18,511,119 $ 1,811 13/07/2017 2,109,235 $ 66 13/07/2017
4229 128,738,261 12,595 07/07/2022 - - -
4239 10,656,993 1,043 01/07/2027 468,306 15 01/07/2027
4246 383,470 38 20/07/2017 96,876 3 20/07/2017
4312 964,363 86 04/08/2022 1,800 - 04/08/2022
Total $ 15,573 $ 84

Loan granting policies and procedures7KH ,QVWLWXWLRQTVY FUHGLW PDQXDO UHJXOD
recovery of loans. This manual was authorized by the Board eftiois and outlines the parameters to be

followed by officers involved in the credit process, which are basedeo@redit Institutions Law, the

conservative credit rules established by the Commission and sound baradtiges.

&UHGLW DXWKRUL]DWLRQ XQGHU WKH %RD®& & @R HASJRHAHNRHGY fF RIFPLSARWR
officers.

In the credit management function the general process from pronmtiecovery is defined, specifying, by
business unit, the policies, procedures and responsibilities of the officengeitivats well as the tools to be
used in each step of the process.

The credit process is based on a thorough analysis of loan applicatiordgriio determine the
comprehensive risk of each debtor. For most loans, debtors must &aleasn alternate repayment source.

The principal policies and procedures to determine concentrations of credit riskiahdosmm part of the
credit manuals are:

Common risk:

+ Establish the criteria for determining the individuals or corporations thegsemt common risk for the
Institution.

+ Establish the criteria for determining whether individuals and/or corporataris unison and are
integrated into the same business group or consortium, in ordentifycpotential accumulated risk
and the maximum limit of financing to be granted.

Maximum financing limit:

Make known the maximum legal credit rules issued by the authorities.
Communicate the updated maximum credit limit for the Institution, as well asntérgpof
exceptions.

+ I+

Risk diversification:

At December 31, 2016, and 2015, the Institution disclosed that it mainkeirollowing credit risk
operations in compliance with the general risk diversification rules establistieal ikccounting Criteria and
applicable to asset and liability transactions, as follows:
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10.

11.

X At December 31, 2016, and 2015, the Institution has no loahglefittors or groups of entities or
individuals representing a joint risk in which the individual amount exceeds fLii§dasic capital,
respectively. As of December 31, 2015 it had a debtor of $17,216, reprgsktts of the basic
capital.

X As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the maximum amount of firgandih the three largest debtors
amounts to $31,020 and $26,754, respectively and represent 19ti@&takic capital.

Potential risk:

X Loan applications must be sanctioned in terms of the amount of the risk.
X Avoid risk exposure above the legal limit and other institutional limits established

Consumer loans, mortgage loans and loans to small and micro-sizedniesmre subject to automated

evaluation and follow-up mechanisms that have been implemented, lmasedain standard factors which,

XQGHU WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQYV FULWHULDWBWUHHXN.IFGHW R \ PLORE M/ KGHH KIDVQ®
high volume of loan applications.

UDI-denominated restructured loans

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, restructured loans denominated in UDIStachtmu$2,242 and $2,901

respectively.

Allowance for loan losses

The following table presents the results of basic loan ratings of the Institaéide for the purpose of
recording the loan loss allowance based on the requirements discussed3n Note

2016
Allowance for loan losses
Risk category Total loans Commercial Consumer Mortgage Total allowance
Al $ 747,109 % 1337 % 1,408 $ 271 % 3,016
A2 129,740 561 1,442 166 2,169
Bl 60,570 161 1,460 53 1,674
B2 41,086 178 1,495 48 1,721
B3 26,107 217 1,254 29 1,500
C1l 19,097 119 1,289 160 1,568
Cc2 20,105 77 2,965 312 3,354
D 17,819 1,379 1,655 1,742 4,776
E 15,224 2,595 5,880 1,298 9,773
1,076,857 6,624 18,848 4,079 29,551
Excepted
Additional - - - 454 454
Total $ 1,076,857 $ 6,624 $ 18,848 $ 4533 $ 30,005
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2015
Allowance for loan losses

Risk category Total loans Commercial Consumer Consumer Total allowance
Al $ 597,656 $ 726 $ 1,116 % 234 % 2,076
A2 120,489 573 1,220 169 1,962
Bl 56,385 269 1,217 64 1,550
B2 46,717 160 1,657 32 1,849
B3 32,363 443 1,227 22 1,692
C1 17,703 239 1,008 135 1,382
Cc2 18,102 236 2,464 299 2,999
D 16,804 1,430 1,494 1,704 4,628
E 15,494 2,006 4,566 1413 7,985
921,713 6,082 15,969 4,072 26,123

Excepted 22,073 - - - -
Additional - 213 1,050 1,263
Total $ 943,786 $ 6,295 $ 15969 $ 5,122 $ 27,386

The total loan portfolio balance used for classification purposes includes amelated to the irrevocable
lines of credit granted, letters of credit and guarantees given, which are recamdonandum accounts.

The balance of the estimate at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is determineshithgealance of the
portfolio at that date.

The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2016 and 2015 cove&®fila6n-performing accrued
interest.

The amount of the allowance at December 31, 2016 and 2015 includes tHeatessbf loans granted in
foreign currency valued at the exchange rate in effect on DecembériBlad 2015.

At December 31, 2016, and 2015, the Institution has created additiortglage portfolio reserves of $454
and $1,050, respectively, which represent the supplement required htetinaliexpected loss rating model.

At December 31, 2016, and 2015, the Institution has created adda@mmaiercialportfolio reserves of $0
and $213, respectively, which represent the supplement required by the iexpected loss rating model.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the allowance for loan losses represe8t/d and 127.94%,
respectively, of the non-performing loan portfolio.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, allowance by type of portfokeegmates is comprised as follows:

Iltem 2016 2015

Commercial loans-
Commercial $ 5740 $ 5,447
Financial entities 618 514
Government entities 266 334
6,624 6,295
Consumer 18,847 15,969
Mortgage 4,534 5,122
Total allowance $ 30,005 $ 27,386
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12.

Changes in the allowance for loan losseBelow is an analysis of the allowance for loan losses:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year $ 27,386 $ 26,081
Allowances charged to income statement 32,383 28,482
Applications and write-offs of the year (29,938) (27,329)
Exchange effect 174 152
Balance at end of year $ 30,005 $ 27,386

Securitization operations

Mortgage portfolio securitizationst

The Institution has issued sedl WL]DWLRQ FHUWLILFDWHYV 3&%° ZKLFK KDYH JHQF
the following contracts:

Irrevocable Trusts created between BBVA Bancomgnvex, Grupo Financiero for the Issuance of
Fiduciary Securitization Certificatest

+

I+

I+

Transfer contract -

7KLY FRQWUDFW LV HQWHUHG LQWR E\ DQGEDRIFWRZONMNE [W&KI$S ,QVWLYV
37UDQVIHUHH® DQG ORQH[ &DVD GH %REGVHQVBWGEHMH, 9IRB&WRPARI)

assigning, on the part of the Transferor, performing portfolithedrrevocable Fiduciary Certificate

,VVXDQFH 7UXVW 3WKH 6WRFN ODUNHW &OHUGBNZ L MWFHORWKNW U H VUIHHUHY R\W

limitation of title, together with all related benefits, proceeds and accessqgrlesbfe. The

Transferor is liable only for the declarations included in such contrastjfich reason non-

FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK DQ\ RI WKH GHFODUDW LRHBWO DPIEQ Q JRRYM®H RHDRR W

the ineligible loans or reimbursing in cash the proportional part of tredmration; consequently, the

Transferor does not assume any obligation regarding the mortgage lodhsriRore, the

consideration was fixed as the right to receive the total amount obtained in the pliagttne SMCs,

less the respective issuance costs.

Irrevocable Fiduciary Stock Market Certificate Issuance Trust Contract -

7KLY FRQWUDFW LV HQWHUHG LQWR E\ DX &) I[HHWWWZ BHH@ MV K A L BRUAW L\
,QYH[ 6 $ B37UXVWHH~ DQG ORQH[ &DVD G H HSRIOHMH QWD WELHY K. 9
stipulates that the objective of the Trust is the acquisition of ngettans, free of all encumbrance

and without any reservation or limitation of title, in terms of the Ass@grin€ontract, the issuance of

SMCs, which will have such mortgage loans as a source of paymehe placement of the SMCs

among small investors; while the Trustee will have all those powers and oblgyatimsidered

necessary to achieve such purpose.

The same contract established the initial value of guarantees with respect to theckiag the
FHUWLILFDWH ZKLFK DPRXQW LV UHFR¥YE888I|LRW DRAHFRXQWEQH IXB
VHFXULWL]HG WUDQVDFWLRQV™ IRU WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQ

Portfolio Management and Collection Contract -

This contractt,V HOQOWHUHG LQWR E\ DQG EHWZHHQ WKKHQVoWEWXWLRQ 3
37UXVWHH" DQG ORQH[ &DVD GH %ROVD 6 $ &GIG&HIY9 WIRIRPPRQWMH

the Trustee contracted the Administrator to carry out the management and cofletdly and

H[FOXVLYHO\ LQ UHODWLRQ W&etbked aBRttW/K D WH ZGI R BIQWIUQ® DIGN\UU H |

assignment contract. Accordingly, to enable the Administrator to fulfilbligiations, the Trustee

will pay a management commission to the Administrator equivalent emtbent resulting from

multiplying the unpaid balance of the principal of the mortgage loansehyeiftentage stipulated and

divided by 12.
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Irrevocable Trust Number 989 created between BBVA Bancom€l Banco (formerly The Bank New
York Mellon) for the Issuance of Securitization certificates -

On June 17, 2013, the Commission issued Document Number 132693 to authorize the registration of
the Institution with the National Securities Registry of the Progranhéissuance of Securitization
Certificates for amounts up to $20,000 or the equivalent in UDIS for g/&ge period as of the authorization
date.

On June 21, 2013, the sixth issuance of mortgage portfolio securitizatitificates was made for the amount
of $4,413, based on the program for the issuance of securitizatitficates authorized by the Commission.

+ Assignment Contract -

On that same date, the Institution, in its capacity as trustor and final treficizey, and the Trustee,

in its capacity as trustee and through their Joint Representative, executechbfevicust No.

F/00989 for the issuance of fiduciary securitization certificates to enable theeltosssue

securitization certificates to be offered to investors through the Mexicak Bxthange, Bolsa

OH[LFDQD GH 9DORUHV 6 $ % GH & 9 33%09" PRGWIHEIAK ZLOO EH

I+

Irrevocable Trust Contract for the Issuance of Fiduciary Securitization Certificates -

This contract was executed by the Institution; (Trustor and final Terstfiiary) Cl Banco, S.A.,
Institucion de Banca Multiple (formerly The Bank of New York MellorA.Sinstitucion de Banca
Multiple), (Trustee) and Monex Casa de Bolsa, S.A. de C.V. (Joint Representatiid) stipulates
that the purpose of the trust is to acquire mortgage loans, fredidmsr encumbrances and without
any ownership reserves or limitations pursuant to the terms of the AssigBorgract, to issue
securitization certificates. These securitization certificates will have the afdienggshmortgage
loans as their source of payment and to allow them to be offered to msvédeanwhile, the trustee
will have all the powers and obligations needed to attain this objective.

I+

Portfolio Administration and Collection Contract -

This contract was executed between the Institution (Administrator) BBdr®&, S.A., Institucion de
Banca Mdltiple (formerly The Bank of New York Mellon, S.A., Ingtitin de Banca Multiple),
(Trustee) and Monex Casa de Bolsa, S.A. de C.V. (Joint Representative). nidenmth of the
contract, the Trustee contracted the Administrator to perform administratiozodection activities
exclusively related to the mortgage loans and any foreclosed real privpesfierred through the
Assignment Contract. Accordingly and to enable the Administratollfith ifts obligations, the Trustee
will pay an administration commission to the Administrator.

The specific characteristics of each issue are detailed below:

Trusts
Concept 711 752 781 847 881 989

Execution date of trust contract 19-Dec-07 13-Mar-08 5-Aug-08 08-Dec-08 03-Aug09  21-Jund3

Number of loans assigned 2,943 1,587 9,071 18,766 15,101 10,830

Amount of portfolio $ 2,644 $ 1155 $ 569 $ 5823 $ 6545 $ 4413

SMCs issued 25,404,498 11,143,185 11,955,854 55,090,141 59,101,116 41,920,673

Face value per SMC (in Mexican

pesos) $ 100peso $ 100pesor 100UDIS $ 100peso $ 100 peso $ 100 peso

Amount of issue of SMC $ 2540 $ 1,114 $ 4830 $ 5,509 $ 5910 $ 4,192
Series Al - - $ 2,415 - $ 562 -
Series A2 - - $ 2,415 - $ 1,732 -
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Trusts

Concept 711 752 781 847 881 989
Series A3 - - - - $ 3,616 -
Gross annual interest rate 9.05% 8.85% - 9.91% 6.38%
Series Al - - 4.61% - 6.14% -
SeriesA2 - - 5.53% - 8.04% -
Series A3 - - - - 10.48% -
Effective duration of the SMC
(years) 20.5 20.42 24.84 22 20.08 20
Value of certification $ 103 $ 0 $ 866 $ 314 % 635 $ 221
Value of guarantees with respect 1
the loan % 3.9% 3.5% 15.2% 5.4% 9.7% 5.0%
Total cash flow received for the
assignment $ 2507 $ 1,091 $ 4,751 $ 5475 $ 5,733 $ 4,129

The third issue, which refers to Trust 781, was made in UDIS. Thamrgetrate of the UDI used at the issue
date is $4.039765 Mexican pesos per UDI.

As of December 31, 2016 and 201D PRXQWYV UHSRUWHG XQGHU 3%zd@HILWYVY WR EH U
RSHUDWLRQV™ R represnfil® outstanding trust certificates of unconsolidated securitizations.

The summarized financial information of unconsolidated securitization trustbasember 31, 2016 and
2015 are shown below:

No. of
Trust 711 752 781 847
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Assets $ 541 $ 698 $ 285 $ 357 $ - $ 2360 $ 1473 $ 1,856
Liabilities $ 494 $ 634 $ 261 $ 329 $ - $ 259 $ 1347 $ 1,690
6WRFNKRGC
equity $ 47 % 64 $ 24 $ 28 $ - $ 2101 $ 126 $ 166
Net result $ 6 $ 1 3 3 3 2 $ - $ 183 $ 19 % 19

At the December 2016 close, Trust No.781 has a zero balance becausé,20 ¥ the securitization

certificates pertaining to its securitized mortgage portfolio were settled aheae oftithe settlement date,

the net loan portfolio value was $2,093, which is equal to a tota@@63nortgage loans. The effect
UHFRJQL]JHG LQ WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQTVY UHVXOWY ZDV D SURILW RI

In compliance with the order of rules and priority of distributions esfaddi in clause 11 of the Trust
Contract described in this Note, the Assignee will distribute to the last Beneficiprppiortion to the

percentage represented by the respective certification, the residual or sutbtugsdignee (cash flows of
principal and interest).
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13.

(a)

(b)

Receivables, sundry debtors and prepayments, net

The balance at December 31, 2016 and 2015, consists of the following

Item 2016 2015
Debtors from transaction settlement (a) $ 60,138 $ 32,106
Loans to officers and employees 10,954 10,240
Sundry debtors 2,802 3,376
Debtors from collateral provided through OTC derivatives (| 5,795 14,213
Others 1,585 1,710
81,274 61,645
Less +Allowance for uncollectible accounts (467) (573)
Total $ 80,807 $ 61,072
The receivables for settlement of transactions as of December 31, 202@1&ndre composed as
follows:
2016 2015
Foreign currencies $ 46,218 $ 26,451
Investments in securities 12,832 4,455
Derivatives 1,088 1,200
Total $ 60,138 $ 32,106
Receivables for collateral granted on OTC derivatives as of December 31, 204@1&ns compsed
as follows:
2016 2015
Acquisition Accrued Book Book
Collateral provided through derivatives cost interest value value
BBVA Servex $ - - $ - $ 9,363
Banco INVEX - 23 21
Banco Mercantil del Norte - - - 359
Banco Monex - 60 28
Banco Nacional de México, S.A., IB\ 2 420 487
Barclays Bank PLC - 138 267
BPN Paribas 1,425 1 1,426 1,373
HSBC México, S.A., IBM 1 927 1,491
JP Morganchase BK NY - 89 438
Morgan Stanley & Co - - - 81
Royal Bank of Scotland - 91 39
Actinver Casa Bolsa GFA - 4 -
Banca Afirme, S.A. - 72 -
Banca Mifel, S.A IBM - 6 -
Banco Actinver IBM - 5 -
Banco Nacional de OB 1,730 8 1,738 -
BBVA Chile - 98 -
BBVA Colombia SA - 60 -
Societé Géneralé - 638 256
Toronto Dominion Bank - - - 10
Total $ 5,783 12 $ 5795 $ 14,213
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14. Foreclosed assets, net

Foreclosed assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015, were as follows:

Item 2016 2015
Buildings $ 4571  $ 5,296
Land 2,256 2,750
Securities 23 20
6,850 8,066
Less - Allowance for impairment of foreclosed assets (2,984) (2,404)
Total $ 3,866 $ 5,662

The changes in the reserve for decreases in real estate value are summarsizddritéle years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Opening balance $ 2,404 % 1,669
Application to income statement 1,119 977
Termination of Trust 781 (Bursa 03) 34 -
Reserve application sale of asset and others (573) (242)
Ending balance $ 2984 $ 2,404

15. Property, furniture and equipment, net

Property, furniture and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 20&%svésllows:

Item 2016 2015
Furniture and equipment $ 13,236 $ 14,347
Office space 8,947 9,023
Installation costs 16,157 15,747
Land 2,725 2,725
Construction 14,176 12,980
Construction in progress 36 172
55,277 54,994
Less- Accumulated depreciation and amortization (12,714) (15,353)
Total $ 42563  $ 39,641

For the year ended December 31, 2016, depreciation and amortizationl@2 &8] $ 1,879, respectively
For the year ended December 31, 2015, depreciation and amortizationd@e & $1,453, respectively.

As part of the strategic project during 2015, the movement of sta#iwccarporate headquarters was made,
and $11,149 was reclassified from construction process and itoentp.
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16. Equity investments

Investments in associates were valued according to the equity methitedother permanent investments
were recorded at their acquisition cost. The most significant of these invesareed&tailed below:

Entity Equity participation
2016 2015 2016 2015

Fideicomiso No.1729NVEX - Portfolio Disposal 32.25% 32.25% $ 758 % 758
I+D México, S.A. de C.V. (1) - 50.00% - 283
Compaiiia Mexicana de Procesamiento, S.A. de C. 50.00% 50.00% 136 124
Servicios Electronicos Globales, S.A. de C.V. 46.14% 46.14% 125 120
Seguridad y Proteccién Bancarias, S.A. de C.V. 22.32% 26.14% 15 15
Unidad de Avaltos México, S.A. de C.V.
3393%0(;7(2) - 99.99% - 50
Others Various Various 173 168

Total $ 1,207 $ 1,518

(1) On March 18, 2016, the Institution sold its shareholding in 1+D Méx&é,. de C.V.; the sale
generated an effect of $131, which was recorded under the headibgodntinued operatiorisn the
consolidated statement of inoe.

(2) On July 29, 2016, the Institution sold its shareholding in Unidad\hlios México, S.A. de C.V.,
3$93%0(; ; the sale generated a gain of $421, which was recorded in thaidatesd statement of
income under the heading @iscontinued operatioris

The investment in shares of associates as of December 31, 2016 anch@l&esmined in some cases
based on unaudited financial information, which is adjusted, if argreif€es arise, once the audited
information becomes available.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the dividends received from assaoidtegher permanent investments
were $75 and $62, respectively.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Institution earned equity nesh#s of associates for the amount of
$16and $100, respectively.

17. Deferred taxes
The Institution has recognized a net deferred income tax asset resulting fromargrdifterences between

the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities and tax loss carryfoav&rdcember 31, 2016 and 2015, of
$14,998 and $12,308espectively, as follows:

2016 2015
Item Temporary Difference Temporary Difference
Deferred income Deferred income
Item taxes Item taxes
Temporary differences - assets:

Undeducted allowance for loan losses $ 32,572  $ 9,772  $ 30,526 $ 9,158
Commissions and interest 9,036 2,711 9,403 2,821
Advance premium on swap - - 2,210 663
Provisions 6,416 1,925 5,186 1,556
Other assets 3,682 1,105 3,883 1,165
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2016 2015

Item Temporary Difference Temporary Difference
Deferred income Deferred income
Item taxes Item taxes
Foreclosed assets 3,891 1,167 3,350 1,005
Tax loss carry 48 14 93 28
Valuation securities available-for-sale

(capital) 5,667 1,700 986 296
Accounts Receivable and Payable 467 140 570 171
Total assets 61,779 18,534 56,207 16,863

Temporary differences - liabilities:

Net gain in financial instruments 8,615 2,585 14,067 4,220
Valuation Hedging purposes 87 26 447 134
Advance premium on swap 1,977 593 - -
Pension allowance 423 127 550 165
Other liabilities 684 205 116 35
Total liabilities 11,786 3,536 15,180 4,554
Net deferred tax asset $ 49,993 $ 14,998 $ 41,027 $ 12,309

Based on financial projections, the deferred tax balance derived from tharatlofor loan losses will be
realized in the medium-term.

18.

Other assets

Other assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Item 2016 2015
Software (net) $ 3,79 % 3,626
Prepaid expenses 2,152 2,906
Pension plan prepayment 756 1,010
Other unapplied expenses 345 409
Total $ 709 % 7,951

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the amortization of software is detdrbased on cost or restated cost
up to 2007, using the straight-line method, as of the month folipthigtt of its purchase, by applying the
20% rate.

The amount of the historical cost and software amortization at December 81ar&D2015 are detailed
below:

ltem 2016 2015
Historical cost $ 13,469 $ 11,958
Amortization (9,673) (8,332)
Total $ 3,796 $ 3,626
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19.

Deposits

Liquidity coefficient - The provisions of the Treatment for Admission of Liabilities and Imest for
Foreign Currency Transactions, issued by the Central Bank of Mexicosfdit institutions establishes the
mechanism for determining the liquidity coefficient of liabilities denominatddrieign currency.

Based on the above procedure, in 2016 and 2015 the Institution vi@st $aliquidity requirements of U.S.
$51 and $4 million, respectively, and maintained investments iid lagsets of U.S. $3,551 and $979 million
respectively, reflecting liquidity excesses of U.S. $3,649 million aigd $875 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2016 and based on shortor ltigtUP GXH GDWHV WKH DYHUDJH 30H[LFDGCQ

DWWUDFWLRQ UDWHYV DUH DQG WRJIBWKHILW ARWK UHMVBEHEWLY

At December 31, 2015 and based on short or ltMgtUP GXH GDWHV WKH DYHUDJH S3OHJLI

attraction rates are 0.65% and 2.67"WRJHWKHU ZLWK DQG IRU 3)RUHLJQ &XUL
2016 2015

Demand deposits-

Demand deposits $ 754,858 $ 678,708

Time deposits-
Notes with interest payable at maturity 161,540 144,310
Time deposits 36,066 35,516
Credit instruments issued (a) 79,990 91,220
Inactive global deposits account 3,170 2,501
Total $ 1,035,624 $ 952255

(@) Credit instruments issued

Description of the principal programs

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Institution has placedtsirorénd long-term debt with a market
value of $79,990 and $91,220, respectively, composed as follows:

Instrument 2016 2015 Period (days) Rate

Bank bonds LP $ 31,977 % 30,951 1,474 5.81%
Bank bonds CP 3,198 6,989 323 5.84%
Securitized certificates

MXP 10,338 8,858 2,366 6.73%
Securitized certificates

uDIS 18,862 18,242 5,355 4.03%
Senior Notes 15,615 26,180 3,653 4.38%

Total $ 79,990 $ 91,220
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20. Interbank loans and loans from other entities

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, interbank loans and loans flementtities were as follows:

U.S. dollars
Item Mexican pesos in Mexican pesos Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Bank loans $ 1,112 $ 6,711 3 5 $ 94 $ 1166 $ 6,805
Loans call money 413 450 - 1,121 413 1,571
Loans from other
entities 15,960 11,049 1,665 1,413 17,625 12,462

Total $ 17484 $ 18210 $ 1720 $ 2628 $ 19204 $ 20,838

Interbank loans and loans from other entities in foreign currency wetected by the Institution with terms
ranging from three days to 4 years and annual rates ranging bénwvédfo and 1.50% annual in 2016. Such
loans are contracted with eight foreign financial institutions

Interbank loans and loans from other entities in foreign currency wetected by the Institution with terms
ranging from four days to 5 years and annual rates ranging bebuE®Y and 1.50% annual in 2015. Such
loans are contracted with eight foreign financial institutions.

The Institution maintains availability of liquidity in the central bank uhtoamount of the Monetary
Regulation Deposits (DRM), the balance were $40,230 and $59,676 (egoalidirest) for 2016 and 2015
respectively. The amount of this line ready for the year 2016 arfi&@tunted to $1,120 and $702
respectively, while the balance of the overdraft amounted to $39,11%¥b8r814, respectively.

21. Labor benefits

The Institution has liabilities from labor obligations related to severance paynvbitl,will cover the
pension, seniority premiums due upon retirement. The Institutiorhaksa plan for integral medical services
to pensioners and their economic dependents, as well as the paymennetitidémce. The amount of such
labor liabilities is determined based on calculations performed by independent actuagé¢saiprojected
unit credit method and in conformity with the methodology establishBidFHD-3. The management of plan
assets is made through an irrevocable trust.

As of January 1, 2007, following the execution of the employestgution conwWUDFW DOO WKH ,QVWLW.
employees (except the Chief Executive Officer) were transferred t@yhellpof BBVA Bancomer

Operadora, S. A. de C.V., a company belonging to the Financial Groujnye®g retained all vested

benefits and only personnel without vested benefits were transfermedt@ble compensation scheme.

Given the above, the Institution only has a labor obligation related tettrees and only one active

employee.
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2016
Others retirement benefits

Pension plan and Integral medical
seniority premiums services Life insurance Retiree sports facility Severance payments Total

The information on the projected net (liability) asset is presented below:

Defined benefits obligations $ (2,996) $ (5,033) $ (838) $ 13) % @4 % (8,884)
Plan assets at fair value 3,481 4,858 1,345 - - 9,684

Net defined benefits liability 485 (175) 507 (13) (4) 800

At December 31, 201@lefined benefits liability were composed as follows:

Opening balance January 1, 2016 $ 3,111 % 4963 $ 833 % 14 % 3 % 8,924
Labor cost of the current service - - - - 1 1
Financial cost 269 442 74 1 1 787
Actuarial losses and gains generated in the period 80 70 (63) () - 86
Benefits actual payment during the year (464) (442) (6) () - (913)
Reductions - - - - D Q)

Net Assets (Liabilities) for benefits obligations $ 299 $ 5,033 $ 838 % 13 3 4 $ 8,884

At December 31, 201flan assets 3 $ 3 ‘were as follows:

Opening balance $ 3,770  $ 4899 $ 1,294 % - $ - $ 9,963
Contributions made by the entity - 218 - - - 218
Returns expected from plan assets 330 436 117 - - 883
Actuarial losses and gains generated during the period (155) (253) (60) - - (468)
Benefits paid (469 (442 (6) - - (912

Plan assets $ 3481 $ 4,858 $ 1,345 $ - $ - $ 9,684

Opening balance $ 659 % 64) $ 461 % 14 3 @4 $ 1,038
Net interest 61 (6) 43 () - 97
Fund contributions - 218 - - - 218
Estimated payments - - - 1 - 1
Re-measurements recognized in OCI (235) (323) 3 1 - (554)

Net Assets (Liabilities) for benefits obligations $ 485  $ (175) $ 507 $ 13) $ 4 3 800

At December 31, 2016, obligations for defined benefits were compased

follows:

Labor cost of the current service
Current service $ - $ - $ - $ - $ @@ s 1)
Past services from the early reduction of obligations - - - - 1 1

Net interest derived from the Net Liability or Net Asset of Defined Benefits
Interest costs of Defined-Benefit Obligations (269) (442) (74) () - (786)
Interest income from Plan Assets 330 437 117 - - 884

Net cost for the period $ 61 $ 5 s 43 $ @ s - $ 98




At December 31, 2016, the remediation of the net defined-benefit liability

asset is composed as follows:
Reconciliation of actuarial gains (losses)

Opening balance of obligation gains (losses)
Obligation gains (losses)

Closing balance of obligation gains (losses)

Opening balance of asset return gains (losses)
Gains (losses) from the return of plan assets

Closing balance of obligation gains (losses)

Closing balance of net gains (losses)

The information on the projected net liability (asset) is presented below:

Defined benefit obligation
Plan assets
Unfunded liability (prepaid expense)
Current (liabilities) net asset derived from employee pensions

At December 31, 2015, obligations for defined benefits were compssed
follows

Opening balance January 1, 2015
Financial cost
Actuarial losses and gains generated in the period
Benefits paid
Reductions
Obligations for defined benefits
Amount of obligations for benefit acquired
At December 31, 2015, plan assets were as follows:
Opening balance
Returns expected from plan assets
Actuarial losses and gains generated during the period
Reductions
Benefits paid

Plan assets

2016

Pension plan and

Others iretment benefits

Integral medical

seniority premiums services Life insurance Retiree sports facility Severance payments Total
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
(80) (70) 63 1 (86)
$ 80) $ (70) $ 63 $ 1 $ (86)
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
(155) (252) (60) - (467)
$ (155) $ (252) $ (60) $ - $ (467)
$ (235) $ (322) $ 3 3 1 $ (553)
2015
Others retirement benefits
Pension plan and Integral medical
seniority premiums services Life insurance Retiree sports facility Severance payments Total

$ 3111 % 4964 $ 832 $ 14 $ 4 8,925
(3,769) (4,899) (1,294) - (9,962)
(658) 65 (462) 14 4 (1,037)
$ (658) $ 65 $ (462) $ 14 $ 4 (1,037)
$ 3275 % 5162 % 842 $ 15 $ 3 9,297

268 434 71 1 1 775

16 (223) (78) (1) 3 (283)

(448) (410) (5) (2) 3) (867)

- 1 2 - 3

$ 3,111 % 4964 $ 832 $ 14 $ 4 8,925
$ 3,111 % 4964 % 832 $ 14 $ 8,921
$ 4,181 % 5266 $ 1,287 $ - $ 10,734

347 444 110 - 901

(311) (402) (100) - (813)

- 1 2 - 3

(448) (410) (5 - (863)

$ 3,769 $ 4899 $ 1294 $ - $ 9,962

86



2015

Others retirement benefits

Integral medical

Pension plan and seniority premiums services Life insurance

The amortization period of the unamortized items is five years
For the years ended December 31, 2015, the net cost of the pas@sw

Retiree sports facility

Severance payments

Total

Pension plan and
seniority premiums

follows:
Financial cost $ 268 % $ 71 % 1 $ 775
Return on plan assets (347) (110) - - (901)
Immediate recognition of actuarial losses for the year 327 22 (D) 529
Net cost of the period $ 248  $ $ a7n s - $ 403

The nominal interest rates utilized in the actuarial calculations were:

Iltem 2016 2015
Expected rate of return of assets 9.95% 9.30%
Discount rate 9.95% 9.30%
Wage increases rate 4.75% 4.75%
Medical services increase rate 6.75% 6.75%

Below is the effect of the one percentage point increase or reduction atdalaf the assumed variance trend of medical attention costs as of Decen@di631

+ 1% -1%

In net cost of the period $ 4 % (38)

In the defined benefits obligations $ 444  $ (385)

As of the year 2010, the plan entitled sports for retirees is establigieth the right of employees to continue
receiving the sports service once they retire. Under this scheme thatimsipays part of the dues and the
employee the rest.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the plans for indemnities ants $poretirees did not have assets to fund
the obligations for defined benefits.

At December 31, 2016, assets of the various plans were investeceimgent securities. Also, the expected
return on plan assets at December 31, 2016 was estimated by an aih$@8# and $901 of gains
respectively, being the real at the same date in the amount of $50®84Y g{ins and handicapping
performance.

As of the year 2010, the plan entitled sports for retirees is establikieth the right of employees to continue
receiving the sports service once they retire. Under this scheme thatibrsipays part of the dues and the
employee the rest.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the plans for indemnities ants $poretirees did not have assets to fund
the obligations for defined benefits.

At December 31, 2016, assets of the various plans were invested inrgemesecurities. Also, the expected
return on plan assets at December 31, 2016 was estimated by an aih$®@8# and $901 of gains
respectively, being the real at the same date in the amount of $50®a4Y g4ins and handicapping
performance.
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22,

Subordinated debt
Item 2016 2015

Non-preferred capitalization notes for US $500 million, issu
in May 2007 at an interest rate of 6.0080% issued May 17
2017, payable semiannually and LIBOR + 1.81% as of M
18, 2017, payable quarterly, and maturing on May 17, 20:
the number of outstanding securities is 500,000 with a fac
value of $1,000 dollars each. $ 10,310 $ 8,624

Non-preferred capitalization notes for USD 1,000 million,
issued in April 2010, at an interest rate of 7.25% payable
semiannually, beginning as of October 22, 2010, and
maturing on April 22, 2020, the number of outstanding
securities is 1,000,000 with a face value of $1,000 dollars
each. 20,619 17,249

Preferred capitalization notes for USD 1,250 million, issued
March 2011, at an interest rate of 6.50% payable
semiannually, starting at September 10, 2011 and maturil
on March 10, 2021, the number of outstanding securities
1,250,000 with a face value of $1,000 dollars each. 25,774 21,561

Preferred capitalization notes for USD 1,000 million, issued
July 2012, at an interest rate of 6.75% and additional
issuances of USD 500 million on September 2012, at an
interest rate of 5.45% payable semiannually stadimng
March 30, 2013, and maturing on September 30, 2022, tr
number of outstanding securities is 1,500,000 with a face
value of $1,000 US dollars each. 30,929 25,873

Preferred capitalization notes for USD 200 million, issued ir
November 2014, at an interest rate of 5.35% payable
semiannually, starting on May2, 2015, and maturing on
November 12, 2029, the number of outstanding securities

200,000 with a face value of $1,000 dollars each. 4,124 3,450
Unpaid accrued interest 1,429 1,201
Total $ 93,185 $ 77,958

The debt issuance costs related to these issues are amortized using the sieaiggitilbd over the term of
the debt.

2Q '"HFHPEHU WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQ H[HRIFWKHG "WEKH QUWDXIWHWHGHP !

BANCOMER08- * IRU WKH DPRXQW RI ZKLFK ZHUH 2ZMWViiHP@GW Q 'HFHPEF
November 26, 2020.
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23. Related parties

Balances and transactions with related parties, as established in BulBfiRelated Parties issued by the

Commission, are as follows:

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.

Derivative financial instruments

Payables from repurchase agreements

Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V.

Account payable

BBVA Bancomer Operadora, S.A. de C.V.

Fees paid for administrative services

Account payable

BBVA Bancomer Servicios Administrativos, S.A. de C.V.

Fees paid for administrative services

Account payable

Seguros BBVA Bancomer, S.A. de C.V.

Commissions income

Insurance premiums paid

BBVA Bancomer Gestién, S.A. de C.V.

Commissions income

Aplica Tecnologia Avanzada, S.A. de C.V.

Deposits
Performing loans

Income:
Interest

Commissions collected on loan originations

Fees paid for administrative services

Expense:

Processing and system development

Facileasing, S.A. de C.V.
Deposits

Performing loans

2016 2015
$ 378 $ (9,474)
$ (4,113) $ (441)
$ 2,465 $ 4,426
$ 15,729 $ 12,058
$ 2,837 $ 1,823
$ 9,187 $ 7,480
$ 2072 $ 1,558
$ 2,151 $ 1,746
$ 286 $ 916
$ 2477  $ 2,426
$ 1,223 $ 18
$ 1,443 $ 604
$ 29 $ 20
25 20
$ 54 $ 40
$ 32 $ 31
$ 2,384 $ 2,252
$ 32 $ 46
$ 6,278 $ 7,802
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2016 2015

Income:
Interest $ 213 % 229
Fees paid for administrative services $ 65 $ 59

Facileasing Equipment, S.A. de C.V.

Deposits $ 265 $ 128

Performing loans $ 6,476 $ 7,768
Income:

Interest $ 277 3% 301

Fees paid for administrative services $ 43 $ 41

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are other transactions aatibogerith related parties which are
not material, and therefore have not been revealed.

Income taxes

The main changes affecting brought to the Institution:

a) Income Tax

The Institution is subject to ISR. In accordance with the Income Taxtha rate for 2016 and 2015
was 30%.

ISR is calculated by considering as taxable or deductible certain effect&tidim such as the
depreciation calculated on values in constant pesos, and the effect of inflatioruisd or deducted
on certain monetary assets and liabilities through the annual adjustmierfiatoon.

The Institution pays ISR and therefore recognizes deferred ISR. @Vigipn in results is composed as
follows:

2016 2015
Current:
ISR $ (10,974) $ (13,516)
Deferred:
ISR $ 1,106 $ 4,695

Taxable income The principDpO LWHPV ZKLFK DITHFWHG WKH GHWHUPLQDWLRQ RI
the annual adjustment for inflation, provisions for expenses, the rasulifiarkets valuation, the difference

between book and tax depreciation and amortization and the deducti@ufdebts, in relation to the

accounting increase of the estimate.
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The reconciliation of the statutory ISR rate and the effective rate, expresspdrasraage of income before
income taxes, which is the tax incurred by the Institution, is as follows:

2016 2015
Statutory rate 30.00% 30.00%
Add (deduct) -
Effect of nondeductible items 1.01% 0.52%
Annual adjustment for inflation (2.98%) (2.62%)
Cancellation of income and expense provisions from previc
years (3.43%) (3.27%)
Other effects (1.27%) (1.00%)
Effective rate 23.33% 23.63%

Recoverable IMPAC As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Institution has recoverable IMP$E31
and $553, respectively.

Other Tax Matters:

The following balances are in effect at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Net tax income account $ 75,616 $ 60,323
Contributed Capital Account $ 62,538 $ 60,505

25, 6WRFNKROGHUVY HTXLW\
Capital stock- The capital stock of the Institution at December 31, 2016 and 2085 sxvfallows:
Number of shares at Par Value of $0.28 Mexican pesosrshare

2016 2015
Authorized Unsubscribed Paid-in Authorized Unsubscribed Paid-in

6HULHV 3)" 9,107,142,859 (1,378,926,692 7,728,216,167 9,107,142,859 (1,378,926,692 7,728,216,167
6HULHYV 3% 8749,999,999 (1.324,851,134 7,425,148,865 8,749.999,999 (1,324,851,134 7.425,148.865

Total 17,857,142,85¢ (2,703,777,826 15,153,365,03z 17,857,142,85¢ (2,703,777,826 15,153,365,032

Historical Amount
2016 2015
Authorized Unsubscribed Paid-in Authorized Unsubscribed Paid-in

6BHULHV 3)° $ 2550 $ (386) $ 2164 $ 2550 $ (386) $ 2,164

6HULHV 3% 2,450 (371) 2,079 2,450 (371) 2,079
Subtotal $ 5000 % (757) 4243 $ 5000 $ (757) 4,243

Capitalization of restatement 10,971 10,971

Restatement to Mexican pesos ¢

of December 2007 8,924 8,924
Total $ 24,138 $ 24,138
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$W WKH 6WRFNKROGHUVYT 2UGLQDU\ *HQH U DHOH @ H ipWeb@ad that 9venRQ )HE U
the consolidated financial statements approved at such Meeting reported netimtisos year 2015 in the
amount of $266,813, the following applications were made:

a) The net profit of the year of $26,813 was recorded inthed Vof Pridt Years account.

b) The distribution of dividends was authorized for up to the amou$fi®f350, of which the amount of
$15,450 was taken from th&5 H Vof ridf years account at the rate of $1.019575517872 Mexican
pesos per share. Of this amount, $3,145 was paid to stockhofdétarch 29, 2016, $6,035 on June
22, 2016, and $3,805 in September2116.

If profits are distributed without incurring tax attributable to the Institutilois, will have to be paid when the
dividend is distributed. Therefore, the Institution must track the incobijectuo each rate.

As of January 1, 2014, based on the LISR reforms, dividends paigXican companies to individuals and
residents abroad incur an additional 10% income tax; in the case of residents thieroashective tax
treaties may be applied.

Capital reductions will incur tax on the excess of the amount distributed eigainslue, determined in
accordance with the LISR.

The net result of the institution is subject to the legal provision requbratd% of the profits of each year be
transferred to the legal reserve until it equals 20% of the share capital. This reagmvet e distributed to
stockholders during the existence of the Financial Group, except in thefalividends.

Capitalization index (unaudited} Current regulations establish requirements for specific net capital levels,
as a percentage of risk assets, for both market and credit purposes. Howenekrr, io determine net capital,
deferred taxes represent a maximum of 10% of basic capital.

Based on the standard method, the transactions are classified in eighhtdgffetsns depending on the
counterparty, and must be weighted based on the degree of risk applidablegspective loan classification
assigned by one of the Ratings Agencies.

Furthermore, under this method a higher weighting factor is assigtieel non-performing portfolio (115%
and 150%) and the mortgage loans will now have a factor of betwégmib® 100%, depending on the level
of down payment and the related guarantees provided.

+ Capitalization for operating risk:

Based on the changes to the Banks Sole Circular published by the Cmmmis®ecember 31, 201
order to calculate the capitalization requirement for operating risk, the timstitaust utilize:

- The Alternative Standard Method, authorized by the Commission on Nov@mb2015.

The capital requirement based on the Alternative Standard Method should be consifithotesdterm of
three years; the weighting factor is considered according to the &si$ime

According to the amendments to the Capitalization rules issued in DecemBen®@h went into effect in
October 2015, please note the following:
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+ Capitalization due to market risk:

According to the amendments to the capitalization rules which went into effette®2@15, the weighting
factors applicable to the RC-01, RC-02, RC-03 and RC-04 reportsaneended. Furthermore, in RC on the
share positions (RC-05) the weighting factors for General Market Rislesrg thanged; the calculation for
portfolio diversification is omitted to instead use 8% for specific market niek;fanally, the calculation for

Liquidation Risk is eliminated.

A new RC was added to the Market requirements, RC-18, which eaphg Gamma and Vega effects on the
Options positions and is reflected in the total Market Risk at the close of Dec2ddlBerThis requirement is

additional to the requirements generated in the rest of the RCs.

+ Capitalization for credit risk

With regard to credit risk, the amendments to the capitalization rule meartelwatunterparty risk
would be divided into counterparty credit risk and risk with related partiest detdfor adjustment of
credit valuation and with related parties and exposure to the default fund inghearses.

The capitalization ratio of the Institution as of December 31, 2016 amount8d/894 of total risk
(market, credit and operational) and 19.75% credit risk, which are 3.Z82mgoints higher than the

minimum required.

The amount of net capital, composed Complementary Basic Capital and is boekebealow (the

figures shown may differ in their presentation of the basic financial stat€men

+ Basic capital:
Concept Account

6BWRFNKROGHUVY HTXLW\ $ 158,506
Capitalization instruments 9,362
Subordinated debt instruments related to securitizatir
schemes (716)
Deductions equity investments in financial institution: (3,880)
Organizational costs and other intangibles (4,544)

Total $ 158,728

The main characteristics of debt and capital notes were as follows:

Appraised Maturity Calculation
Iltem Amount Date Percentage
Non-convertible debt
considered as basic capital:
Eligible capital notes $ 10,310 17/05/2022 60%
Eligible capital notes 20,619 22/04/2020 60%
Total $ 30,929

Weighted
Average Amount

$ 6,186
12,372

$ 18,558
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Complementary capital:

Iltem Amount

Obligations and capitalization instruments $ 32,399
Allowance for loan losses 7

Total $ 32,406

Net capital $ 191134

The main characteristics of debt and capital notes were as follows:
Appraised Maturity Calculation Weighted
Iltem Amount Date Percentage Average Amount
Non-convertible debt
considered as complemental
capital:

BANCOMER-08-3
Eligible capital notes $ 25,774  10/03/2021 60% $ 15,465
Eligible capital notes 20,619  30/09/2022 60% 12,372
Eligible capital notes 10,310  30/09/2022 60% 6,186

Total $ 56,703 $ 34,023

Assets at risk are as follows:
+ Assets subject to market risk:
Risk-Weighted Capital
Item Positions Requirements

Transactions in Mexican pesos with a nominal rate  $ 200,035 $ 16,003

Transactions in Mexican pesos with real rate or rate

denominated in UDIS 19,595 1,568
Rate of return based on the General Minimum Wage 16,336 1,307
Interest rate transactions in foreign currency with a

nominal rate 44,564 3,565
Positions in UDIS and Mexican pesos with yield linke

to NCPI 43 3
Positions in currencies with yield indexed to exchanc

rates 12,095 968
Positions in shares or with yield indexed to the price

a share or group of shares 32,757 2,621
Transactions based on the General Minimum Wage 128 10
Gamma (RCL8) 9,816 785
Vega (RC18) 1,083 87
Surtax 8,236 659

Total market risk $ 344,88 $ 27,576
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Assets subject to credit risk:

Risk-Weighted Capital
Item Assets Requirements
Weighted at 10% 1,255 % 100
Weighted at 11.5% 1,837 147
Weighted at 20% 20,077 1,606
Weighted aR3% 3 -
Weighted at 50% 42,343 3,387
Weighted at 75% 39,251 3,140
Weighted at 100% 399,322 31,946
Risk-Weighted Capital
Item Assets Requirements

Weighted at 115% 11,065 885
Weighted at 150% 1,150 92
Weighted at 1250% 817 65
Internal methodology TDC / E and C 384,899 30,792
CVA 32,322 2,586
ECC 32 3
Counterpart 17,808 1,425
Related 15,453 1,236
Repurchase 247 20

Total credit risk $ 967,881 $ 77,430

Operational risk $ 79479 $ 6,358

Equity Management Institution has the equipment, processes and systems required td\catesttify,
measure, monitor, control and mitigate the risks to which it is expokskePsee Note 33 for a more detailed
explanation.

Likewise, periodic processes have been defined and established to ensumarnhbi freports disclose and
reflect the risks to which the Institution is exposed.

As required by the Commission, the Institution performs exercises ingdhe preparation of annual
financial projections for stress scenarios.

The Institution also performs an analysis that includes certain liquidity scsigrios. These stress scenarios

estimate the magnitude of the effects generated for the self-financing ratleearapacity of available

explicit assets to cover maturities witha 2PRQWK KRUL]JRQ VR DV WR D ViaHhonZdpL Q WKH , C
The results of these activities show that the Institution has a satisfastelrpfieesistance as regards liquidity

crisis scenarios.

Similarly, the Institution has different management mechanisms which #atevate in the event of different

VWUHVY VFHQDULRY WKDW FRXOG LPSDQIUTKWELWR O¥IHGHR) /K H HQU WE W
financial position and balance sheet structure, these resources allow it td@calemsd international

wholesale markets to obtain financing and capital, dispose of high qualiti dsr sale and/or securitization,

and discount securities on the market and with the Central Bank of Mexico.

Consequently, the Institution has the mechanisms needed to effectitighterstress scenarios which could
impair its capital and liquidity.

95



JRU IXUWKHU GHWDLO SZDHDW K HFRQMMGBNEA(MKHBHLWRY LevitaRQ V 3, QIRUPL
the fourth quarter 2016 LQ FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK WKH REOLJDW L@@t R GLVFORVH
Ratio, which is located on the following Internet page www.bancomer.commfiadoninversionistas.

Position in foreign currency

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the exchange rate determined by tred Bankrof Mexico and used by
the Institution to value its assets and liabilities in foreign currencys{ated to U.S. dollars) was $20.6194
Mexican pesos and $17.2487 Mexican pesos per U.S. dollar, respectivelye guusition in foreign currency
was as follows:

Millions of U.S Dollars

2016 2015

Assets 13,970 13,291

Liabilities (13,741) (13,592)
Net liability position in U.S. dollars 229 (301)
Net liability position in Mexican pesos (nominal value) $ 4722 $ (5,192)

As of February 24, 2017, the foreign currency position (unauditesithitar to that of the close of the year
and the exchange rate as of that date is $19.8335 Mexican pesos per US$1.00.

According to the provisions of the Central Bank of Mexico, the positiported to that institution as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015 was USD $129 and USD $72 million, respestiort, which includes delta
FX options, and excludes assets and liabilities that are not computable.

The Institution performs transactions in foreign currency, primarilJS dollars, Euros and Japanese yen.
The Institution does not disclose its position in currencies other than the US abilag largely immaterial.
The parity of other currencies with the Mexican peso is referenced to the USaddllgrin compliance with
the Central Bank of Mexico regulations. Consequently, the Institsggmsition in all foreign currencies is
consolidated in US dollars at each monthly close.

UDI position

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Institution had UDI-denominatets asgl liabilities translated into
Mexican pesos, considering the prevailing conversion rate of $5.562888an pesos and $5.381175
Mexican pesos per UDI, respectively, as follows:

Millions of UDIs
2016 2015
Assets 5,561 5,079
Liabilities (5,085) (5,096)
Net (liability) asset position in UDIS 476 a7)
Net (liability) assets position in Mexican pesos (nominal
value) $ 2648 $ (92)

As of February 24, 2017 the position in UDIS (unaudited) is similar to thaealose of the year and the
exchange rate as of that date is $5.681649 Mexican pesos per UDI.
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Preventive and protective savings mechanism

7KH %DQN 6DYLQJV 3URWHFWLRQ ,QVWLWXWH 3 @$kV LIDWVHDQEIHACER WHRGH
a bank savings protection system for individuals who perfogmoathe established guaranteed transactions,

while regulating the financial support granted to Full-Service Bankingutistit to protect the public

interest.

The IPAB has resources derived from the mandatory fees paid bgiiharstitutions, which reflect their
risk exposure levels based on their level of capitalization and other indicatersithed by the internal
regulations of the IPAB Governance Board. These fee s must be patldlyrfor an amount equivalent to
one twelfth of four thousandths of the monthly average ity debit transactions of the month in question.
During 2016 and 2015, contributions made by the Institution t@IfAinsurance to deposits amounted to
$4,585 and $4,049, respectively.

Financial margin

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the main itenpeging the financial margin were as
follows:

2016
Amount valued
Mexican pesos Dollars Total
Interest income:
Loan portfolio interest and returns $ 106,484 $ 4519 $ 111,003
Securities interest and returns 20,030 583 20,613
Interest from quick assets 2,481 262 2,743
Interest and premiums from repurchas:
agreements and securities loans 700 - 700
Interest on margin accounts 172 - 172
Commissions collected on loan
originations 1,480 12 1,492
Others 1,073 83 1,156
Total interest income 132,420 5,459 137,879
Interest expense:
Deposit interest (15,153) (461) (15,614)
Interest from loans provided by bank
and other entities (1,032) (26) (1,058)
Debenture interest (221) (3,775) (3,996)
Interest and premiums from repurcha
agreements and securities loans (12,721) - (12,721)
Expenses incurred to initially grant
loan (393) - (393)
Others (932) (61) (993)
Total interest expense (30,452) (4,323) (34,775)
Financial margin $ 101,968 $ 1,136 $ 103,104
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30.

Interest income:
Loan portfolio interest and returns
Securities interest and returns
Interest from quick assets

Interest and premiums from repurcha

agreements and securities loans
Interest on margin accounts

Commissions collected for initially
granting credit
Others

Total interest income

Interest expense:

Deposit interest

Interest from loans provided by bank
and other entities

Debenture interest

Interest and premiums from repurcha
agreements and securities loans

Expenses incurred to initially grant
credit

Others

Total interest expense

Financial margin

Commissions and fee income

2015

Amount valued

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the mairfatentsch the Institution recorded
commissions and fee income in the consolidated statement of income wereves follo

Concept

Credit and debit cards
Bank commissions
Investment funds
Insurance

Others

Total

Mexican pesos Dollars Total
91,647 $ 3723 % 95,370
4,855 346 5,201
2,610 84 2,694
13,693 - 13,693
86 - 86
2015
Amount valued
Mexican pesos Dollars Total
1,288 79 1,367
1,301 119 1,420
115,480 4,351 119,831
(11,789) (677) (12,466)
(820) (25) (845)
(1,073) (2,125) (3,198)
(10,745) - (10,745)
(142) - (142)
(497) (129) (626)
(25,066) (2,956) (28,022)
90,414 $ 1395 $ 91,809
2016 2015
$ 18,812 % 16,287
6,847 7,722
2,477 2,426
2,125 1,684
5,977 5,124
$ 36,238 $ 33,243

During 2016 and 2015, the amount of revenues received by the Institutioist operations amounted to

$341 and $292, respectively.
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For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the mairfatenisch the Institution recorded
Commission and fee expense in the consolidated statement of income wélmnas fo

Concept 2016 2015

Credit card $ 6,62 $ (5,101)
Effective credit card reward points (2,345) (2,224)
Promotion fund warranties (714) (570)
Cash Management and fund transfer (441) (1,359)
Credit placement (482) (730)
Appraisals (294) (157)
Sale of foreclosed goods (324) (394)
Purchase-sale of securities (268) (194)
Others (528) (663)

Total (12,038) $ (11,392)

31. Net gain on financial assets and liabilities

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the maircaempesing the Net gain on financial assets

and liabilities were as follows:

Valuation result:
Derivatives
Foreign currency
Securities investments

Purchase-sale result:
Derivatives
Foreign currency
Securities investments

Total

2016 2015
8,527 $ 3,303
(6,720) (2,674)
(2,212) 1,507
(405) 2,136
(125) 1,417
3,643 2,745
449 (3,036)
3,967 1,126
3562 $ 3,262
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32.

Segment information

The Institution and its subsidiaries take part in different activities of thecfalaystem, such as credit

operations, treasury operations, and transfer of funds from gluliserébution and administration of
investment funds, among others. Performance evaluation, assvile# enanagement of the risks of the
different activities, is based on the information produced by the Institsitiuisiness units, more than the legal

entities in which the results generated are recorded.

Below we present the revenues obtained during the years 2016 anavB@tbshow the difference segments

as indicated in the preceding paragraph:

2016

Corporate and

Commercial Government Market Other
Concept Total Bank Banking Operation Segments
Financial margin $ 103,104 $ 79,991 $ 20,211 3,511 (609)
Allowance for loan losses (32,383) (30,292) (2,091) - -

Net interest income after allowance for loan losses 70,721 49,699 18,120 3,511 (609)
Commissions and fees, net 24,200 17,553 6,289 27 331
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities 3,562 1,617 529 1,693 277)
Other operating income (expenses) 1,551 1,412 174 1 (36)

Net operating revenues 100,034 $ 70,281 $ 25,112 5,232 (591)
Administration and promotion costs (57,743)

Net operating revenues 42,291
Share in net income of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 16

Income before income taxes 42,307
Current income tax (10,974)

Deferred income tax 1,106

Income before discontinued operations 32,439
Discontinued operations 872

Net income $ 33311

2015 Corporate and
Commercial Government Market Other
Concept Total Bank Banking Operation Segments
Financial margin $ 91,809 $ 67,168 $ 16,683 2,562 5,396
Allowance for loan losses (28,482) (28,363) (119 - -

Net interest income after allowance for loan losses 63,327 38,805 16,564 2,562 5,396
Commissions and fees, net 21,851 16,444 5,164 507 (264)
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities 3,262 1,660 324 697 581
Other operating income (expenses) 854 430 172 (D) 253

Net operating revenues 89,294 % 57,339 $ 22,224 3,765 5,966
Administration and promotion costs (51,959)

37,335

Net operating revenues
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33.

2015

Commercial

Concept Total Bank
Share in net income of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 100
Income before income taxes 37,435
Current income tax (13,516)
Deferred income tax 4,695
Income before non-controlling interest 28,614
Non-controlling interest (2)
Net income $ 28,613

Other segments include the results related to management of the loalopastfigned to the recovery area.

Risk management and derivatives transaction (Unaudited figures)
Organizational structure

The Risk Department reports directly to senior management of theckih@noup, thus guaranteeing the
independence of the Business Units and establishing the necessary gutwdetermine the functions and
profile of the respective teams.

Generally speaking, based on national and international best practices, three sp&riadizdRisk Teams
have been created: one covering the wholesale portRylidEs and the other the retail portfolio, assuming
the admission, follow-up and recovery functions. By the same ttkemanagement of market, structural
and liquidity risks is gathered into a single unit, to which is addethémagement of risks of non-bank
businesses and asset handling.

As support for the above-mentioned units, the Technology and Métigieo unit has been created, with
technical expertise which will help to meet the specialized needs of the Risks dnigag, Follow-Up and
Reporting Unit has been established for the integration, follow-up andagjenesf the necessary reports
for all the internal or external areas which have to participate in best risk magratgéhis unit also plays an
important role in the information disclosure processes and their strict acdéoemational and international
regulations.

Furthermore, the Internal Controllership unit has been established to gusinanteerect implementation and
development of the Internal Control System of the Financial Group, while alsdiimy the Technical Unit.

Compliance in the area of Comprehensive Risk Management is batezlresognition of fundamental
principles for the efficient and effective management of risks, evaluatng ¢im quantifiable and non-
quantifiable bases, with the aim of satisfying the basic processes of identificagiasurement, monitoring,
limitations, control and dissemination.

Furthermore, the regulatory entities of insurance companies, pensisrafidiretirement fund managers have
issued provisions to this effect. By way of summary, belovprgsent the main activities performed in this
regard by the Institution.

Corporate and
Government
Banking

Market
Operation

Other
Segments
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Qualitative Information:
- Participation of the governing bodies:

7KH ,QVWLWXWLRQ ModéeILi¥ sharR&epied By tHeQdivect influence of its corporate
entities with regard to both the definition of the risk strategy and thewfap and continuous
supervision of its implementation.

The Board of Directors establishes the general risk stralte@gcordance with this strategy, the Board

RI 'LUHFWRUVY 5LVN &R P pilopostHpdlicteld 8nd Idpé¢ifiQ Wsib imitsYiot each risk

W\ASH IRU WKH %,Rvbild @gb\pravigisgUdionbuP on complianckn this way, the strategy

approved by the Board of DirectolsQFOXGHV WKH ,QVW, udxrivehtdt @efricsdndutié DS SH W L
basic structure of limits, risk types and asset clagsgether with risk management control model

bases.

7KH %RDUG RI 'LUHFWR U VdsebthtWwéis&RFoRdibiE SorHbetfobsriirg é risk analysis
and providing periodic risk follow-up within the sphere of cogperentity attributes, while controlling
and providing detailed follow-up on the risks affecting the Institutiken as a wholevhich allows

the integration of the risk management strategy and application afvagppolicies to be effectively
monitored.

- Policies and procedures:

Risk manuals with standard contents, including strategy, organizaticrparating, technological and
methodological frameworks, and regulatory processes. Specific mandegébdrisks, including
related methodologies.

Defined and limited third-party responsibilities, risk training programs anmghemication of policies
and procedures.

- Tactic decision making:

Independence of the Comprehensive Risk Management Unit, which estabtisimitoring processes
through reports and alerts to detect instances of impairment, togeitherbusiness objective
departures and the structure of limits defined by risk.type

7KH ,QVWLWXWLRQTV GLIIHUHQW ULVN XQLWWN ST B5MMFLLVS B WWHK D @
Institution is willing to assume to attain its business objectives and which me submitted for the

approval of the Board of Directors, as regards general issues, aedRskhCommittee in the case of

specific exposures and sub-limits.

The Institution has adequate authorization processes for new producis samdices that imply risks
and which include the ratification of each individual product and/or selyitee Risk Committee.

- Tools and analyses:

Continuous measurement of credit, market and liquidity risks undeistamtsmethodologies and
parameters% XGJHWY DUH SUHSDUHG IRU WKHVH PHWWXMVISRAKILNF K VHU'Y
management.

Follow-XS RQ WKH DQDO\VLV RI ULVNV LHUFEKQW HEX ¥ L Q\HHY -pR Q@ MW W XKL
considers risk metrics, the risk appetite, the main risk concentratongpliance with regulatory

limits, the credit stress analysisalculation of the regulatory capital requirement, structural risks,

market risks, the liquidity risk, operating risk and legal.risk
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The methodologies and parameters utilized to measure risks are periodicatbtedldnd submitted
for the approval of the competent entities

Establishment of periodic analyses of sensitivity, testing under exitenditions and review and
improvement of models.

Install monitoring and operational and legal risk control methodologies inrooityovith
international standards.

- Information:

Information is the cornerstone of risk management and is utilizedariticipatory management
purposes based on the definition and establishment of early wamdigators and metrics to
anticipate risk profile movements posdtive and negative - (customers, portfolios, products, asset
classes). It is also used to avoid impairment and indicate departures anthpthterats derived from

all risks and defined axes during the different phases (current, im@aice¢h recovery), at all the
organizational levels of the risk function (risk units in the differersiriess areagorporate area and
specialized areasand corporate entitiesthereby ensuring its coherence and compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements.

- Technological platform:

Comprehensive review of all source and calculation systems forugskitication, projects for the
improvement, quality and sufficiency of data and automation.

- Audit and comptrollership:

Participation of internal audit regarding compliance with Regulations on ebepsive Risk
Management and implementation of compliance plans by type and aisla of

The Audit Committee provides periodic follow-up on the recommendatésudting from each audit.
Performance of audits in compliance with Regulations on ComprighdRisk Management by a firm
of independent experts, concluding that risk measurement models, systetimsdologies,
assumptions, parameters and procedures comply with their functidyesitd on the characteristics of
the risk operations, instruments, portfolios and exposures of tiiting.
The Institution believes that at this date it fully complies with the provisibRegulations on
Comprehensive Risk Management, while projects continue to improveireessnts and limitations,
automation of processes and methodological refinements.

Methodological framework - Techniques for valuation, measurement and description of risks

JRU ULVN SXUSRVHV WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQTY EDODQFH VKHHW LV HQYL\

- Market risk: Operations and investment portfolios- Investments in trading secusiias;ties, ledger
of repurchase transactions and related derivative transactions.

Structural balance - Available-for-sale, other assets, including securitiet® he&durity and
derivatives for the management of interest rate risk.
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Credit risk:

Comercial LoanstTraditional wholesale loan portfolio, and exposures from investneigsues, and
counterparts in derivative financial instruments.

Retail/consumer loans- Credit cards and non-revolving consumer dotholip.

Mortgage - Mortgage loan portfolio.

Internal parameters are utilized in all portfolios for management purdosesier to calculate capital
and reserves, the Institution utilizes advanced internal models for the CreditBDéedyrises and

Large Enterprises portfolios, which are the models approved by the Csiomis

Within the Wholesale Portfolio, the definition of subgroups based on the isples fiinction has been
established as a global criterion

Sales volume Segment
>60 million mxp Enterprises
>=50 million usd Large Enterprises (Corporate)

Non-revolving consumer portfolios, mortgage portfolios and thangercial portfolio with a sales
volume of less thaB60utilize standard models to calculate capital and reserves.

Liquidity risk:

Banking business, with positions on and off the balance sheedimglloans, traditional deposits,
investments in securities, derivatives, majority financing, etc.

Furthermore, if there is a contractual obligation, the follow-up and conteoltbe liquidity risk of the
banking business includes liquidity which might be required by itddiahies, entities belonging to
the same Financial Group or relevant related parties, and liquidity which thedpanisiness itself
might require from some of such entities or related parties.

Market Risk:
The purpose of market risk management is as follows:

- The proper identificationf the risksto which the Financial Grouis exposedby maintaining
positionsin financial instruments for operatior@linvestment purposes.

- Measurementf exposures through the applicatioihproven and reliable processes and
methodologies.

- Continuous risk monitoring.

- Efficient limitation of exposures.

- Effective control over positions.

- Inform decision-making bodies the risks assumed/profitability obtained within the portfolios
controlled.
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With regard to the process for market risk measurement and the oparatinyestment portfolios,
the daily measurement of market risk is made through Value at Risk (VaR) statisticéues, such
as the central measurement:

1. Define the degree of sensitivity in the valuation of positions to change&es, interest rates
or indexes.
2. Reasonably estimate the expected change for a specific time horizon with padas, rates,

rates or indexes, considering it the degree to which they can be moved

3. Reevaluate the portfolio to such expected changes sets and therebynaetieermaximum
potential loss in terms of value.

In summary, the Valu©W 5LVN 9D5 KDV EHHQ IL[HG EDVHG RQ WKH YLHZ W
not lose more than the amount calculated 99% of the time, in the poditese within Global
Markets, considering a horizon of 500 business days.

When significant risks are identified, they are measured and limits agaeds$n order to ensure
adequate control. The global measurement of risk is made through anatiombdf the methodology
applied to the Trading Portfolios and the Structural Balance Sheet. Historical 8imulahout
smoothing is the official methodology currently utilized to calculate the VaR.

4Q 2015 3Q 2016 4Q 2016

VaR of trading securities
One-day VaR $ 184  $ 148 % 122
10-day VaR 582 468 386
$ 766 $ 616 $ 508

VaR 1 day VaR 10 days

VaR of trading securities
Interest rate $ 108 $ 343
Variable income $ 41 % 132
Foreign currency $ 30 $ 96
Interest rate Vega $ 29 3 93
Variable income Vega $ 26 $ 83
Foreign currency Vega $ 2 3 7

Furthermore, daily simulations are performed of the losses or gaitie portfolios by means of
reassessments under catastrophic scenarios (stress tests). These estimatasitre lgg applying
percentage changes to the risk factors, which were observed in a speificofdine history, which
covers significant market turbulence. Every month back testipgrfsrmed to compare the daily
losses and gains that would have been observed if the same pdsitidnsen held, by considering
only the change in value due to a market movement against the calculdtiervafue at risk, so that
the models used can be calibrated.

Structural Balance Sheet
The market risk of the Structural Balance sheet or structural risk is defrtbe potential change

produced in the financial margin and/or in the net worth of anyadhii¢ to changes in interest rates
and/or exchange rates.
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In relation to the Structural Balance of interest rates and exchange rates, senskieiparic Value
and Financial Margin are calculated by virtue of movements parallel to an inorets® in interest
rates (+/- 100 basis points), as well as the estimate of expected losses in simoliarios of
nonparallel movements in risk factors (interest rate and exchange rate)jragtottie methodology
authorized by the Risks Committee. A system of alerts has been establishexVifious metrics;
monthly follow-up is provided by the Risk Committee and is tgubr presented to the Board of
Directors; mitigation measures have been established for those cases imlefitmits are
exceeded.

The structural risk measurement system is QRM (Quantitative Risk Maratemhich in turn incorporates
the characterization of the headings of the Structural Balance Sheet accordnfirtartbial characteristics
of each heading.

The methodology behind the Economic Value consists of estimating thaliadr of the positions on the
Structural Balance Sheet, through the calculation of the current value dffissune flows (the flows

expected from its assets less the flows expected from its liabilities) discaimedket interest rates. By the
same token, the methodology behind the Financial Margin metrics is basedpnjéttion of the interest
income and expenses from the Structural Balance Sheet, toomibiath in a 12 month horizon, considering
the projected growth of the business. Specifically, the principal ga&uns behind the characterization of the
headings of the Structural Balance Sheet are as follows:

f Prepayment rates: Supposes an advance payment of certain headings of thelS®alahce Sheet,
such as mortgage loans, commercial portfolio, among others.

f Evolution of products which do not have a maturity date: for sight depwslitsredit card, core or
stable and volatile balances are calibrated, and subsequently their evolutiomevsiftirecast.

The assumptions behind the characterization of the headings on ther8tfBatance Sheet are modeled
based on historical observations, of the same headings of the StruetiarsdeBSheet and the evolution of the
risk factors. At least once a year there is a revision and validation of ttetnaeljul of the models and systems
comprising the risk metrics of the Structural Balance Sheet.

To monitor the structural balance risk interest rate and exchanganatdch the Assets and Liabilities
Committee is the executive body responsible for handling the situ8tich. committee adopts investment
and hedging strategies within the policies and risk limits approved byotdrel Bf Directors and delegated
Risk Committee of the Board. Figures are presented in annual terms.

Estimated Economic Value Sensitivity

Portfolio -100 pb +100 pb Red flag use
Mexican pesos $ 5731 % (5,809) 45.7 %
Foreign currency (3,214) 2,973 50.6 %
Total $ 2517 $ (2,836) 19.8%

Financial Margin Sensitivity Projected to 12 Months

Portfolio -100 pb +100 pb Red flag use
Mexican pesos $ (1,168) $ 1,108 25.7%
Foreign currency (697) 692 40.9%
Total $ (1,865) $ 1,800 32.9%
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4Q 16 Exposure to structural balance risk
The Economic Value sensitivity presents below the percentage of ragséagn average at monthly closes.

The Financial Margin sensitivity projected to 12 months presents bbeéopercentage of limit use, on
average at monthly closes.

Portfolio Red flag use Limit use
Mexican pesos 35.2% 31.8%
Foreign currency 41.0% 30.2%

X Credit risk

The measurement of credit risk is associated with volatility of expected reveiueasarvo basic
measures: Expected Loss (PE) and Unexpected Loss (PNE).

The PE of a portfolio represents the average credit balance which was notysaidde met of the
losses incurred for its recovery and is considered as an inevitable busssefsem granting credit
over time. The calculation of the Global PE of each portfolio first requisedatermination of the PE
for each borrower; for this reason, the model focuses initially ondividual situation.

- Expected Loss = Probabilif Default x Severityof Loss x Exposure

- Exposure referto the maximum amourtdf the balancat the timeof the default; the elements
which enable this factdpo be determined are the siné the line, dispositionf the line and type
of product.

- Probability of Default is the likelihood that a customer may default oaldtigations. The
elements which enable the determination of this factor are risk classifibatidient,
migration of credit quality and situation of non-performing portfolio.

- Severity of Loss is that net economic loss from the recovery arfiding; the elements which
enable this factor to be determined are recovery expenses (foreclosuateqiand the type of

collateral.
Portfolio * Percentage
Commercial 0.7%
Consumer 6.0%
Mortgage 0.4%
Portfolio * 3,1V Severity
Commercial 1.7% 38.0%
Consumer 5.4% 87.1%
Mortgage 1.5% 25.4%
* The parameters are weighted the current portionf eachof the portfolios and are

calculated basedn internal model®f the Institution.

Once the level of expected loss is determined, its volatility determines thetasheaonomic capital
necessary to cover the identified risks. As the credit losses may vaificaigfty over time, it may be
inferred that creating a fund with an amount equal to the average loss wittdwared the credit loss
in the long term; however, in the short-term the fluctuations and, theréfie risk, remain in effect
and generate uncertainty. Therefore, it should also be covered with a sewbittafican be used as
collateral to be paid when the latter exceed the average losses.
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From our standpoint, the average losses can be supported with the aéatiailowance for loan
losses which should be treated as a cost of the credit business.

The second fund created to cover unexpected losses should be agseattidp aside a specific
amount of capital which may be used or not, but which assures the sobf¢he Financial Group in
the event of above average losses. This allocated capital therefore depends olatievthe credit
losses are over time and is known as economic capital, so as to give it a nigtation.

The level of solvency desired by the Financial Group has to be establigheccaiculation of the
PNE, in such a way that the amount allocated covers the volatility of¢besla specific number of
times, thus assuring a specific credit quality for the bank at a certain lgwelbatbility. This solvency
probability is determined by using the risk classification with whiehittistitution wishes to operate;
consequently, the economic capital will have to be equal to the amount nedestayprobability to
materialize. Furthermore, the origination models (Scorings or Ratings) are definsé fa all the
transaction and portfolio levels and in the behavior models they are estdljbslthe most important
portfolio, which is Credit Cards. These models, apart from supportingetlé decision, are linked
with the probability of default established above.

Every month an estimate is made of Expected Loss, Economic Capitakgnthtory Capital based
on Internal Models.

Scope and nature of risk information and measurement systems and their reporting

The information systems are housed in a system developed inteondhy finstitution, which is run
in a mainframe IBM environment (Host) as part of the ALTAMIRA unified baakagement
platform, DB2 databases, and is developed in COBOL.

The Institution ensures that the data used to prepare reports is takemifiiechaources by risk type,
which have been reconciled, are traceable and essentially automatic (oe imasiual sources with
controls). This data has a single definition to guarantee reporting frgquistcibution and
confidentiality, among other aspects.

Internal model approval

The Institution applies internal methodologies to standardized portfolios; i.eoest mbt partially
adopt internal methods within portfolios.

The Commission authorized the use of advanced internal models foistharfer on June 22, 2009 for
the revolving consumer portfolio, and on April 21, 2014 in theecak Enterprises and Large
Enterprises.

New parameters were authorized on January2886 and February 52016 for the Credit Card,
Enterprises and Large Enterprises portfolios, respectively.

Exposure to Default

The exposure to default (EAD) is defined as the calculation of the dispalsedtd in the period under
analysis, plus the Available balance and line granted, adjusted for Coedi¢iGion Factors, (CCF1
and CCF2), respectively, CCF1 and CCF2 are calibrated from historimifon.

EAD = Disposed Balance + CCF1*Undisposed Balance + CCF2 *Limits

Probability of default

In the calibrations of the probabilities of default, a definition of default bas&® days is used,
which matches the default definition used by Basel II.
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&RQVHTXHQWO\ IRU WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQ DWREDQV IRFUIWILR @ FX M D/R\
either of the following options arises:

X 90 days have elapsed since the day of the first nonpayment
X The amount should go through a materiality filter so that the transactitom@rsmay be
considered in arrears.

The materiality filter is the only difference as regards the default defirgdtablished by Article 2 Bis
68 of the CUB.

Severity of Loss

The method used to estimate the severity or LGD is the so-called Wi®®, based on the cash
flow discount of exposures in arrears recovered at different moiinetinge derived from the portfolio
recovery process. The recovery cycle is the process in which adages into arrears and ends
when it emerges from such situation. Once a contract goes into arreargdtebegrovery process
known as a recovery cycle in which those movements that increasebthend which reduce the debt
are accounted for. That part which could not be recovered is known as anda# is expressed as a
percentage of the Exposure to Default, it is known as Severity of Loss.

Throughout this recovery process, there is a constant identificattbe afmounts entering capital
accounts, recoveries in memorandum accounts and capital accounts, amadtiné of exposure at the
time of default. Therefore, the severity is calculated as the difference beheemecrued deposits less
discounted recoveries (carried to present value) at the opening date of théocybkeexposure to
default.

6HYHULW\ /*! HQWUWH KFRLYM DIURMNH D($V
0 Coverage and/or mitigation policies by each type of risk

The establishment of personal guarantees or security interests in perseahpooperty, apart
from improving the credit structure of the operation, allows the estimate &averity of the
Loss to be mitigated in order to reduce the credit reserves derived fromutatopgportfolio
classification.

The Institution performs revaluations of the loans, depending dypkeof collateral, using
statistical methods or confirming the existence and physical conditibe abtlateral. The
value of the personal and real estate guarantees is updated each year ovarahthéeloan
except for those which require an ongoing evaluation (shares listédokmsarkets) or for
discontinued periods (investment projects).

The Institution has a robust system in place to handle financial sdoteitysts in real or personal
property and a calculation engine, which have been certified by the Csiommisccording to the
integral method to recognize credit risk coverage, established in Articles 2,R8&136, 2 Bis 37
and 2 Bis 48 of the CUB.

The integral approach used for the hedge recognition is governbd fpllowing points:
Amount of adjusted collateral he adjusted amount of collateral decreases its market value to take

into consideration the loss in value which it may suffer due to the effetite fluctuation in its
market price and fluctuation in exchange rates.

G i iy At 025),
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Covered and uncovered exposurfée calculation of uncovered exposure (E*) is a cyclical process in
which each iteration is incorporated into a new collateral (CAi) according fithé@ization
determined, until there is no eligible collateral to be included in the process.

Internal ratings processFor the Companies and Large Companies internal model, the Institution
considers Groups lll and IV and certain cases from Group V of ulesRor the Capitalization
Requirements of Full-Service Banks and National Credit Institutions and DevetbfBanks of the
Commission. Group IV excludes customers with Investment Projects, assv@&thall and Medium
Mortgage Promoters, and Small and Medium Companies (Pymes) acdorthegsales volume
(customers with transactions valued at less than MX $ 60 million). Laoged®ers are considered
from Group III.

Description of portfolios with certified internal models:

A Description of the Wholesale Portfolio, which has been rated according to inteodalsmis
provided below

Close EYGE December 2016

Exposure non- Exposure
Exposure to Weighted Weighted financial security financial security
Scale Available Balance Default median severity median risk interest interest
Al $ 50,474 $ 312517 $ 328,117 39% 1% $ 180,822 $ 7,689
A2 633 17,133 17,308 38% 3% 14,122 72
B1 120 4,333 4,369 38% 5% 1,993 82
B2 643 2,765 2,907 37% 6% 3,428 55
B3 10 1,104 1,109 38% 8% 385 71
C1 1 122 122 40% 17% - -
E 5 2,474 2477 7% 100% 10,417 -
Total $ 51,886 $ 340,448 $ 356,409 39%* 1%* $ 211167 $ 7,969

*Average weighted percentage
For the Credit Card internal model, the Institution considers Group VI (G@rsand Housing loans)
in accordance with the Capitalization Rules of the CUB. Such Group matches theéziento
customers -Individuals - who were granted a revolving credit line for parsse.
A description of the credit card portfolio is detailed below

Close TDC December 2016

Weighting
Exposure to Weighted average
Scale Available Balance Default median severity ~ weighted risk

Al $ 42,803 $ 37,177 $ 56,131 76% 2%
A2 16,362 15,897 20,951 78% 4%
B1 10,011 9,848 12,709 79% 6%
B2 8,901 8,819 11,226 79% %
B3 9,316 9,219 11,758 79% 9%
C1l 10,128 9,225 12,855 79% 11%
C2 11,817 10,848 15,380 7% 21%
D 2,659 1,844 3,429 78% 34%
E 3,311 2,275 4,005 83% 58%

Total $ 115308 $ 105,152 $ 148,444 78%* 8%*

*Average weighted percentage
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0 Analysis of estimated losses according to certified internal models

The Backtest exercise matches estimated losses calculated by using the internal ithodel w
incurred losses, so as to determine whether established parameters adequately giredict th
behavior during an annual timeframe.

The level of reserves is considered to be adequate when, at the close ofudietiaveframe,
the amount of actual losses accrued for certified portfolios does not ekedeaind established
for estimated reserves

The result obtained for certified portfolios during the third quarter ©626 detailed below:

Backtesting3Q16
Clean-up Oct15- DIF $
Loan Portfolio PE MI Sepl6 Sepl6 (SMTO - PE) % USE
Total $ 11,601 $ 9,455 % (2,146) 82

The loss use i82%, which is acceptable
Internal ratings systems and the relationship between internal and external credit risls rating

The Institution utilizes two types of credit risk model, which are clearlgmifftiated by the portfolio
to which they are applied and the informatics systems supportingtihg tools used for contracts and
customers (Scoring and Rating, respectively). The rating institutions utiizegign ratings to loan
portfolio transactions are Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch.

Saoring (retail portfolios) and Rating (wholesale portfolios) tools are utilineensure that the
GHFLVLRQV PDGH E\ WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQ TV GHQW LDAMGI WRB LAV IXILQ H
quality level.

o] Rating

The Rating module is to provide tools for analysis and valuationfwéiable a loan
classification to be given to a customer based on homogeneous data and aritieeia fo
Financial Group. The Rating is a tool for customer classification, geareddtm®ampany
Banking and Corporate Banking.

The Rating basically consists of classifying the customer based on a seriastitbtjve
variables, which are obtained from the Financial Statements (Balance Sheet and dPtafitsan
Account) and from a series of qualitative variables (sector, market position, etc.).

Using these variables, a series of rules or red flag signals are established whictheredeatt
or analyst to clarify specific aspects which require a justification (elevatetteahess,
reduced level of proprietary funds, etc.) which, depending on thportance, might condition
the result obtained for the loan to be granted.

o] Scoring

The Scoring module provides tools for analysis and valuation which esnabdelit rating to be
fixed with a focus on product based on homogeneous data and critehia fmancial group.
There are two types of Scoring:

f Origination Scoring, which is obtained at the time of contracting, basedprigiary
information of the operation and information requested from the custgeretates a
score for each operation.

f Behavioral Scoring is obtained each month, based on payments behalvitirewit
Institution. This model, which is used in the assignment of scoreaéd of the
operations, is easy to understand, stable and enables the expert to usésitin-dec
making.
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0 Profitability Measurement

Aside from calculating capital requirements derived from its credit thek Institution also
utilizes internal estimates to measure the profitability of transactions awadagptance and
stock.

In the case of loans granted to Enterprises, Large Enterprises, IFl, StaBs/areign Entities,
Profitability and Added Economic Benefit indicators are calculated during thenoeis
evaluation process.

The Institution utilizes two methodologies to measure loan portfolidtabdfty. One of these
involves measuring profitability based on the regulatory capital calculated agrdodiisk-
weighted assets (RoRC), while the other methodology measures profitabiliglation to
economic capital (RAROEC).

Liquidity Risk

a) Concentration limits regarding the different groupsof collateral received and the principal
sourcesof financing

Apart from the regulatory liquidity ratios, the liquidity risk control scheffng® Institution is based
on the establishment of limits in three fundamental areas: a) Self-figathcough the LtSCD ratio or
Loan to Stable Customer Deposits (maximum relationship of the financthg agt credit investment
with stable customer deposits); b) Diversification of the financing steitituwough a maximum
amount of Short-Term (FCP); and c) Capacity to absorb liquiditgkshiirough the 30 day Basic
Capacity (CB 30dtavailable liquidity buffer coefficient and net outlays of liquidity establisheHdimvit
the respective unexpired deadline). There are also red flags to prevent thiedmibeing exceeded,
including the follow-up on other unexpired deadlines. There are also metidentify possible
threats in advance to allow for the adoption, as the case may be, etdssary preventive measures,
including indicators of concentration of financing or liquidity in foregthange or diversification of
long-term financing, among others.

December 2016 Liguidity risk exposure: average monthly closes

Absolute margin in relation to the limit (positive without excess, negative with excess)

LtSCD 10%
FCP 12m $171,762
CB 30d 45%

*Annual perspective

b) Exposure to liquidity risk and financing needs at Institution level, bearing in mind legal,
regulatory and operational limitations and the transferability of liquidity

The Institution exposure to liquidity risk and its financing needsased on the principle of
decentralized and independent management of liquidity (including the liostitutany of its
associated entities), so as to avoid dependencies or subsidies and eventual contagmisduéto
all times they take into account the legal, regulatory and operational limitatiohs trarisferability
of liquidity of the applicable rules in setting the liquidity risk policies of tisitution, including the
regimes for admission of liabilities and investments for liability traisas in Foreign Currency of
Banxico, operating rules of the payment systems, risk diversificatioe ipettiormance of liability
operation specified by the Provisions, among others.
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In the case of the investment regime for liability operations in Foreigre@y, apart from the
Shortfall regulatory limit, as a preventive measure there is also a red flag $ysitace which is
stricter than the regulatory limit for the investment regime for liability opematio Foreign Currency
of Banxico.

Balance sheet operations itemized by expiration deadlines and the resulting liquidity gaps,
including operations recorded in memorandum accounts.

The following table details the liquidity gaps of Institution at differennter

More than
Millions of Mexican pesos At sight 30 days Six months One year one year No expiration date Total

Funds available $ 148,356 $ 3,137 $ 2,114 $ 7,975 $ 46,384 3,999 211,964
Loan portfolio - 58,298 145,473 74,585 704,854 - 983,211
Securities portfolio - - 9,130 31,296 338,738 - 379,164
Repurchase agreements - 5,320 5,015 - - - 10,335

Total Assets $ 148,356 $ 66,755 $ 161,732 $ 113,856 $ 1,089,976 3,999 1,584,673
Deposits $ 1,799 $ 104,024 $ 68,438 $ 1,168 $ 49 754,935 930,44
Issues and Debentures - 3,720 22,215 2,217 169,666 - 197,818
Payables from repurchase

agreements - 252,653 24,240 - - - 276,893

Net rest of balance sheet - - - - - 179,547 179,547

Total liabilities $ 1,799 $ 360,398 $ 114,893 $ 3,385 $ 169,715 934,482 1,584,673
Off-balance-sheet $ - $ 76 $ 248 $ 457) % (1,727) - (1,860)
Liquidity gaps 146,556 (293,567) 47,085 110,015 918,534 (930,483) -
Accumulated gaps 146,556 (147,011) (99,925) 10,089 928,624 (1,860) -

* The figures in the preceding table only consider the Institution individually, matamnsolidated
basis.

o] Embedded derivatives-

Under the programs for issuance of Structured Bank Bonds aigtigution, it has recorded

foreign currency, ratios and interest-rate options, equivalent at an imeesensitivity of

$(3.4) to a base poirglso, the Institution has recorded interest rate and foreign currency swaps
with an interest rate sensitivity of $(4.2) to a base point.

Quialitative information

(@)

The liquidity risk is handled in the Institution by consideringsfarh purpose the tolerance to such risk;
the structure and responsibilities for liquidity risk management; internal itiguéports; the liquidity
risk strategy and the policies and procedures through the businesmlihedth the Board of Directors.

The handling of liquidity risk in the Institution is governed by thiéofving principles: decentralized
and independent liquidity management; self-financing of the credit activityedanks; liquidity
planning in the process of growth planning in the activity; ctearegation of functions to achieve a
proactive management of liquidity risk, including intraday liquidit@d ananagement of collateral,
establishment of a transfer pricing system and standards for internallicggedity; as well as
alignment with regulatory requirements.
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The structure and responsibilities for liquidity risk management are clegrisgeded by function and area:

¥ Setting of general policies, fundamental metrics and liffiitg risk liquidity policies are approved by
the Board of Directors, with the prior favorable opinion of the Rigkn@ittee; which bodies approve
the liquidity risk limits scheme.

¥ Risk identification, measurement and contRiksks identifies, measures and establishes measurements
to control liquidity risk to which the Financial Group is subject througts#tting, follow-up and
reporting of a limits scheme.

¥ Management of investing and deposits activityis is performed by the business areas in accordance
with the risks policy.

¥ Liquidity management and financing. This is performed by Finaspesifically in the Financial
Management area, leaving short-term performance delegated (includperfimenance of intraday
liquidity) in the Global Markets unit

¥ Generation of follow-up information. As much as possible, the Sysiath§inances areas of the
Financial Group supply the relevant information for purposes of liquidity At the same time, Risks
promotes the ongoing improvement of information quality to ensaogract decision-making
process.

The status of the limits and red flags is reported through daily attexports to Senior Management, internal
audit and the areas which handle risk, even more frequently in tinsesisf

Strategies are outlined within the risk limits approved by the Boddirettors and Risks Committee
delegated by the Board, and are agreed upon in the Assets and Liabilitiestt€eraiways within the
liquidity risk tolerance approved. Also, follow-up is given oa #volution of liquidity risk and excess risk in
these bodies.

a) Financing strategy, including diversification policies, and whether the fingstiategy is centralized
or decentralized

Every year the Financial Group prepares a growth plan of its actieigidel. QJ WKH EXVLQHVVV
growth projections, the maturities profile of assets and liabilities, the appetiisk and projected

market conditions. On such basis, the financing plan is preparedvihtiesale markets, seeking to

maintain diversification in financing, thus ensuring that there is nessix@edependence on short-term
financing.

b) Liquidity risk mitigation techniques used

The Institution liquidity risk model, based on the principles quoted isestion (a) of this Section,
at all times takes into account the legal, regulatory and operational restrictiongramsferability of
liquidity.

Specifically, one of the strengths of the Institution is based onuthléygof its funding, which is
diversified by type of customers, instruments and markets. \Widrd to deposits, there is an
extensive network of retail and wholesale customers. This attraction oftdép@®mplemented and
strengthened with local and international issues, maintaining constant accesanartiets.

If liquidity risk limits or red flags are triggered, specific action anchownication procedures are
established within the Financial Group, based on a clear definition of rothe Hifferent areas and
decision-making bodies, with the level of communication depending otherte limit or red flag was
triggered. Also, there is a Liquidity Contingency Plan, which wamivated has an inventory of action
measures classified by type, based on whether they are related with Brxiebplesale market or
commercial activity. Mitigation techniques include internal and external liquiditycesuselected
according to the situation of the current and forecast market, prudeheeactivity, financial and
reputational impact, among others.
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<)

Use of stress tests

Liquidity risk stress tests are performed under different scenarios;hircaae evaluating the status of
coverage of the available liquidity buffer with the liquidity needs of temario in question under
different temporary horizons. The results of these tests form anahpsgt of the Liquidity
Contingency Plan, given that the latter is activated by them.

Description of contingent financing plans

The Liquidity Contingency Plan or Contingency Financing Plannsidered a fundamental part of
liquidity risk management at times of liquidity stress.

It contains concrete procedures to facilitate decision-making, a rapid adoptiontiogent measures
and efficient communication, specifying the functions and responsibilitibgée situations, together
with the authority to activate it. It is defined on the basis of four principlesdit@tion between the
participating units, effective level of information, confidentiality of theaas and information and
enforceability. It is authorized by the Board of Directors of the Institutidth, the prior favorable
opinion of its delegated Risk Committee; the proposal of the Liquidity Ggenicy Plan to the Board
of Directors and its subsequent amendments is made by the Managirtgrfeéhe Institution.

Furthermore, the Financial Group has a Contingency Plan or RecdaarinPlace which establishes
possible actions to be performed to restore its financial position in liglivefse scenarios which
might affect its solvency and/or liquidity. This plan describes the situafitive Institution by
detailing key business lines, recovery indicators, and corporate gogerifiadverse scenarios arise
and the processes needed to implement recovery measures. This planppraiged by the Board of
Directors.

Liquidity Coverage Coefficient (CCL)

The Liquidity Coverage Coefficient quantifies the potential capacity dhftéution to meet 30 day
liquidity with available liquid assets in a stress scenario.

According to the information disclosure requirements specified in Exhif the General Provisions
on Liquidity Requirements for Full Service Banks, the following is tlggidity Coverage Coefficient
Disclosure Form, corresponding to the fourth Quarter of 2016.

Liquidity coverage coefficient (Millions of Mexicanpesos) Unweighted amount Weighted amount

Computable liquid assets

Total computable liquid assets Not applicable  $ 225,058
Cash outlays

Stable financing $ 374,905 $ 18,745
Less stable financing 141,751 14,175
Unsecured retail financing 516,656 32,920
Operational deposits 103,701 25,023
Nonoperational deposits 252,383 105,355
Unsecured debt 3,186 3,186
Unsecured wholesale financing 359,270 133,564

115



Liquidity coverage coefficient (Millions of Mexicanpesos)

Unweighted amount

Weighted amount

Secured wholesale financing Not applicable 2,490
Outlays related to financial derivatives 11,604 11,604
Lines of credit and liquidity 489,551 29,836
Additional requirements 501,155 41,40
Other contingent financing obligations 11,280 11,280
Total cash outlays Not applicable 221,694
Cash receipts
Cash receipts from secured transactions $ 8,684 % 116
Cash receipts from unsecured transactions 69,042 39,036
Other cash receipts 1,868 1,868
Total cash receipts $ 79594 $ 41,020
Total computable liquid assets Not applicable $ 225,058
Net total cash outlays Not applicable $ 180,676
Liquidity coverage coefficient Not applicable 124.46%

a) Calendar days included in the quarter being disclosed
The quarter reported includes 92 calendar days.

b) The primary causes of the results of the Liquidity Coverage Coefficient and the evolution of its
principal components.

During the quarter, the CCL improves based on increased customer attractioarily retail
customersthereby improving the overall composition with more stable funding exceeding the
credit activity CCL

The growth of customer attraction allowed the Institution to maintaintaléigel of liquid assets, most
of which are of high quality (government debt and central bank deposits

Desctiption 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
Liquid assets $ 200,218 % 209,993 $ 219,014 % 225,058
Outlays $ 170,614 $ 172,388 $ 182,209 $ 180,676
CCL 11872% 121.78% 120.57% 124.46%

Millions of Mexican pesos
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d)

e)

f)

c) Changes in the principal components in the quarter reported

Description
Liquid assets
Outlays
Receipts
Net Outputs
CCL

Millions of Mexican pesos

Changes 4T vs 3T
$ 6,044
$ 329
$ 1,862
$ 1,533

3.90%

Evolution of the composition of Eligible and Computable Liquid Assets

Eligible and Computable Liquid Assets

Millions of Mexican pesos 3Q 4Q Variance
N1 Cash $ 118,806 $ 155,490 $ 36,684
N1 Securities 74,703 44,023 (30,680)
N2 A 19,102 19,168 66
N2 B 6,404 6376 (28)
Total $ 219,015 $ 225,057 $ 6,042

* Weighted amounts based on the CCL discount factor.

Concentration of financing sources

One of the great strengths of the Institution is the quality of itgrfignevhich is diversified by type of
customers, instruments and markets. With regard to deposits, thereisraive network of both
retail and wholesale customers. This attraction of deposits is supplemensdteagthened with local
and international issues, over different terms, and constant access is mainitrtggbt markets.

The following table shows the principal financing sources at the cfdbe gear.

Sources of financing (December 2016)

Customer deposits
Collateralized financing
Securities

Debentures

Money market
Interbank

% of total liabilities

66%
19%
6%
7%
2%
1%

Exposures in financial derivatives and possible margin calls.

7KH ,QVW pésuw, laBcQrfiing td current local exposure guidelines regarding derivativiee
Liquidity Coverage Coefficient referenced to the net disbursenegptcted for the next 30 days, plus
a contingent disbursement for transactions involving derivative finamsaliments (LBA: lookback

approach), is detailed below:

Description

Net outlay of derivatives to 30 days plus contingent

outlay (LBA)

December 2016

$ 11,179
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0) Mismatch of foreign currencies

The liquidity risk associated with foreign currency transactions is covehformity with the
provisions of the Liquidity Coefficient in Foreign Currency, establisheBdnyxico. Furthermore, the
risk associated with the exchange rate is duly funded and is handhéul thvé regulatory limits.

h) Degree of centralization of liquidity management and interaction betweedthR XSV XQLWYV

The responsibility for handling liquidity is concentrated in the Financial kamant unit, which

reports directly to the CFO and is independent from the business unitintains a direct interaction

with the business areas, defining strategies for how to usatimact liquidity. The strategies are

DSSOLHG ZLWKLQ WKH ULVN OLPLWYV DWS8HRYRGUEB\TW KGH & IRIDDMEHRSI |
Committee, and are agreed upon in the Assets and Liabilities Committeegtivexbody

responsible for handling capital and the structural risks of the balareéwlhih regard to interest

rates, exchange rates and liquidity.

i) Cash flow outlays and receipts thétappropriate, are not captured in this framework but which the
Institution considers relevant for its liquidity profile

The Institution considers that all relevant flows are covered in the CCL metnehiicit reason there
are no additional flows to be considered.

The Institution has cash flow hedges to reduce exposure to variances ircfiamnging such flows to
a fixed rate in order to improve the sensitivity of the financial margime method used to evaluate
prospective effectiveness is by sensitivity analysis; retrospective eéfieetis is measured by
comparing the change in the present value of the flows from the hetigeniest against the changes
in the present value of the flows from the hedged position.

Operational Risk

The measurement and control of operational risk is the responsibilitgegarate operational risk unit which
manages market risk and credit risk, as well as audit units and compliance.

Aware of the importance of considering all aspects associated with opeiskirtge Institution has
implemented comprehensive risk management which not only includesahtitative aspects of risk, but
also seeks to measure other elements that require the introduction of gaaditativation mechanisms,
without overlooking the objectivity of the systems utilized for thiggpse. An operating risk is defined as
one that cannot be classified as a credit or market risk. This is a broad defihitdnpwmarily includes the
following risk classes: process, fraud, technological, human resourcesgctiairand legal practices, and
suppliers and disasters.

The operating risk management model is based on a cause-effect maheidentifies the operating risk
associated with the Institution's processes through a continuous imprao\emeit

- Identification. Consists of determining which risk factors (circunttanvhich can become operating
risk events) reside in the processes of each business/supportimis ffie most important part of the
cycle because it determines the existence of all other parts.

- Quantification. The cost that can be generated by a risk factor is quantifisthigyhistorical data
(database of operating losses) or estimated in the case of risks whictohakieam as past events.
This quantification is based on two components: occurrence frequetheganitoring the impact
generated in the event of occurrence.
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- Mitigation. After having identified and quantified operating risk factors, if tisis exceeds desired
levels, a mitigation process is implemented to reduce the risk level by eitisfetrang it or
modifying the processes which reduce the frequency or impact @vent. Mitigation decisions are
made by the Operating Risk Committee created by each business/support unit.

- Follow-up. Qualitative follow-up is provided to analyze the evolution of the operetskgwhich
involves evaluating the implementation level of mitigation measures. Quantititor-Up consists
of measuring the evolution of causal operating risk indicators, whiteaalslyzing the evolution of
operating risk losses recorded in a database.

In the specific case of technological risks, aside from the general operskingethodology, a technological
Risk Committee has also been created to ensure that identified risks and mipgatoare standardized
throughout the Institution and are compliant with logical security, busit@ginuity, data processing
efficiency and technological evolution standards. Likewise, this Committesemthe adequate management
RI WKH ,QVWLWXWLRQYVY WHFKQRORJLFDO LQIUDVWUXFWXUH

In the case of legal risk, aside from the operating risk management chreystobability of an adverse
verdict derived from administrative processes or legal proceedings in whidthstftution is either plaintiff or
defendant is also calculated.

Given that the different departments have doubts regarding compliancsewtdain operating processes
established by Mexican and/or foreign laws, consultations are periodically redfuestedtorneys
specializing in different areas to obtain a reliable legal opinion and guarantee comyiidegal
provisions.

Based on the above, the institution considers that the main factors infig¢neilegal risk are: degree of
non-compliance with local regulations types of judicial process whiahies; lawsuit amount and
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome.

Operating Risk events can arise in the Banking Business for diffeasdns such as: fraud, process
operating errors, disasters, technological deficiencies and legal risks, etc.iAgigottie Institution has
established robust internal models to enable it to timely determine the occurrencatingpisk events.
Operational risk derives from the probability that there will be human emadequate or defective internal
processes, systems failures and also external events which might represefirathesinstitution. This
definition includes legal risk and excludes strategic and/or business ris&grdtional risk.

Operational risk is inherent to all the activities, products, systems and g®casd its origins are quite
varied (processes, internal and external frauds, technological, humarcesscommercial practices,
disasters, suppliers). The management of operational risk is integratéteigiobal risk management
structure of the Financial Group.

Throughout the Institution there is an integrated internal control and operaisdnaethodology. This
PHWKRGRORJ\ KHOSVY WR LGHQWLI\ ULDWW ID@ W&\ HRW DR SIIDLVRIUR QLM HD
to their residual estimate (after including the effect of the controls), lekigks to the processes and

establish an objective level for each risk which, by comparison with the aksigk) identifies weaknesses

that can be managed. To provide the necessary support to this methptt@dgstitution has a corporate

application: STORM (Support Tool for Operational Risk Management), which includeatmrdand scenario

modules.

The framework of operational risk management defined by the Instifatihrdes a governance structure
based on three lines of defense with: clear demarcation of the responsibdiies@and procedures
common to the entire Institution, systems to identify, measure, moaatotrol and mitigate the operational
risks and losses, as well as tools and methodologies to quantify the omnagioin terms of capital
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Framework of operational risk management: Three lineof defense
X Business units

They manage the operational rizktheir respective areas, coordinalstthe GRO Business
the areas, anbly the process owners and controls.

X Internal Controllership, GRO Country and Internal Control Specialists

The Internal Controllership function and GRO Country (Operational Reskagement
Country) are responsible for designing, maintaining and updatnfyaimeworkof operational
risk and Internal Contrah the Institution and confirming thétis correctly appliedn the field
of the business and support areas.

X They define procedures, systems and tools.
X Reportingto Senior Management.

The Internal Control Specialists assess the effectivarfehe documented controls and assure
the permanent updatirgf the internal control systerim adherencéo the Internal Control
objectives and guidelines definbg the Controllership and authorizeg the Boardof
Directorsat the behesof the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit:

In general it ascertains compliance with the framework of operationahdsiagement, with
independent review and testing of the controls, processes and systemsnstitucion.

Operational risk managementthe Institutionis designed and coordinated from the Operational Risk
Management function (GRO Countiiy) conjunction with the corporate criteéthe Institution. The
busines®r support areaim turn have Operational Risk Managers (GRO Business) which for
functional purposes repad GRO Country and are responsible for implementing the modkeé
day+to-dayof the business areas. Accordingly, the Institutiondmegperational perspective, which
where the operational risks are identified and prioritized and mitigation deceieriaken.

To carry out this task, the Institution has toolplaceto cover the qualitative and quantitative aspects
of operational risk:

Operational Risk Management Teol'he STORM corporate tool documents the identification and
managemerf the most important risks which constitute the referéndecus attentioron the
Operational Risk Management Committeéshe business and support units, andhe delegated
Risk Committee®f the Boardof Directors held during the year.

Indicators fixedn the principal operational riskandtheir controls:The indicators help measure the
evolutionof the risks and their controls over time, generate red flag signalmeasilire the
effectivenes®f the control©nanongoing basis. These indicators are defined and follaypdyy the
Internal Control Specialists.

SIRO Tool -Operational risk events almost always have a negative irpdle accountsf the
Institution. To ensure detailed control over them, they are registaradiatabase knowasSIRO
(Operational Risk Integrated Systemn ensure reliabilityt receives the information directly from
accountingoy automatic interfaceis 95%of the cases.
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0 Capitalization for operational risk

Based on the changes to the Provisions published by the Commisdimtember 31, 2014, which
define the methodological criteria to determine the capital requirement for operadskrhatough the
Basic, Standard, and Alternative Standard approaches, the Financial Group requesiéairsadi o
authorization from the Commission on November 27, 2015, to ugdttraative Standard method to
calculate the capital requirement for operational risk, based on the informatio®e®sloér 2015.

The Alternative Standard Method consists of a simple totaling of the neueéor each of the eight
business lines, multiplied by the factors related to each line, exceptitwhenlves the calculation of
the capital requirements for Operational Risk of the retail banking and cemhienking business
lines, for which the capital requirement will be calculated by substituting the inoethrevenue of
each of these lines of business, for the amount exercised of morthtydad advances for each

business line, multiplied by &L[HG IDFWRU 3P~

The factorgo be usedby business line arasfollows:

Business lines

Corporate finances
Transactions and sales
Retail banking
Commercial banking
Payments and settlements
Agency services

Asset management

Retail brokerage

% Applicable to each
business line

18
18
12
15
18
15
12
12

ZKLFK ZLOO EH

To calculate the net revenues and the amount exerafdedns and advancesjs essentiato
consider the amount applicalitethe 36 months before the month for which the capital requirernisent
being calculated, which mube grouped into three period$ 12 monthsto determine the annual net

revenues.

The losses derived from operational risk in 2016 were $1,555, maialjodrauds and operational

errors.

34. Financial indicators (unaudited)

As of December 31, 2016 and 201D FFRUGLQJ WR DUWLFOH

indicators are as follows:
Ratio

Ratio of default

Hedge ratio of portfolio of non-performing loans
Operating efficiency

ROE

ROA

Capitalization ratio credit and market risk

Basic capital 1 on credit, market and operational risk
Liquidity

Net adjusted interest margin (MIN) /Average Productive
Assets

2016

2.23%
131.84%
3.68%
17.74%
1.50%
13.73%

74.98%

4.36%

RI WKH BURYLVLRQV

2015

2.40%
127.90%
3.20%
19.70%
1.70%
14.90%
10.90%
78.60%

4.30%
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35.

36.

37.

38.

Ratings

At December 31, 2016, the ratings assigned to the Institution are as follows

Global Scale ME National Scale
Ratings Agency Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term Perspective
6WDQGDUG BBB+ A-2 MxAAA mxA-1+ Stable
ORRG\TV A3 P-2 Aaa.mx MX-1 Stable
Fitch A- F1 AAA (mex) F1+ (mex) Stable

Contingencies

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are claims filed against the Institudioinary civil and
commercial lawsuits, as well as payment requests issued by the tariteasthdowever, according to its
attorneys, the claims filed are considered without merit and, in the evaterse rulings, its financial
position would not be significantly affected. For such purposdngitgution has weighted the impact of
each one and has recorded a reserve for $298 and $300 in these cases.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, certain labor lawsuits have beead@éust the Institution. However, its
attorneys consider that these claims are without merit and that an adversecontadchnot significantly
DIITHFW WKH ,QVWLWXW L&y fiantlylaDDeCembdd 31, QR & and/20R5)thelfikstitution has
analyzed the effect of each of these lawsuits and has recorded a re§28& ahd $229 for labor lawsuits.

Subsequent events

7KH 6WRFNKROGHUVY 6SHFLDO OHHWLQJ RHUDRXKDIN%NOS %DQBPRBHRBYIA(
Institucion de Banca Multiple, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, as the absatbmgany, with the

entities denominated Hipotecaria Nacional, S.A. de C.V., Sociedad Financiera de NDidjgite, Entidad

Regulada, Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer; Desitel Tecnologia y SistemasieSCAV. and Betese, S.A.

de C.V. as the absorbed entities. The merger took effect as of Februa®115,

Regarding the paymenRl D GLYLGHQG IRU XS WR WKH DPRKGWRANKROGIBGSS%
Ordinary General Meeting of February 26, 2016, the fourth payment dfiidend declared on December
16, 2016 for $2,465, was made on January 25, 2017.

New accounting principles
NIF's issued by the CINIF applicable to the Institution

At December 31, 2016, the CINIF has issued the following NIFs and InterprstatiBRS (INIF) that could
have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Institution:

a. Improvements to NIF 2017 - The following improvements wereeigsuhich generate accounting
changes effective as of January 1, 2017:

NIF B-13, Events after the date of the financial statements, NIF B-6, Statenfigreincial position,
NIF C-19, Financial instruments payable, and NIF C-20, Financial instrumeatgatgle £If an
agreement is reached as of the authorization date for the issuance of ttialfstatements to
maintain the contractual long-term payments of a debt instrument that is iit,drfal liability may
be classified as a long-term item at the date of the financial statements; early applfdaion o
guidance as of January 1, 2016 is permitted.
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NIF D-3, Employee benefitels modified to establish, as a basic principle, that the discount rate to be
used in the determination of the present value of the long-term labor lighitityd be a free market

rate with a very low credit risk, which represents the value of moneytiower Consequently, either

the government bond market rate or the market rate for high-quality corporate in absolute terms

in a deep market, could be used, indistinctly, provided that the latter comjihigbe requirements
established in Appendix BApplication guidance, BtGuidance for the identification of issues of
high-quality corporate bonds in absolute terms in a deep market.apatigation is allowed.

Improvements to NIF 201#The following improvements do not generate accounting clsange

NIF C-2, Investment in financial instruments

NIF C-3, Accounts receivable

Bulletin C-15, Impairment in the value of long-lived assets and theioshdp
NIF C-16, Impairment of financial instruments receivable

NIF C-20, Financial instruments to collect principal and interest

The improvements consist of outlining the scopes and definitiongsd thIF to clearly indicate the
appropriate application and accounting treatment; consequently, no efttativeas established for
these improvements. Furthermore, improvements were made to difféFett dhange the acronyms
used to identify certain receivable financial instruments.

The following NIF were issued and are effective January 1, 2018:

NIF C-2, Investments in financial instruments

NIF C-3, Accounts receivable

NIF C-9, Provisions, contingencies and commitments

NIF C-10, Financial derivatives and hedging relationships

NIF C-16, Impairment of financial instruments receivable

NIF C-19, Financial instruments payable

NIF C-20, Financial instruments receivable

NIF D-1, Revenues from contracts with customers

NIF D-2, Costs from contracts with customers

NIF B-17, Determination of fair valudSubject to the issuance of the NIF)

NIF C-2, Investment in financial instruments (Y he main change in this standard is the
classification of the FI in which the investment is made. The intention of adguiand utilization of
an investment in an Fl is discarded for purposes of determining itfficktssn, and is replaced by the
business model concept for the management of investments in Fttogoash flows, which may be
obtaining a contractual return from an FI, from the collection of contraetuahs and/or sale or
obtaining profits from their purchase and sale, with the aim of clasgifgandifferent FI.
Furthermore, the investments in FI cannot be reclassified between therditfategories (loans and
receivables, financial liabilities at fair value and trading), unless the busioeked changes, which is
considered unlikely to occur.

NIF C-3, Accounts receivableThe main changes consist of specifying that: a) the accounts
receivable based on a contract represent a financial instrument; b) the allowarckdebts for
commercial accounts is recognized from the time the revenue is accruedohdseexpected credit
losses; c) the time value of money should be considered as of the init@itery consequently, if
the effect of the present value of the account receivable is material based on its teyuid ibs
adjusted based on such present value, and d) required disclosures incluglgsas @ithe change
between the opening and closing balances of the allowance for ktad deb

NIF C-9, Provisions, contingencies and commitmetithe term probable replaced the term virtually

awidable in the definition of liabilities. The first-time application of this NIF dassgenerate
accounting changes in the financial statements.
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NIF C-10, Financial derivatives and hedging relationships - (Subject to thensswf the NIF)

NIF C-16, Impairment of financial instruments receivable (F#®etermine when and how the
expected losses from impairment of FIR should be recognized; this is aghesult of an increase in
the credit risk, it is concluded that a part of the future cash flows frerlt will not be recovered,
and proposes that the expected loss should be recognized based on the leispanieaice of credit
losses, current conditions and reasonable and sustainable forecasts abttsequantifiable future
events that might affect the amount of the future recoverable cashdlaies FIR, which means that
estimates must be made and should be periodically adjusted based on past experieaqaoFairih
relation to interest-bearing FIR, entities shall estimate the amount and timihe fcash flows
expected to be recovered, as the recoverable amount must be recognized at present valu

NIF C-19, Financial instruments payableEstablishes: a) the possibility of valuing, after their initial
recognition, certain financial liabilities at fair value, when certain exceptional conditierfalfilled;

b) the valuation of long-term liabilities at their present value at initial recognitionideoing) their
present value when their term exceeds one year or outside normal credit cendittbn) when a
liability is restructured, but the future cash flows to settle the liability are bstamtially modified,

the costs and commissions disbursed in this process will affect thenaaidhe liability and will be
amortized based on a modified effective interest rate, instead of directlyraffdatinet income or
loss.

NIF C-20, Financial instruments receivablSpecifies the classification of financial instruments in
the assets, based on the business model: a) if the intention is to geneséitedtaqugh a contractual
return, predetermined in a contract, they are recognized at amortized costep)afe also used to
generate a profit based on their purchase and sale, they are recognizedaatdaky embedded
financial derivative that modifies the cash flows of principal and interest frohogténstrument will
not be separated; instead, all will be valued at fair value, as if it were a negotiable fimstrciment.

NIF D-1, Revenues from contracts with custom#Pseviously there was no Mexican accounting
standard for revenue recognition, for which reason the main chéomysson providing greater
consistency in revenue recognition and eliminating weaknesses in the prevpple mental
standards. The most important changes consist of establishing a madgkfare recognition based
on the following steps: a) transfer of control, the basis for the timelifiesgemue recognition; b) the
identification of the different performance obligations in a contract;ecalliocation of the transaction
amount between the different unfulfilled obligations based on independémg geites; d) the
introduction of the concept conditional account receivable, when an unfulfilegtion is satisfied
and an unconditional right to the consideration is generated because ordgshgeof time is
required for the payment of such consideration to become enforceablerexageition of collection
rights, where in certain cases there may be an unconditional right to tidecatisn before an
unfulfilled obligation is satisfied, and f) the valuation of the revenuesidering aspects such as the
recognition of significant financing components, the noncash coasigecash and the consideration
payable to a customer.

NIF D-2, Costs from contracts with custometSeparates the standard for recognition of the costs
from contracts with customers from that related to recognition oftrenues from contracts with
customers, and expands the scope to include costs related to all typesauftsovith customers.

(1) Early application of these NIF is permitted as of January 1, 2016, pratiatei is done in
conjunction.

At the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statemenitsstihgion has not completed its
evaluation of the potential effects of adopting these new standards oaritsidinnformation.
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39.

40.

Authorization of the issuance of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance on ¥&dru2017, by the Board of
Directors of the Institution and are subject to approval by the Annuar@edvieeting of Shareholders of the
Institution who may be modified in accordance with the provisioise General Law of Commercial
Companies.

Review of the consolidated financial statements by the Commission

The accompanying consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2®Glamre subject to review by
the Commission, so that the same may be modified as a result of that log\igis supervisory authority.

* k k k k%

125



